Mr. TW Nxesi (MP)
Minister of Labour

Submission of the Compesation Fund Annual Report

Minister of Labour
I have the honour of submitting the Annual Report of the Compensation Fund for the
Period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.
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1. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS
AC

Audit Committee

AG

Auditor-General

AGSA

Auditor-General of South Africa

APP

Annual Performance Plan

BRRR

Budget Review and Recommendations Report

CC

Compensation Commissioner

CF

Compensation Fund

COIDA

Compensation of Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act

CPI

Consumer Price Index

DG

Director-General

DoL

Department of Labour

GRAP

Generally Recognised Accounting Principles

HRM

Human Resource Management

HO

Head Office

ICT

Information Communication Technology

IES

Inspections and Enforcement Services

KRA

Key Result Area

MTSF

Medium Term Strategic Framework

NEDLAC

National Economic Development and Labour Council

OHS

Occupational Health and Safety

PFMA

Public Finance Management Act

PIC

Public Investment Commission

PWDs

Persons with Disabilities

POE

Portfolio of Evidence

SAICA

South African Institute of Chartered Accountants

SCM

Supply Chain Management

SHE

Safety, Health and Environmental

SRI

Social Responsible Investments

UIF

Unemployment Insurance Fund
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PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION

2. FOREWORD BY THE COMMISSIONER
The Compensation Fund is a schedule 3A public entity of the
Department of Labour. It is established in terms of section 15 of the
Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act No 130
of 1993 as amended by Act 61 of 1997 to provide compensation in
an event of an occupational injury or occupational disease.
It is my pleasure to present the Annual Report for 2018/2019
financial year. The 2018/2019 financial year marks the last year of
the MTSF 2014-2019. Over 5 year MTEF period the Compensation
Fund paid out R17, 1 billion in compensation, medical and pension
benefits. This has been largely to improvements that came as a

Vuyo Mafata
Compensation Commissioner

result of the implementation of the Turnaround Plan.
One of the key action points in the Turnaround Plan was the restructuring of the Compensation Fund in
order to align it to the mandate derived from legislation. The core business of the Fund has been split
into three divisions; COID Services, Medical Benefits and Orthotics & Rehabilitation Services to ensure
that clients received specialised attention.
The specialised focus has assisted in ensuring that the Fund achieves its key strategic targets related
to rendering services to clients. During the 2018/2019 financial year the Fund registered 156 223 claims
with 94% these claims being adjudicated within 40 days of being registered.
The Fund processed 934 742 medical invoices with 93% of the claims paid within 60 days of receipt.
The Fund continues to pursue improvement projects aimed at improving efficiencies and one of these is
the development of a new claims management system. During the 2019/2020 financial year we will be
introducing the new system to the market. In addition to introduction of technology to improve service
delivery, the Fund has started to pilot Rehabilitation and Return to Work programmes to ensure that
those who are injured in the workplace are reintegrated into the labour market.
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2. FOREWORD BY THE COMMISSIONER (continues)
During the 2019/2020 financial year the Fund will be developing a new five-year Strategic Plan that will
be aligned to the new Medium Term Strategic Framework for the period 2019-2024. The focus over the
next 5 years will be on the following:
- Extensive rollout of the Return to Work programme which include vocational rehabilitation
- Improving accessibility and efficiency of the Fund through the use of technology
- Improvement of benefits and
- Prevention activities through partnerships with the Inspection and Enforcement Services
I would like to express my sincere appreciation to all the officials, and the executive team for their tireless
dedication to achieving the Fund’s objectives. I would also like to thank the Minister, the Deputy Minister,
the Director General and the oversight bodies for the support and guidance received during the period
under review.

_____________________________________
Vuyo Mafata
Compensation Commissioner
Date: 30 August 2019
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3. DIRECTOR-GENERAL OVERVIEW
General financial review of the public entity
The Compensation Fund (CF) raised R9.3 billion in revenue from
employers, for the year under review, which represents a 27%
increase from the 2017/18 financial year. This increase was largely
as a result of estimations made for Employers who did not submit
their Return of Earnings (ROE’s). Total benefits paid in actual
cash for the year amounted to R3.9 billion which amounts to a 7%
increase from the prior financial year.
The Compensation Fund has a deficit of R6.3 billion (R6.5 billion
for the group) as compared to the surplus of R4.8 billion
(R4.9 billion for the group) generated in the prior financial year.

Thobile Lamati
Director-General

This represents a decrease in excess of 100%.
The main contributors being the unrealised losses incurred on the investments and reserve building as
a result of pension increases. The country experienced slow economic growth which negatively affected
the performance of a number of companies the CF invested through the Public Investment Corporation
(PIC).
The CF investment portfolio grew by R2.5 billion as compared to the prior year. This increase represents
a 4% growth. The investment portfolio increased from R65.9 billion in 2017/18 to
R66.9 billion in the current year. This increase is largely as a result of positive cash flows from operations
being re-invested into the investment portfolio.
The Fund’s net assets decreased from R32.4 billion (R32.8 billion for the group) in the prior year to
R26.3 billion (R26.6 billion for the group). This represents a 19% decrease, which was largely caused
by the increase in pension liabilities which emanated from the change in the manner that schedule 4 of
the COIDA was implemented.
During the year under review, The President of the Republic of South Africa, instituted a commission of
enquiry into the Public Investment Corporation for investment dealings that the PIC entered into. Since
the Fund invests its surplus funds through the PIC, the CF may be subjected to investigations by the
commission of enquiry. As at the end of the financial year, the Fund incurred unrealised losses of
R379 million as a result of the share price collapse in the Steinhoff investment. The Compensation Fund
is closely monitoring various investigations into the scandal and has participated in the Amsterdam
Class Action against Steinhoff International. The objective would be to recover as much of the unrealised
losses as possible, before realising the loss in this investment.
10
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3. DIRECTOR-GENERAL OVERVIEW (Continues)
Spending trends of the public entity
The Compensation Fund has recorded an overall spending of 169% (R11 billion) for the 2018/19 financial
year. This is against a total adjusted budget of R6.5 billion, which resulted in an overspending for the
period under review. This variance occurred as a result of a change in the assumptions used to provision
for incurred but not reported claims and reported but not settled claims.
The compensation of employees recorded a total spending of R813 million, (83%), against a total revised
budget of R976 million, which represents an underspending for the period under review, as a result of
vacancies not being filled at the desired rate.
From a cash flow point of view, the Fund incurred an expenditure of R5.5 billion (R 5.6 billion for the
group). This resulted in a positive net cash flow from operating activities of R1.8 billion (R1.8 billion
for the group) for the current financial year, which indicates that the Fund is financially viable despite
incurring a deficit. It should also be noted that the net asset position of the Fund is R26.3 billion
(R26.6 billion for the group) as at 31 March 2019, placing our solvency position at 1.6:1.
Capacity constraints and challenges facing the public entity
The Chief Director of Corporate Services is responsible for ensuring that the institutional capacity of
the Compensation Fund is strengthened. The Fund’s structure was reviewed to address strategic and
operational requirements and to ensure that the CF is realigned to meet its social security obligation in
the South African labour market. The structure was approved and implemented as of 01 October 2017.
The challenges that were faced by the Fund over the years to turn the tide have started to yield good
results with the recruitment of skills required specifically within the areas of Finance, Medical, Actuarial
and Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases (COID). The filling of key positions to address
all capacity constraints has been prioritised and the intention is to finalise the process by end of the first
quarter of the 2019/20 financial year.
To further address the skills challenges, the Compensation Fund partnered with the South African
Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA) to implement skills development programmes in respect
of Vocational Training and Training Office for aspiring Chartered Accountants. The skills development
programme for aspiring Chartered Accountants was launched by the Minister of Labour. A total amount
paid for full time students to study towards Medical and Chartered Accountant qualifications is
R14 116 335.00.
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3. DIRECTOR-GENERAL OVERVIEW (Continues)
The recommendations of the Skills Audit Report based on the audit conducted were implemented
throughout the financial year in the Fund and provincial offices. This was done through the offering
of bursaries for officials to empower them with critical skills. A total of 104 bursaries were awarded to
Compensation Fund officials who studied part time towards certificates, National Diplomas and Junior
Degrees. Over and above formal qualifications, officials attended short courses in finance, COID services
and administration services to enhance their skills and knowledge in their areas of work. There are 53
officials who have, so far, completed their qualifications. For the other officials, is work in progress.
Discontinued activities / activities to be discontinued
There were no discontinued activities in the year under review.
New or proposed activities
None.
Requests for roll over of funds
The Fund accumulates its surplus and deficits, thus there will be no requests for roll over of funds.
Supply chain management
Over the past 5 years, the Supply Chain Management function has strengthened, and this was also
evidenced by the significant decrease in the number of audit SCM findings. The Fund continues to
strengthen controls as part of the CF Action Plan.
All concluded unsolicited bid proposals for the year under review
The Fund did not conclude nor receive any unsolicited bids during the financial year.
Whether SCM processes and systems are in place
SCM has processes in place and further conducts advocacy sessions to inform and interact with officials
on SCM related processes, practices and regulations.
Challenges experienced and how they will be resolved
The Fund has identified inefficiencies in the ICT systems in use and are currently putting measures in
place to enhance customer experience and internal controls. In resolving the operational and financial
administration challenges, the CF has developed an action plan (CF Action Plan) to address them.
Progress is monitored closely and reported to the governance structures on a quarterly basis.
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3. DIRECTOR-GENERAL OVERVIEW (Continues)
Audit report matters in the previous year and how they would be addressed
In the 2018/19 financial year, the Fund received 103 (hundred and three) findings from the AGSA audit.
An Audit Action Plan was subsequently developed to address these findings and progress is monitored
closely by management and governance structures. In addition to this, the Fund also developed the CF
Action Plan Phase 2. Here, in pillar one, matters affecting financial administration are addressed as well.
Outlook/ plans for the future to address financial challenges
The management of the Fund will continue to implement the Action Plan, the Strategic Plan, the Annual
Performance Plan and the Integrated Operational Plan to ensure that the objectives of the Fund are
achieved.
Events after the reporting date
For this current year under review, the Fund did not have any events reported.
Acknowledgement/s or Appreciation
I would like to extend a hand of appreciation to the Minister of Labour, the Deputy Minister, the Portfolio
Committee on Labour, the Board of the Compensation Fund, Audit Committee, Risk Committee and all
other stakeholders of the Fund for their support during the previous financial year.
Other (information that needs to be communicated to users of AFS)
Currently there is nothing to be communicated.

___________________________
Thobile Lamati
DIRECTOR-GENERAL
Department of Labour
Date: 30 August 2019
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4. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION
OF THE ACCURACY OF THE ANNUAL REPORT
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:
All information and amounts disclosed in the Annual Report is consistent with the annual financial
statements audited by the Auditor-General of South Africa. The Annual Report is complete, accurate
and is free from any omissions.
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued
by the National Treasury. The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance
with the Generally Recognised Accounting Principles (GRAP) applicable to the Compensation Fund.
The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements and for
the judgements made in this information. The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing and
implementing a system of internal control and has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as
to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human resources information and the
Annual Financial Statements.
The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the Annual Financial Statements.
In our opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human
resources information and the financial affairs of the entity for the financial year ended 31 March 2019.

Yours faithfully

__________________________________
COMPENSATION COMMISSIONER

___________________________________
DIRECTOR-GENERAL

Vuyo Mafata

Thobile Lamati

Date: 30 August 2019

Date: 30 August 2019
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5. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW
5.1 Vision
To be a world class provider of sustainable compensation for occupational injuries and diseases,
rehabilitation and reintegration services.
5.2 Mission
• To provide efficient, quality, client-centric and accessible COID services.
• To sustain financial viability.
• To ensure an organisation which takes care of the needs of its staff for effective service delivery.
5.3 Values
We shall, at all times, adhere to or live the Batho Pele Principles.

6. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES
6.1 Constitutional Mandate
The mandate of the Compensation Fund is derived from Section 27 (1) (c) of the Constitution of the
Republic of South Africa. In terms of this Act, specifically the mentioned section, all South Africans
have a right to social security. The Compensation Fund is mandated to provide social security to all
injured employees, and those who have contracted diseases as a result of their workplace and diseased
employees and their dependants.
6.2 Legislative Mandate
The Compensation Fund is a Schedule 3A Public Entity of the Department of Labour. The Fund
administers the Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act No 130/1993 as amended by the Compensation
of Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act (COIDA) 61/1997. The main objective of the Act is to provide
compensation for disablement caused by occupational injuries or diseases sustained or contracted by
employees, or for death resulting from injuries or diseases, and provide for matters connected therewith.
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6. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES (Continues)
The Compensation Fund generates its revenue from levies paid by employers. This consists of annual
assessments paid by registered employers on the basis of a percentage or fixed rate of the annual
earnings of their employees. The COID Act, however, makes provision for a minimum assessment to
ensure the assessment is not less than the administration costs incurred. The Compensation Fund is
currently focusing on amendments of the Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act, 130
of 1993. The amendments seek to, among others, improve the enforcement mechanism of the Act, the
introduction of a rehabilitation and reintegration programme, the inclusion of domestic workers and the
improvement of some aspects of the benefits to the clients.
The operations of CF are also informed by the following legislations:
• Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996, as amended;
• Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993;
• National Economic Development and Labour Council Act (NEDLAC), 1994;
• Labour Relations Act, 1995, as amended;
• Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997, as amended;
• Employment Equity Act, 1998, as amended;
• Skills Development Act, 1998, as amended;
• Unemployment Insurance Act, 2001, as amended;
• Unemployment Insurance Contributions Act, 2002;
• Employment Services Act, 2014;
• Public Finance Management Act, 1999, as amended;
• Public Service Act, 1994, as amended;
• Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003;
• Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000;
• Prevention and Combating of Corrupt Activities Act, 2004;
• Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000;
• Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000;
• Promotion of Equality and Elimination of Unfair Discrimination Act, 2000.
• Protected Disclosure Act, 2000; and
• Prevention of Organised Crime Act, 2004, as amended.
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7. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

COMPENSATION COMMISSIONER:
V. Mafata

DIRECTOR:

DIRECTOR:

Information and

Anti-Corruption and

Communication

Intergrity Management

Technology -

- K. Lebepe

M. Thongoane

DIRECTOR:

DIRECTOR:

Risk Management

Internal Audit -

- L. Kgoele

B. Gumbu

Director:
Executive Support
- M. Khosa

Acting Chief

Chief Director:

Chief Director:

Chief Director:

Chief Director:

Chief

Director:

Orthotics and

COID Services -

Financial

Corporate

Operations

Medical Benefits

Rehabilitation -

M. Ruiters

- M. Ruiters

F. Fakir
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Services -

Officer -

- T. Headbush

N. Qamata

J. Modiba
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PART B: PEFORMANCE INFORMATION

1. AUDITOR-GENERAL’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED
OBJECTIVES
The Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA) currently performs certain audit procedures on the
performance information to provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit
conclusion on the performance against predetermined objectives is included in the report to management,
with findings being reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the report on other legal and
regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s report.
Refer to the report of the Auditor-General, published as Part E: Financial Information.

2. OVERVIEW OF THE FUND’S PERFORMANCE
2.1 Service Delivery Environment
The promotion and protection of the basic rights of workers, and with provision of adequate social
safety nets to protect vulnerable workers, are key to labour market flexibility for competitiveness of
enterprises. The continuing high levels of workplace incidents and injuries are a concern as these create
instability in the labour market. The role played by social security agencies, like the Compensation Fund,
is crucial but the service delivery environment continues to be subjected and affected by many external
environmental factors.
• The first relates to:
The International Monetary Fund (IMF) has lowered South Africa’s projected GDP growth rate for 2019
from 1.4% to 1.2%, putting the country among the worst performers in sub-Saharan Africa. The IMF’s
growth projections are slightly lower than the 1.3% projected by the South African Reserve Bank. The
slow growth will have a negative effect on the Fund’s ability to grow the investment portfolio. As a result
of the slow growth, many businesses will be negatively affected. This will, in return, impact on the Fund’s
investment growth as the CF will, in all probability, receive less revenue from business. The CF would
have to continue to implement measures to ensure that employers are submitting ROE’s to the Fund.
• The second relates to:
Poverty alleviation programmes designed to promote employment and strengthen protection of social
security are overwhelmed by the current South African’s unemployment rate which according to the
Statistics SA Fourth Quarter Labour Survey 2018 (released on 12 February 2019) is at 27,1%. The
situation is further exuberated by the inability to participate in the labour market due to injuries and/or
diseases contracted as a result of unsafe and/or none compliance to COID legislation. There is a need
to ensure compliance by employers on COID services and the Fund is working with the Inspections and
Enforcement Services (IES) in this regard by creating awareness on safety in workplaces and ensuring
possible prosecution for those who are none compliant.
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2. OVERVIEW OF THE FUND’S PERFORMANCE (Continues)
• The third relates to:
New technological innovations that have impact on the labour market as many the jobs become
automated. This might have a negative impact on the labour market as many jobs might become
redundant, resulting in an increase in the unemployment rate. Automation of work might also result in
an increase of injuries, especially where the use of machinery is not supported by adequate training.
Training of employers and CF employees on CF claims systems and processes will continue to ensure
an improvement in the delivery of services.
• The fourth relates to:
Lack of safety compliance, by the mining industry and other industries, to the Occupational Health and
Safety Amendment Act gives rise to the high injury and fatalities in the labour market. There is a need to
ensure compliance by employers on COID services and the Compensation Fund is working with the IES
in this regard by creating awareness on safety in workplaces.
• The fifth relates to:
Inadequate instruments for constant performance monitoring and evaluation of labour market policies
and programmes to determine their impact on the economy:
- Stakeholder participation and strategic partnerships in programme delivery, monitoring and
feedback is inadequate, despite our strong culture of social dialogue in policy development.
- Planning processes are, to some extent, not well co-ordinated between strategic departments
on related socio-economic development programmes.
- Our appreciation and use of modern information and communication technology systems to
manage data and information is inadequate.
The Fund continues to engage with employers and all relevant stakeholders to ensure partnerships for
effective and efficient service delivery.
2.2 Organisational Environment
The Compensation Fund remains consistent and committed to improving the organisational environment,
addressing performance challenges by improving the organisational culture, self-introspection and
capacity building. The central outcome that the Compensation Fund strives to achieve is to ensure
access to social security through the provision of social security to all injured and diseased employees.
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2. OVERVIEW OF THE FUND’S PERFORMANCE (Continues)
The strategic objectives of the Fund are to:
• Provide faster, reliable and accessible COID services by 2020; and
• Provide effective and efficient client-oriented support services.
During the financial year in review, the Fund continued with the full implementation of the revised
organisational structure at the CF Head Office (HO) and started the process to review CF Provincial
structure. By reviewing the structure in Provincial Operations, the Fund aims to address service delivery
and operational requirements and to further ensure that social security obligation in the South African
labour market is met. The implementation of the CF HO structure resulted in amongst other issues, the
appointment of Chief Directors and key personnel in the areas of finance, medical, rehabilitation. The
intention of the Provincial structure is to align and capacitate Provincial Operations to ensure effective
service delivery.
During the financial year, Phase 1.0 of the Action Plan was reviewed resulting in the development of
the Phase 2.0. The aim of the Phase 2.0 Action Plan is to review and strengthen the capacity while
sharpening the strategies for delivering on the Fund’s mandate.
In the period under review, the Fund achieved 67% of set targets in the Annual Performance Plan (APP).
The Fund continues to pay benefits in respect of medical, compensation and pension. A total amount
of R3.9 billion actual cash was paid towards benefits. The below table indicates amounts paid towards
benefits between the Financial Years 2015/16 and 2018/19.
Table 1: Amounts paid towards benefits between the financial year 2015/16 and 2018/19
Benefit
Medical

2015/2016

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

R 2 669 979 385

R 2 963 708 265

R 2 425 666 802

R 2 538 271 685

Compensation

R 133 567 436

R 152 300 380

R 167 090 873

R 242 247 146

Pension

R 958 831 503

R 1 054 806 065

R 1 084 052 713

R 1 159 701 933

R 3 762 378 324

R 4 170 814 710

R 3 676 810 388

R 3 940 220 764

TOTAL

64% of the amount paid was in relations to medical claims, 29% pension and 7% compensation claims.
4.1 Key policy developments and legislative changes
The process to amend COIDA is still in progress. One of the matters addressed in the amendment is the
inclusion of Domestic workers.
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3. INFORMATION ON STRATEGIC OUTCOME 				
ORIENTED GOALS
3.1 Government Service Delivery Outcomes, Strategic Objective of the Department of Labour
and the Compensation Fund Strategic Outcomes and Objectives
Table 2: Alignment of CF Strategic Objectives to Department of Labour (DoL) Objectives and Service
Delivery Outcomes of Government
Government Service
Delivery Outcomes
Outcome 4: Decent
employment through
inclusive economic
growth.
Outcome 13: A
comprehensive,
responsive and
sustainable social
protection system.
Outcome 12: An
efficient, effective
and developmentoriented public
service.

DoL Strategic
Objectives
Key Result Area (KRA)
3: Protecting vulnerable
workers.
KRA 5: Strengthening
social protection.

KRA 8: Strengthening
the institutional
capacity of the
Department.

CF Strategic
Outcomes
Strengthening of
social security through
compensating for
occupational injuries
and diseases.

CF Strategic
Objectives
Provide faster, reliable
and accessible COID
services by 2020.

Strengthening the
institutional capacity of
the Fund.

Provide an effective
and efficient clientoriented support
services.

Of the 14 Government Service Delivery Outcomes linking up with the Medium-Term Strategic Framework (MTSF) 2014-19, there are three outcomes applicable to the Compensation Fund:
• Outcome 4: Decent employment through inclusive economic growth.
• Outcome 12: An efficient, effective and development-oriented public service.
• Outcome 13: A comprehensive, responsive and sustainable social protection system.
The Compensation Fund contribute towards the following Department of Labour’s Strategic Objectives:
• Objective (KRA 3): Protecting vulnerable workers.
• Strategic Objective 5 (KRA 5): Strengthening social protection.
• Strategic Objective 8 (KRA 8): Strengthening the institutional capacity of the Department.
The Compensation Fund is comprised of four programmes. The table below illustrates programmes of
the Fund per strategic objectives.
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3. INFORMATION ON STRATEGIC OUTCOME 				
ORIENTED GOALS Continues)
Table 3: CF Strategic Objectives and Responsible Programmes
CF Strategic Objectives

Responsible Programme

1. Provide effective and efficient
client-oriented support services.

Programme 1: Administration.

2. Provide faster, reliable and
Programme 2: COID Services.
accessible COID services by 2020.
Programme 3: Medical Benefits.
Programme 4: Orthotic and Rehabilitation Services.

4. PERFORMANCE PER PROGRAMME INCLUDING 			
EXPENDITURE Continues)
Table 4: Summary of performance per Strategic Objective and Programme
CF Strategic
Objectives

Responsible
Programme

Planned
Indictors

Achieved

Not
Achieved

Overall
Overall
Achievement % Achievement
(Programme)
% (Strategic
Objective)

1.
Provide
effective
and efficient
client-oriented
support
services.

Programme 1:
Administration.

3

1

2

33%

2.
Provide faster,
reliable and
accessible
COID services
by 2020.

Programme 2:
COID Services.

3

2

1

67%

Programme 3:
Medical Benefits.

2

2

0

100%

Programme 4:
Orthotic and
Rehabilitation
Services.

1

1

0

9

6

3

67%

33%

Total Indicators
Overall Performance %
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33%

83%
100%

67%

67%
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4. PERFORMANCE PER PROGRAMME INCLUDING 			
EXPENDITURE (Continues)
Table 5: Summary of Expenditure per Programme
Programme /
activity/objective

2018/19

2017/18

Budget
Actual
(Over)/Under
Adjustments Expenditure Expenditure

Budget

Actual

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Programme 1:
Administration

2 357 627

3 869 336

(1 511 709)

1 431 175

3 162 586

(1 731 411)

Programme 2:
COID Services

1 364 860

2 271 573

(906 714)

4 711 337

6 698 490

(1 987 153)

Programme 3:
Medical Benefits

2 772 988

4 856 527

(2 083 539)

3 164 541

4 864 952

(1 700 411)

42 450

26 653

15 797

-

-

-

6 537 925

11 024 089

(4 486 165)

9 307 053

14 726 028

(5 418 975)

Fair Value
adjustment

-

3 585 815

3 585 815

1 234 684

(2 845 733)

(2 845 733)

Actuarial
Adjustments

-

5 719 000

5 719 000

-

(4 983 000)

(4 983 000)

Gain (loss) on
disposal of assets

-

297

297

-

(85)

(85)

Share of surplus
(deficit) from
associates

-

-

-

Programme 4:
Orthotic and
Rehabilitation
Services
Total Expenditure

24

-
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4. PERFORMANCE PER PROGRAMME INCLUDING 			
EXPENDITURE (Continues)
4.1 Programme 1: Administration
Programme Purpose
The purpose of the programme is to provide an effective and efficient client-oriented support services
to the entity.
Programme Description:
• Compensation Commissioner: To compensate workers and/or their family members for
occupational injuries and diseases sustained by the worker while on duty.
• Executive Support: To provide executive and administrative in support of the Office of the
Commissioner.
• Internal Audit: To provide an independent and objective assurance service in the Fund.
• Risk Management: To provide risk and integrity management services.
• Anti-Corruption and Integrity Management: To provide anti-corruption and integrity
management services.
• Office of the Chief Operations Officer: To strategically oversee the management of 		
operations services.
• Chief Financial Officer: To provide financial management services to the Fund.
• Corporate Services: To provide corporate services to the Fund.

4.1.1 Strategic objectives and objective statement: Administration

Table 6: Strategic Objective: Administration
Strategic Objective

Provide effective and efficient client-oriented support services.

Objective Statement

To provide value adding services to clients through Human Resources, Risk Management,
Financial Services and Audit Services.

Baseline

• R33 billion proceeds from investments.
• 70% achievement of the Audit Plan (based on the average of 2013/14-81% and 2014/1561%).
• Risk Management maturity level 2.
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4. PERFORMANCE PER PROGRAMME INCLUDING 			
EXPENDITURE (Continues)
Table 7: Performance by Programme 1
Programme 1: Administration

Strategic objective

Performance
Indicator

Actual
Achievement
2017/2018

Planned Target

Deviation
from planned
target to Actual
Achievement
2018/2019

Actual Achievement
2018/2019

Comment on
Deviations

Risk Management
Provide effective
and efficient clientoriented support
services.

The Fund’s Risk
Management
maturity level
increased to 4 by
31 March 2019.

Achieved

Percentage
implementation
of the approved
annual risk-based
audit plan.

Achieved

The
Compensation
Fund’s Risk
Management
maturity level
increased to 3.7.

The Fund’s Risk
Management
maturity Risk
level increased
to level 4 by 31
March 2019.

Not Achieved

85% of projects
on the riskbased audit plan
implemented by
31 March 2019.

Achieved

Investment
return at a rate
of CPI+2% at 31
March 2019.

Not Achieved

The Fund’s Risk
Management maturity
level increased to level
3.5 by 31 March 2019.

Underachievement
of 0.5.

Previous
maturity
assessment
was based
on the Risk
Management
unit’s
performance
instead of
the whole
organisation,
from first line
of defence to
third line of
defence.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Underachievement
of 5.1%.

Weak
economic
growth
environment
contributed to
poor market
performance.

Internal Audit
Provide effective
and efficient clientoriented support
services.

80% of
cumulative
projects on the
risk-based audit
plan implemented
by 31 March
2018.

85% of projects on the
risk-based audit plan
implemented by 31
March 2019.

Financial Management
Provide effective
and efficient clientoriented support
services.

Percentage
annual increase on
investment returns
by 31 March of the
current financial
year compared
to the previous
financial year.

Achieved
12.6%
investment return
achieved.

Investment return
at a rate of CPI+2%
at 31 March 2019
(4.7%+2%=6.7%) 1.6%.
(R1,063m) /R64,835m)
The investment return
(output) achieved is
below CPI by 3.1% and
below the actual target
by 5.1%.

4.1.2

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

The following strategy will be implemented in order to improve areas of under-performance:
• A request for an independent assessment of the maturity level has been made to Internal
Audit. The outcome of the assessment will determine the level of risk maturity. An opening
meeting has taken place to outline the scope and mature of the assessment. The assessment
is expected to be finalised by 31 July 2019.
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4. PERFORMANCE PER PROGRAMME INCLUDING 			
EXPENDITURE (Continues)
4.1.3

Linking performance with budgets

Table 8: Linking Programme 1 performance with budgets
2018/2019
Programme
/ activity/
objective

Budget

R’000

2017/2018
Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

Budget

R’000

R’000

R’000

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

R’000

R’000

Administration

2 357 627

3 869 336

(1 511 709)

1 431 175

3 162 586

(1 731 411)

Total

2 357 627

3 869 336

(1 511 709)

1 431 175

3 162 586

(1 731 411)

The 2018/19 revised budget for the programme administration is R2.4 billion. The programme recorded
a final expenditure of R3.9 billion, which represent a 64% overspending for the 2018/19 financial year.
33% of the Annual Performance Plan targets were achieved by the programme.
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4. PERFORMANCE PER PROGRAMME INCLUDING 			
EXPENDITURE (Continues)
4.2 Programme 2: COID Services
Programme Purpose
To administer compensation claims, medical adjudication, accounts and customer care.
Programme Description:
Compensation Benefits: To monitor compensation benefits services.
Employer Services: To provide registration and assessment services of employers.
Treasury, investment and actuarial services: To provide strategic management of the Fund’s treasury,
investment and actuarial services.
4.2.1 Strategic objectives and objective statement: COID Services
Table 9: Strategic objectives: COID Services
Strategic Objective

Provide faster, reliable and accessible COID Services by 2020.

Objective Statement

Promote rehabilitation, re-integration and return to work of injured and diseased workers
and contribute to various schemes designed to decrease unemployment, including investing
mandated funds in socially responsible investments.

Baseline

• All claims were paid within 45 days.
• 481 853 employers assessed.
• 60 working days to process claims for payment.
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4. PERFORMANCE PER PROGRAMME INCLUDING 			
EXPENDITURE (Continues)
Table 10: Performance of Programme 2
Programme 2: COID Services
Strategic
Objective

Performance
Indicator

Actual Achievement
2017/2018

Planned
Target
2018/2019

Actual
Achievement
2018/2019

Deviation from
planned target to
Actual Achievement
2018/2019

Comment on
Deviations

Provide
faster,
reliable and
accessible
COID
Services by
2020.

Percentage
of approved
benefits
paid within 5
working days.

Achieved

98% of
approved
benefits
paid within 5
working days,
yearly.

Achieved
98% (R
3,864,064,683.41
of
R 3,962,853,774.76)
of approved
benefits paid
within 5 working
days, yearly.

N/A

Not applicable.

Percentage
of active
registered
employers
assessed
annually
by 31
March 2019
(excluding
exempted
employers).

Not Achieved

75% of active
registered
employers
assessed
annually.

Not Achieved

Underachievement of
20%.

Employer’s nonsubmission of
ROE’s.

Percentage
of claims
adjudicated
within 40
working days
of receipt.

Achieved

100% (R3.6 billion)
of approved benefits
paid within 5 working
days.

45% of the annual
target was achieved.
[172 703 active
employers assessed/
386 083.
(75% of the total
active registered
employers on the
databank = 386
083/514 777*100)].

95% (175 624 of the
184 100) registered
compensation claims
were adjudicated
within 60 working
days.
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55% (219 050
of 401 536) of
active registered
employers
assessed annually.

Definition of
active registered
employers not
fully implemented
due to current
APP limitations.
Employer
follow up and
enforcement
through IES not
effective.

90% of claims
adjudicated
within 40
working days
of receipt.

Achieved
94% (146 664 of
156 223) of claims
adjudicated within
40 working days of
receipt.

Overachievement of
4%.

Monitoring
reports were
used to
proactively alert
processing
centres of
received claims.
Implementation
of standard
operating
procedures.
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4. PERFORMANCE PER PROGRAMME INCLUDING 			
EXPENDITURE (Continues)
4.2.2 Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance
The following strategies will be implemented in order to improve areas of underperformance:
• Referral of non-submitting employers to IES for follow up; and
• 2019/20 APP reviewed to support full implementation of the definition of Active Registered
Employers.
4.2.3 Linking performance with budgets
Table 11: Linking Programme 2 performance with budgets
Programme
/ activity/
objective

2018/2019
Budget
R’000

2017/2018
Actual
Expenditure
R’000

(Over)/Under
Expenditure
R’000

Budget
R’000

Actual
Expenditure
R’000

(Over)/Under
Expenditure
R’000

COID Services

1 364 860

2 271 573

(906 714)

4 711 337

6 698 490

(1 987 153)

Total

1 364 860

2 271 573

(906 714)

4 711 337

6 698 490

(1 987 153)

The 2018/19 revised budget for the programme: COID Services is R1.4 billion, and the programme
recorded a final expenditure of R2.3 million which represent a 66% overspending for the 2018/19
financial year. 67% of the APP targets was achieved by the programme.

30

Compensation Fund - Annual Report 2018/19

PART B: PEFORMANCE INFORMATION

4. PERFORMANCE PER PROGRAMME INCLUDING 			
EXPENDITURE (Continues)
Programme 3: Medical Benefits
Programme Purpose
To provide strategic support and medical expertise to claims processing.
Programme Description
All provinces are responsible for the provision of the following services within their scope of work:
• Medical Services: To provide research and best practice standards regarding occupational
diseases and injuries to support the Fund’s compensation and assessment services.
• Medical Claims: To manage the adjudication of the medical claims and the processing of
medical accounts.
4.3.1 Strategic Objective and Objective Statement: Medical Benefits
Table 12: Strategic objectives: Medical Benefits
Strategic Objective

Provide faster, reliable and accessible COID Services by 2020.

Objective Statement

To process compensation benefits and medical expenses for injured and diseased workers
and promote rehabilitation, re-integration and return to work policy for injured and diseased
workers.

Baseline

No baseline.
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4. PERFORMANCE PER PROGRAMME INCLUDING 			
EXPENDITURE (Continues)
Table 13: Performance of Programme 3
Programme 3: Medical Benefits
Strategic
Objective

Performance
Indicator

Actual
Achievement
2017/2018

Planned
Target
2018/2019

Actual Achievement
2018/2019

Deviation from
planned target to
Actual Achievement
2018/2019

Comment on
Deviations

Provide faster,
reliable and
accessible COID
Services by
2020.

Percentage
of medical
invoices
finalised within
60 working
days of receipt.

Achieved

85% of
medical
invoices
finalised
within 60
working days
of receipt.

Achieved

Overachievement of
8%.

Invoices received
had complete
supporting
documents.

Percentage
of preauthorisations
responded
to within 10
working days
on previously
finalised cases.

Not Achieved

85% of preauthorisations
responded
to within 10
working days
on previously
finalised
cases.

Achieved

4.3.2

93% (699
441 of 751
364) medical
invoices
received were
finalised within
60 working
days of
receipt.

79% (1 488)
of the 1 894
received preauthorisation
requests were
responded
to within 10
working days.

93% (867 381 of
934 742) of medical
invoices finalised
within 60 working days
of receipt.

93% (1 539 of 1 657)
of pre-authorisations
responded to within
10 working days on
previously finalised
cases.

Continuous
online notification
on outstanding
medical reports

Overachievement of
8%.

Provincial support
was given to
provinces that
were understaffed by sharing
the work.
Effective
implementation
of the standard
operating
procedures.
Appointment of
new staff.

Linking performance with budgets

Table 14: Linking Programme 3 performance with budgets
Programme
/ activity/
objective

2018/2019
Budget
R’000

2017/2018
Actual
Expenditure
R’000

(Over)/Under
Expenditure
R’000

Budget
R’000

Actual
Expenditure
R’000

(Over)/Under
Expenditure
R’000

Medical
Benefits

2 772 988

4 856 527

(2 083 539)

3 164 541

4 864 952

(1 700 411)

Total

2 772 988

4 856 527

(2 083 539)

3 164 541

4 864 952

(1 700 411)

The 2018/19 revised budget for the programme: Medical Benefits is R2.8 billion and the programme
recorded a final expenditure of R4.9 billion which represent 75% overspending for the 2018/19 financial
year. 100% of the APP targets was achieved by the programme.
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4. PERFORMANCE PER PROGRAMME INCLUDING 			
EXPENDITURE (Continues)
4.3 Programme 4: Orthotic and Rehabilitation Services
Programme Purpose
To provide support in the Orthotic and Rehabilitation services for the Compensation Fund.
Programme Description
• Labour Activation Programmes: To provide strategic leadership and guidance on the 		
implementation of the labour activation programmes.
• Orthotics and Prosthetic: To manage and advise on the Orthotics and Prosthetic services.
• Rehabilitation and re-integration: To develop, implement and monitor a rehabilitation 		
programme for injured employees and advise the Compensation Fund on all matters 		
pertaining to the rehabilitation of injured employees.
4.4.1 Strategic Objective and Objective Statement: Orthotic and Rehabilitation Services
Strategic Objective
Provide faster, reliable and accessible COID Services by 2020.
Table
15: Strategic objectives:
Orthotic and Rehabilitation Services
Objective Statement

To process compensation benefits and medical expenses for injured and diseased workers and
promote rehabilitation, re-integration and return to work policy for injured and diseased workers.

Baseline

No baseline.

Table 16: Performance of Programme 4
Programme 4: Orthotic and Rehabilitation Services
Strategic
Objective

Performance
Indicator

Actual Achievement
2017/2018

Planned
Target
2018/2019

Actual Achievement
2018/2019

Deviation from
planned target to
Actual Achievement
2018/2019

Comment on
Deviations

Provide
faster,
reliable
and
accessible
COID
services
by 2020.

Percentage
of compliant
requests
for assistive
devices
responded
to within 15
working days
receipt.

Not Achieved

85% of
compliant
assistive
devices
requests
responded
to within 15
working days
of receipt.

Achieved

Overachievement
of 8%.

The over performance
is due to improved
proccesses within
the Provinces and
Provincial training
conducted by Head
Office.

75% (983 of 1 307)
of requests received
for prosthetic and
assistive devices
responded to within
15 working days.

93% (1079 of 1160)
of compliant assistive
devices requests
responded to within
15 working days of
receipt.

4.4.2 Linking performance with budgets
Table 17: Linking Programme 4 performance with budgets
Programme / activity/
objective

Total

2018/2019
Budget
R’000

2017/2018
Actual
Expenditure
R’000

(Over)/Under
Expenditure
R’000

Budget

Actual
Expenditure
R’000

R’000

(Over)/Under
Expenditure
R’000

42 450

26 653

15 797

-

-

-

42 450

26 653

15 797

-

-

-
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4. PERFORMANCE PER PROGRAMME INCLUDING 			
EXPENDITURE (Continues)
The 2018/19 revised budget for the programme: Orthotic and Rehabilitation Services is R42 million, and
the programme recorded a final expenditure of R27 million which represent a 37% underspending for the
2018/19 financial year. This is a new programme which does not contain any historic expenditure data.
100% of the APP targets was achieved by the programme.
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5. REVENUE COLLECTION
Table 18: Revenue collection
2019
Sources of Revenue

Total Revenue from Employer
Assessments

2018

Adjusted
Estimate

Actual
Amount
Collected

(Over)/
Under
Collection

Estimate

Actual
Amount
Collected

(Over)/Under
Collection

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

9 737 575

8 539 915

1 197 427

7 945 282

6 972 230

973 052

Total Revenue from Interest and
Penalties

400 000

762 323

-362 323

646 440

335 972

310 468

Total Revenue from Investments

4 761 553

4 654 203

107 350

5 903 555

4 355 754

1 547 801

Rental Received Building

35 201

1 038

34 163

-

1 038

-1 038

Revenue from exempted Employers

-

41 361

-41 361

-

36 165

-36 165

Miscellaneous

-

481

-481

26 014

17

25 997

14 934 329

13 999 321

935 008

14 521 291

11 701 176

2 820 115

Total

The 2018/19 revised budget estimates for revenue is R14.9 billion and recorded a final actual collection
of R13.9 billion, which represent 93% for the 2018/19 financial year.

6. CAPITAL INVESTMENT
Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan
Table 19: Infrastructure
2018/2019
Programme /
activity/objective

Budget
R’000

2017/2018
Actual
Expenditure
R’000

(Over)/Under
Expenditure
R’000

Budget
R’000

Actual
Expenditure
R’000

(Over)/Under
Expenditure
R’000

Capital

82 251

30 987

51 950

24 491

87 454

-53 758

Total

82 251

30 987

51 950

24 491

87 454

-53 758

The 2018/19 original budget is R82 million and recorded a final actual expenditure of R30 million,
which represent 36% spending for the 2018/19 financial year.
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PART C: GOVERNANCE

1. INTRODUCTION
Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by which public entities are directed, controlled
and held to account. In addition to legislative requirements based on a public entity’s enabling legislation
and the Companies Act, corporate governance with regard to public entities is applied through the precepts of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and run in tandem with the principles contained in
the King Report on Governance (King IV).

2. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES
Table 20: Portfolio Committees
NO

DATE OF THE MEETING

COMMITTEE

INFORMATION REQUESTED & AGENDA (Subject)

1.

25 April 2018

Labour Portfolio Committee

Budget Review 2018 (including Strategic Plan and Annual
Performance Plan).

2.

23 May 2018

Labour Portfolio Committee

Update by the DoL on the Action Plan of the Compensation Fund.

3.

13 June 2018

Labour Portfolio Committee

Briefing by the DoL on the Action Plan of the Compensation Fund.

4.

29 August 2018

Labour Portfolio Committee

Briefing on fourth quarterly performance of DoL and its Entities.

5.

12 September 2018

Labour Portfolio Committee

Briefing by the DoL on the Annual Reports of the following entities
(Budget Review & Recommendations Report process):
 Compensation Fund;
 CCMA; and
 Productivity SA.

6.

24 October 2018

Labour Portfolio Committee

Briefing by the DoL on the Action Plan of the CF in view of the audit
outcomes by the AGSA.

7.

5 December 2018

Labour Portfolio Committee

Briefing on the first quarterly performance of the DoL and its entities.

8.

20 February 2019

Labour Portfolio Committee

Briefing on the first and second quarterly performance of the DoL and
its entities

3. EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY
The 2018/19 Annual Performance Plan of the Compensation Fund was approved on the 28th of February
2018 by the Executive Authority. The overall performance of the Compensation Fund against the set
targets/ pre-determined objectives as indicated in the APP was evaluated by the Department of Labour
on a quarterly basis.

4. THE COMPENSATION BOARD
4.1 Introduction
The Compensation Board is established in terms of Section 10 of the Compensation for Occupational
Injuries and Diseases Act, 1993 (Act No 130 of 1993) as amended; which is an advisory Board to the
Minister.
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4. THE COMPENSATION BOARD (Continues)
4.2 The role of the Board is as follows:
• To advise the Minister on matters of policy arising out of or in connection with the application
of compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act, 1993 (Act no 130 of 1993) as
amended;
• The Board may advise on the nature and extent of the benefits that can be payable to 		
employees or dependents of employees, including the adjustments of existing pensions;
• The Board may advise the Minister on the amendment of the Act; and
• The Board may, at the request of the Director-General, advise the Minister regarding the
performance of particular functions.
4.3 Advisory Board Charter
The Board has made the following progress in complying with the charter:
• The Board deliberated on the CF quarterly reports and provide inputs;
• Annual medical tariffs were increased; and
• Annual benefits were increased.
4.4 Composition of the Advisory Board
The Minister appoints the Advisory Board as per Section 10 of Compensation for COIDA. The Board of
the Compensation Fund began its four-year term on 1 January 2018. Their term expires on 31 December
2021.
Table 22: Composition of Advisory Board
NAME

DESIGNATION

CONSTITUENCIES

Ms T. Nene-Shezi

Chairperson

Government

Mr P. Matshidze

Principal Board Member

Rand Mutual Assurance

Mr E. Hadzhi

Alternate Member

Rand Mutual Assurance

Ms N. Manyonga

Principal Board Member

Federated Mutual Assurance

Mr G. McIntosh

Alternate Member

Federated Mutual Assurance

Mr S. Sobuwa

Principal Board Member

Health Professionals Council of South Africa

Ms M. van Niekerk

Principal Board Member

Health Professionals Council of South Africa

Dr K Letlape

Alternate Board Member

Health Professionals Council of South Africa

Dr T. Balfour

Principal Board Member

Organised Business
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4. THE COMPENSATION BOARD (Continues)
Table 22: Composition of Advisory Board
NAME

DESIGNATION

CONSTITUENCIES

Mr F. Xaba

Principal Board Member

Organised Business

Mr K. Cowley

Principal Board Member

Organised Business

Dr O. Mphofu

Alternate Board Member

Organised Business

Ms S. Leyden

Alternate Board Member

Organised Business

Ms E. Kula

Alternate Board Member

Organised Business

Dr B. Kistnasamy

Principal Board Member

Government

Dr S.C. Tshabalala

Principal Board Member

Government

Dr N. Mtshali

Alternate Board Member

Government

Mr T. Szana

Principal Board Member

Government

Ms J. Bodibe

Principal Board Member

Organised Labour

Mr S. Tsiane

Principal Board Member

Organised Labour

Mr S. Sibitane

Principal Board Member

Organised Labour

Mr J. Williemiec

Principal Board Member

Organised Labour

Mr A. Letshele

Principal Board Member

Organised Labour

Mr G. Manganyi

Alternate Board Member

Organised Labour

• Attendance of the Board Meetings
Table 23: Attendance of Board Meetings
Committee

No. of Meetings

No. of Members

Board

8

26

Name of Members

5

Ms T. Nene Shezi*

0

Mr E. Hadzhi

3

Ms M. van Niekerk

0

Dr O. Mphofu

6

Dr T. Balfour

0

Ms S. Lyden

0

Dr K. Letlape

1

Mr G. Manganyi

7

Mr J. Wiliemiec

7

Mr S. Sibitane

1

Mr L. Moni

7

Mr K. Cowley

8

Mr F. Xaba

1

Ms E. Kula

8

Mr S. Tsiane

8

Mr A. Letshele

8

Ms J. Bodibe

5

Dr B. Kistnasamy

7

Mr T. Szana

3

Mr G. McIntosh

4

Mr P. Matshidze

1

Mr S. Sobuwa

8

Dr S.C. Tshabalala

3

Ms N. Manyonga

0

Dr N. Mtshali

0

Mr E. Vlok
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4. THE COMPENSATION BOARD (Continues)
• Outgoing Board members and their designation
None
• New appointments
None
• Resignations
There were no resignations and dismissal of the Advisory Board members recorded during the
financial year.
• Outgoing Board members and their designation
Not applicable
4.5 Committees
Since a Board cannot attend to all the matters effectively it was recommended that the following
committees be established:
• Strategic & Operations Committee (StratOps);
• Investment Committee (IC);
• Assessment & Benefits Committee (ABC); and
• Technical Committee on Occupational Injuries and Diseases (TCOID).
• Strategic & Operations Committee
Table 24: Committee Members
Committee

No. of Meetings

No. of Members

StratOps

3

8

40

Name of Members

3

*Mr F. Xaba

3

Mr S. Tsiane

3

Mr J. Wilimiec

2

Mr A. Letshele

0

Mr S. Sibitane

3

Mr E. Hadzhi

2

Mr K. Cowley

2

Ms N. Manyonga
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4. THE COMPENSATION BOARD (Continues)
• Investment Committee
Table 25: Investment Committee
Committee

No. of Meetings

No. of Members

Investment

4

6

Name of Members

4

*Mr S. Tsiane

4

Ms J. Bodibe

4

Mr J. Wiliemiec

1

Mr K. Cowley

3

Mr F. Xaba

3

Mr T. Szana

• Assessment & Benefits Committee
Table 26: Assessment & Benefits Committee
Committee

No. of Meetings

No. of Members

ABC

3

8

Name of Members

3

*Ms J. Bodibe

1

Dr T. Balfour

3

Mr S. Tsiane

1

Mr S. Sobuwa

3

Mr A. Letshele

3

Mr G. McIntosh

2

Mr E. Hadzhi

0

Mr S. Sibitana

• Technical Committee on Occupational Injuries and Diseases (TCOID)
Table 27: TCOID
Committee

No. of Meetings

No. of Members

TCOID

4

9

Name of Members

3

*Dr T. Balfour

2

Ms M. van Niekerk

2

Mr G. McIntosh

4

Ms J. Bodibe

3

Mr A. Letshele

4

Mr S. Sibitane

2

Dr S.C. Tshabalala

3

Mr K. Cowley

0

Dr B. Kistnasamy
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND RISK COMMITTEE
Risk Management Policy and Strategy
The Fund has an approved Risk Management Policy and Strategy in place, which are in line with the
applicable prescripts and best practices. This ensures relevance and keeping abreast with changes
in the operating environment. The documents articulate the Fund’s Risk Management philosophy and
provides guidance to management and staff on the implementation of Risk Management.
Risk Assessments
Management has undertaken a fully-fledged review of the Fund’s risk profile to ensure a more accurate
risk identification and mitigation process. This exercise resulted in classification of 6 principal risks namely,
strategic, operational, core business, investment and actuarial, technology and legal and regulatory
compliance.
All the risks were continuously monitored by the Risk Committee in a bid to ensure that management
implements risk mitigations to keep the risks within the approved risk appetite and tolerance levels and
provide a reasonable assurance on the Fund’s ability to achieve its objectives.
To inculcate the culture of Risk Management, the Fund’s management and staff received continuous
training through the monitoring meetings and awareness workshops.
Governance
The Director-General (DG) continues to set the tone for sound Risk Management practices through
approval of the Risk Management Policy and delegating Risk Management responsibilities to the
Commissioner. The Risk Committee (RC) is charged with oversight responsibilities over the Risk
Management processes and systems within the Fund.
The Risk Committee has fulfilled its roles and responsibilities as outlined in its approved Terms of
Reference. To this end, the RC has, on a continuous basis, provided the Ministry, the DG, the CF
Advisory Board and the Commissioner with advice on significant and imminent risks and fraud related
issues affecting the Fund. The Audit Committee also receives regular risk reports that enable them to
provide oversight on the effectiveness of the entire system and process of Risk Management in the Fund.
Management
Management is accountable to the Director-General for designing and implementing internal controls.
This is in pursuit of managing risks within their respective units to acceptable risk appetite and tolerance
levels, ensuring achievement of the set targets and objectives.

.
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6. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT
The Internal control unit is responsible for audit coordination, the audit action plan, responding to audit
communication of findings, financial misconduct investigations and compliance management. The
Internal Control Unit currently reports to the CFO, and has been fully capacitated in the current year as
per the approved structure
Audit Coordination:
A request for an information register is in place and implemented to monitor and track all incoming
requests for information from the AGSA and the submissions by management. All outstanding requests
for information were followed up with management and submitted to the AGSA. Weekly statistics of the
status of Requests for Information (RFI’s), versus the submissions were prepared and reported to the
Audit Steering Committee.
Ongoing engagements between Management and the AGSA were facilitated regularly to resolve any
misunderstandings.
Audit Communication of Findings:
84 Communication of findings from AGSA were received and coordinated accordingly to date.
Engagements between Management and the AGSA were facilitated through the Audit Steering Committee
prior the issuing of any Management reports.
Financial Misconduct Investigations:
A total of 159 cases of alleged irregular expenditure were reported, 158 cases are still under investigation
and 1 case was de-recognised and incorporated into the financial misconduct register during the financial
year.
A total of 132 cases of alleged fruitless and wasteful expenditure were reported, 130 cases are still under
investigation and 1 case was de-recognised and incorporated into the financial misconduct register
during the financial year.
Three Financial Management Committee (FINMAC) meetings were held during the financial year and 27
cases were presented. Recommendations from FINMAC to re-investigate cases to obtain more evidence,
where cases were referred to units such as Auxiliary and Employees Relations were implemented in the
current financial year.
Compliance Management
The Compliance Register was developed during the financial year. The register incorporates Generally
Recognised Accounting Principles (GRAP), Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), Treasury
Regulations and COIDA. During the financial year the PFMA and Treasury Regulations Compliance
Register were implemented and GRAP and COIDA will be implemented by December 2019.
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7. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES
Key activities and objectives of the Internal Audit:
Internal Audit is established in terms of Section 51(1) (ii) of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA),
Act 1 of 1999, as amended, read with the Treasury Regulations 27.1 and 27.2. The sections state that
“the Accounting Authority must ensure that the entity has and maintained a system of Internal Audit
under the control and direction of the Audit Committee, complying with and operating in accordance with
the regulations and instructions prescribed in terms of section 76 and 77 of the PFMA.”
The key objectives of Internal Audit are to assist the Fund to accomplish its established objectives by
providing reasonable assurance on whether:
• Governance process is effective by establishing and preserving values, setting goals, 		
monitoring activities, performance, and defining the measures of accountability;
• Risk Management system is adequate, effective, and efficient;
• System of internal control is adequate, effective, and efficient;
• Integrity and reliability of financial information is maintained;
• Resources are utilised economically, effectively, and efficiently;
• Assets are safeguarded; and
• Rules, regulations, policies, procedures, and laws are complied with.
Key activities include:
• Development of a three-year rolling and Annual Audit Plan and the Operational Plan, which is
approved by the Commissioner and the Audit Committee;
• Execute the approved Internal Audit Plan;
• Report quarterly to the Management and the Audit Committee;
• Perform secretarial functions to the Audit Committee;
• Review the Internal Audit and Audit Committee Charters;
• Review Internal Audit policies and procedures;
• Monitor compliance to the procedures, standards, and the code of ethics; and
• Staff training and development to ensure that the Internal Audit officials are competent.
Specify summary of audit work done:
• The Internal Audit and Audit Committee Charters were reviewed and approved.
• The external quality assessment implementation plan as required in the IIA standards was
conducted.
• The Directorate independently executed audit projects based on the approved Risk Based
Annual Plan and provided practical recommendations.
• The reports were communicated to responsible management, the Commissioner, Audit 		
Steering Committee, and the Audit Committee.
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7. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES (Continues)
The details of executed projects are provided in the table below:
Table 30: Executed Projects
No

Internal Audit Area

Number of Findings

Report Opinion Rating

1

Performance Information Q4

5

Partially adequate and ineffective

2

Draft Annual Financial Statement Review

1

Inadequate

3

POPI Readiness

7

Partially adequate and ineffective

4

Employee Relations

14

Partially adequate and ineffective

5

Annual Report Review

5

Partially adequate and ineffective

6

Performance Information Q1

5

Partially adequate and ineffective

7

Performance Information Q2

6

Partially adequate and ineffective

8

Annual Performance Plan Review 2019-2020

0

Partially adequate and partially
effective

9

CF Action Plan Phase 2 Sept

4

Partially adequate and ineffective

10

Risk Management

14

Inadequate

11

Performance Audit - Skills Audit and Change
Management

23

Inadequate

12

Annual Financial Statements Adjustments Review

0

Adequate and effective

13

Medical Payments Data Analytics

6

Partially adequate and ineffective

14

Performance Information Q3

9

Partially adequate and ineffective

15

Standard Operating Procedures

6

Partially adequate and ineffective

16

Information Communication Technology (ICT) Project
Reviews - New Claims Management System

5

Partially adequate and ineffective

Total

110

Table 31: Follow-up Audit
No

Internal Audit Area

Number of
Findings per
the Original
Report

Report Opinion Rating

Findings
Resolved

Partially
Resolved

Not
Resolved

1

Performance Management
Follow-up

11

Partially adequate and
ineffective

3

4

4

2

Subsistence and Travel
Follow-up

7

Partially adequate and
ineffective

4

1

2

3

User Account and Change
Management Follow-up

10

Partially adequate and
ineffective

5

1

4

4

Overtime Follow-up

15

Partially adequate and
partially effective

12

2

1

5

Debt Collection Follow-up

6

Partially adequate and
ineffective

2

0

4

6

Umehluko Follow-up

13

Partially adequate and
ineffective

7

2

4

33

10

19

Total

62

Based on follow-ups conducted, the Fund has resolved 53% of IA findings.
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7. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES (Continues)
Table 32: Status of Auditor-General Findings verified by Internal Audit
No

Internal Audit Area

Number of
Findings
per the
Original
Report

Report
Opinion
Rating

Findings
Resolved

Partially
Resolved

Not
Resolved

Target removed/
Year-end
Closure

1

Auditor-General
Verification as at 18
May 2018

38

Critical

19

6

8

5

2

Auditor-General
Verification as at 30
January 2019

19

Critical

11

2

3

3

30

8

11

8

Total

57

Key activities and objectives of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was established in terms of the PFMA and Treasury Regulations to assist the
Accounting Authority in fulfilling its oversight responsibility. The duties of the Committee are broadly
defined in Section 27.1 of the Treasury Regulations.
The objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the Executive and Accounting Authorities in fulfilling
their oversight responsibilities for:
• The integrity of the Fund’s financial statements;
• The Fund’s compliance with legislation, legal and regulatory requirements;
• The auditor’s qualifications and independence, and
• The performance of the Fund’s Internal Audit function and external auditors.
Audit Committee Activities
The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include oversight over the financial reporting process, the
system of internal control, Risk Management, the audit process, and the monitoring of compliance with
laws, regulations and the Fund’s code of ethics.
Internal Control
• Consider the effectiveness of the internal control systems, including information technology,
security and control.
• Understand the scope of internal and external auditor’s review of internal control over 		
financial reporting and obtain reports on significant findings and recommendations, together
with management’s responses.
• Assess whether the Fund assets have been properly safeguarded and used.
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7. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES (Continues)
Internal Audit
• Review the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function.
• Review charter, plans, activities, staffing and organisational structure of the Internal Audit
• Approve the risk-based three-year rolling plan and the Annual Audit Plan.
• Review the Capacity Building and Training Strategy within the Internal Audit function.
• Monitor the work of the Internal Audit against the Annual Audit Plan.
• Review and evaluate the reports and results of the work undertaken by the Internal Audit and
the implementation of follow up action required.
• Ensure that duplication of effort is avoided through an effective partnership/combined 		
assurance between the Internal Audit and the office of the Auditor-General.
• Review compliance with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal
Auditing and Code of Ethics of the Institute of Internal Auditors.
External Audit (Auditor-General)
Review the effectiveness of the external audit function and through the following:
• Review the audit plan of the Auditor-General (AG) and comment on the scope and approach
and their co-ordination with Internal Audit.
• Review any accounting and auditing concerns arising from the internal and external audit.
• Make recommendations regarding follow up work, arising out of reports and queries raised by
the AG.
• Discuss the extent of the external auditor’s proposed audit coverage.
• Discuss concerns about the nature, extent and frequency of management’s assessment
of the accounting and control systems in place to prevent and detect fraud, with the external
auditor.
• Review the extent of the external auditor’s planned reliance on the work of Internal Auditors.
Risk Management
• Review the Fund’s risk profile on an annual basis.
• Ensure that an enterprise Risk Management system is in place and that Internal Audit 		
evaluates and reports on the effectiveness of the process.
• Review that the Fraud Prevention Plan is implemented to prevent and detect fraud.
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7. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES (Continues)
Compliance
• Review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations
and the results of management’s investigation and follow-up (including disciplinary action) of
any instances of non-compliance.
• Review the process for communicating the code of conduct to the Fund’s personnel and for
monitoring compliance therewith.
Management Accounts and Annual Financial Statements
• Review the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of the financial information provided to 		
management and other users of such information and annually review the Annual Financial
Statements and recommend its approval to the Director-General.
• Review significant accounting and reporting issues, including complex or unusual 		
transactions and highly judgmental areas, and recent professional and regulatory 		
pronouncements, and understand their impact on the financial statements.
• Review the annual financial statements and consider whether they are complete, consistent
with information known to committee members and reflect appropriate accounting principles.
• Review other sections of the Annual Report and related regulatory matters before release and
consider the accuracy and the completeness of the information.
Reporting
• Regularly report to the Accounting/Executive Authority about committee activities and issues
that arise with respect to the quality or integrity of the Fund’s financial statements, the 		
compliance with legal or regulatory requirements, and the performance of the Internal Audit
function.
• Provide an open avenue of communication between Internal Audit, the external auditors,
management and the Accounting Authority.
• Report annually to the Executive Authority, describing the committee’s composition, 		
responsibilities and how they were discharged, and any other information required by rules.
• Review any other reports the Fund issues that relate to committee responsibilities.
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7. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES (Continues)
Ethics
• Monitor the ethical conduct of the Fund, its executives and senior officials.
• Review any statements on ethical standards or requirements for the Fund and assist in 		
developing such standards and requirements.
• Identify any violations of ethical conduct.
• Make recommendations on any potential conflict of interest or questionable situations of a
material nature.
Other Responsibilities
•Review and assess the adequacy of the Audit Committee charter annually.
•Evaluate the committee’s and individual members’ performance on a regular basis.
•Institute and oversee special investigations as needed.
•Confirm annually that all responsibilities outlined in this charter have been carried

8. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Fund has an approved compliance management policy and framework in place. During the year
under review, the Fund identified top legislation that are core to its operations and developed compliance
Risk Management plans (CRMPs). This is to safeguard that appropriate controls are put in place to
ensure compliance and continuous monitoring is taking place.

9. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
The Fund, under Directorate Anti-Corruption and Integrity Management, has put in place fraud prevention
initiatives which include fraud risk assessments, ethics risk assessments as well as fraud awareness
training workshops. These initiatives were put in place during the year under review and continue to be
subjected to regular review and monitoring significantly under high risk exposed Directorates.
During the year under review, the Fund launched a whistleblowing facility dedicated for reporting fraud
and corruption. This facility is operated by an independent company accredited by the Ethics Institute
of South Africa. Internal and External parties were encouraged and informed about this facility on how
it works and on how protected are the whistle-blowers in this regard. The facility constitutes various
reporting channels including one which the whistle-blower can choose to be anonymous.
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9. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION (Continues)
A number of cases were reported during the year under review using various reporting channels which
includes the hotline and walk-ins - these cases were subjected to investigation. Where cases were
finalised, necessary consequence management was put in place which included institution of disciplinary,
criminal or civil proceedings. Where controls have failed, proper recommendations were put in place by
taking the responsible Directorate, with controls deficiency, to task to review these controls to prevent
further re-occurrence of control failures by mitigating the risks.

10. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST
Conflict of Interest in Supply Chain Management (SGM) is minimised through declaration of interest by
suppliers signing SBD4, SCM officials signing the SCM Code of Conduct annually and submitting the
declaration of interest through the DPSA financial e-disclosure process.
Every person involved in the SCM Bid Committees is also required to sign a Declaration of Interest form
and confidentiality forms.

11. CODE OF CONDUCT
A Code of Conduct states the rules, values and ethical principles of the Compensation Fund.
The Code of Conduct requires employees to operate in a professional manner that would result in
the rendering of effective and sufficient service delivery to the public and communities in general.
Commitment in the Code of Conduct will eliminate corruption as a destructor to service delivery within
the Compensation Fund.
In the Compensation Fund, the Code of Conduct is signed by all officials at the beginning of the financial
year and submitted together with the performance agreement. Employees are expected to adhere to the
code when performing their duties.
The Code of Conduct is a policy document developed by the Department of Labour to give direction
to its employees in relation to how they have to conduct themselves as public servants. The primary
objectives of this document are:
• To ensure that the employees are aware of the Laws of the country, stay away from politics at
work, respect authority (protocol), respect and treat the public with dignity as well as showing
respect to fellow employees;
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11. CODE OF CONDUCT (Continues)
• To pledge and commit to perform duties as per the agreed and acceptable standards; and
• To guide employees on what needs to be done to avoid conflicts of rights and interests as well
as their personal conduct in both public and private capacity that might bring the image of the
Department into disrepute.
The last point to note is that should there be any breach of this Code of Conduct by the employee,
depending on the severity of the misconduct, disciplinary action may be instituted against such an official.
It is therefore important and reasonable enough that every employee must read, understand and sign
a copy of the Code of Conduct on completion of the performance agreement to be attached as an
annexure and also as an indication that the said employee will conduct him/herself in a manner that
would be acceptable and not questionable at all times.

12. SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL (SHE) 		
ISSUES
• Safety is the condition of being safe from undergoing or causing hurt, injury or loss. It is the
state of not being exposed to danger.
• Health means free from illnesses, diseases, infections and injuries that may occur in workplaces.
• Environmental issues are issues that are related to work environments such as ventilation,
temperature levels, lighting, noise, housekeeping, ergonomic issues, etc.
Safety, Health and Environmental issues are critical components that encompass the functionality and
realisation of the Fund`s objectives. If they are not properly controlled they may pose danger to the
health and safety of the entity (employees, visitors and clients). This could translate to poor productivity,
shortage of workforce due to injuries and diseases in the workplace, high absenteeism and presentism.
To this end, the fund has taken initiatives to adhere to the Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Act
in ensuring the health and safety of our employees through the implementation of SHE management
systems that takes care of the needs of boththe organisation, its clients and visitors.

13. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Compensation Fund, through its Social Responsible Investments (SRI) mandate, made investments
totalling more than R2 billion in 16 direct companies covering small and medium enterprises, healthcare,
education, renewable energy and agricultural sectors as at 31 March 2019. These investments are
expected to produce long-term returns for both the Compensation Fund beneficiaries and the broader
South African economy through job creation/preservation, skills development as well as facilitating BroadBased Black Economic Empowerment to achieve transformation and inclusive growth. In addition, the
Compensation Fund investments helped to sustain more than 6400 permanent and temporary jobs in
South Africa during the 2018/19 financial year.
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14. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
The Audit Committee hereby presents its report for the financial year ended 31 March 2019. The report
is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) 1 of
1999, as amended and its Treasury Regulations, and also in line with National Treasury Guide.
Audit Committee Responsibility
The Audit Committee has discharged its oversight responsibilities in respect of activities and operations
of the Compensation Fund, independently and objectively in compliance with Section 51 (1)(a)(ii) of
the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 27.1. The Audit Committee also has
adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in
compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.
Audit Committee Members
In terms of membership, the Audit Committee is comprised of three external independent members
and one additional member from the Compensation Fund (CF) Board. A list of the members and their
respective qualifications as well as a record of their attendance is provided below for the period 1 April
2018 to 31 March 2019:
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14. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (Continues)
Table 33: Audit Committee Composition and attendance of meetings from 01 April 2018 - 31 March 2019
Name

Qualifications

Internal or
external

If internal,
position in
the public
entity

Date appointed

Date
Resigned
/ end of
term

No audit
committee
meetings
attended

Other
Meetings
attended

Ms. L. Francois

Master’s in
Business
Administration
Post Graduate
CertificateAccounting,
Bcom, General
Internal Auditor,
CRMA

External
Chairperson

N/A

1 October 2017

N/A

10/10

14

Dr. P. Dala

PhD (IT), M.IT,
BSc
Hons in
Computer
Science, B.IT,
CISA,
CISM, CISSP,
CRISC,
CGEIT, CEH,
CHFI and
LA27001.

External
Member

N/A

1 October 2017

N/A

10/10

6

Mr. C.
Terhoeven

M.Com
(Taxation),
Chartered
Accountant SA
(CA (SA)),
Registered
Auditor (RA)

External
Member

N/A

16 November
2017

N/A

9/10

4

Mr. F. Xaba

BA Hons
(Industrial
Psychology)

External
Member
(Board)

N/A

16 June 2018

N/A

7/7

3

* Members attended other meetings in addition to the Audit Committee meetings with the CF Commissioner, Internal Audit,
Risk Management (Forensic matters) and AGSA in executing their mandate. Furthermore, the Chairperson attended other additional meetings with oversight stakeholders in executing her mandate - Executive Authority (Bi Annual Ministerial Sessions),
Director General, CF Board and CF Commissioner.

The Effectiveness of Internal Control
Our review of the findings of the Internal Audit work, which was based on the risk assessments conducted
in the public entity revealed significant and pervasive weaknesses, which were then raised with the
public entity. By the date of this report, unfortunately most of these significant weaknesses remained
unresolved by management.
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14. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (Continues)
As at 31 March 2019, Internal Audit completed 85% of the approved annual plan compared to 80% in
2017/18 financial year. The implementation rate of internal audit findings from follow-up audits conducted
in the period under review was 53% compared to 51% in 2017/18 financial year.
The Audit Committee was still seriously concerned about the lack of adequate internal controls in the Fund
which have become a pervasive state. This is caused mainly by management’s inability to implement
recommendations from Internal and External Auditors, as well as other assurance providers including
the AC, leading to the continuing Auditor General’s disclaimers. Despite various interventions by the
Audit Committee within its mandate, minimal improvements in the control environment were noted, as
indicated in the table below:
Table 34: The Internal Audit work for 2018/19 financial year
Item

2018/19 (1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019)

2017/18 (1 April 2017 to 31 March
2018)

Number of Audit Reports

24

30

Number of Significant Findings

158

198

Percentage of 1 and 2 Opinion Ratings

79%

50%

Percentage of 3 and 4 Opinion Ratings

21%

50%

Item

Rating

Opinion 1 Rating

Inadequate

Opinion 2 Rating

Partially adequate and ineffective

Opinion 3 Rating

Partially adequate and partially effective

Opinion 4 Rating

Adequate and effective

Over and above various interventions to steer the Fund towards the right path, the Audit Committee
requested the following:
• A detailed investigation by the AGSA of the existing Claims System focused on the 		
procurement processes and fraud indicators given that has been tainted as the main root
cause of the pandemic problems, including the extent of the financial losses suffered as a
result of fraudulent transactions thereof. By the date of this report, the Auditor General was
still in the process of conducting a pre-investigation review in terms of their own processes,
and yet to proclaim on the results.
• A detailed investigation relating to the service provider appointed to assist the Fund in 		
improving the audit outcome, which was significantly delayed by the internal processes 		
to appoint the forensic service provider. By the date of this report, the investigation had just
commenced.
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The following were areas of concern noted:
• Deteriorating state of internal controls and audit disclaimers.
• Slow pace of implementation of audit findings/ action plans resulting in negative audit outcomes.
• Unintegrated Turnaround Strategy in relation to the audit findings that is not focused on achieving
visible and tangible outcomes to change the Fund.
• Management’s inability to produce accurate and supported financial and performance
information, as well as credible annual and consolidated financial statements.
• Insufficient controls to manage and hold accountable various investments’ service providers
leading to continual impairments of the Fund’s investment assets and significant losses.
• Failure by the Fund to ensure that PIC consistently follows the set investment portfolio statutory
mandates, policies and due processes to protect the Fund’s investment assets leading to
continual impairments and losses.
• Lack of segregation of duties resulting in unauthorised transactions/fraudulent payments
processed in the Claims system resulting in financial losses.
• Lack of properly documented Business Processes and Key Controls (i.e. fit-for purpose policies
and standard operating procedures).
• Increase in fraudulent losses/duplicate payments as a result of existing Claims System design
deficiencies.
• Lack of integrated IT systems that are unable to generate accurate, valid and complete
information to support the Financial Statements’ preparations and reporting.
• Ineffective management of external contractors and service providers to obtain value for money
and maximise benefits therefrom.
• Inadequate capacity and skills in most core business areas of the Fund including the Finance
unit as well as specialist skills in Internal Audit.
• Internal Audit is not correctly positioned within the Fund to attract and retain the required skills
i.e. it is at a Directorate level.
• Lack of accountability and consequence management by the Fund leadership.
• Ineffective management of ICT and cyber security risks including Business Continuity
management.
• Delays in the implementation of the new e-COID Claims system.
• Inadequate Compliance unit capacity and effective minimum compliance.
• Assurance providers including the Audit and Risk Management Committee’s as oversight
committees appear to be in place for compliance purposes given the fact that their
recommendations are not taken seriously.
The following were key recommendations made by the Audit Committee to management, inter-alia:
• Implementation of all internal and external Assurance Providers Recommendations (IA,
AGSA, Risk
Management, ACIM and Audit Committee, etc.).
• Business Process Mapping to ensure that controls are designed adequately to address the
audit findings.
• Definition of the enterprise architecture to form the basis of all new system implementations and
future customisations to ensure integration between systems.
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14. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (Continues)
• Streamlining the Turnaround Strategy focusing on Low-Hanging fruits/Quick-wins annually to
implement key controls necessary to change the status quo.
• Embedding the ERM culture and implementing an appropriate risk appetite to manage key
financial risks and protect the Fund’s assets.
• Initiate an independent investigation of the existing Claims system’s deficiencies through
the AGSA to ensure learnings are internalised during the new system development to avoid
future reoccurrences.
• Integrating the CF Strategy implementation with key Assurance Providers’ recommendations to
drive effective Internal Control improvements.
• Decisive Leadership in accountability and consequence management.
• Systematic and pro-active ways of fraud-prevention and minimising financial losses.
• Focus on revising the ICT governance framework to ensure that it is tailored to the Fund’s
environment to ensure effective implementation of ICT governance.
• Obtain the required cyber security expertise to define the cyber security strategy and drive the
implementation thereof.
• The new e-COID Claims system implementation should ensure adequate and effective controls
relating to project governance and management, quality assurance, data migration, change
management as well as managing the customisation thresholds and ensuring that the controls
to address the audit findings and shortcoming of the existing Claims system are both adequate
and effective.
• Implementation of Business Continuity Management with due consideration of the DRP
processes.
• Effective management of external assurance providers and maximising value for money from
large contracts.
• Holding the PIC accountable for non-performing investment portfolios, as well as enforcing the
investments statutory mandates and service levels.
The Committee was satisfied that the Internal Audit function meets the minimum required performance
and execution of its statutory mandate. However, there were areas of improvement around the refinement
of its methodology, the three year rolling audit plans, and insufficient coverage in most of the critical risk
areas of the Fund.
In-Year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Report
The Fund reports monthly and quarterly to the National Treasury as is required by the PFMA. Due to
weaknesses in substantiating figures reported in the quarterly reports and the unreliable financial and
performance information produced by the Fund, the Committee was partially satisfied with the contents
and dissatisfied with the integrity and quality of the quarterly reports.
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14. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (Continues)
Evaluation of Financial Statements
We have reviewed the draft Annual and Consolidated Financial Statements and Performance
information prepared by the Public Entity which were presented to us for approval before their sign-off
by the Accounting Authority for submission to the AGSA for audit purposes. As a result of significant
unexplained errors and losses, lack of integrity in the financial information and disclosures, as well as
lack of appropriate supporting evidence, the Audit Committee disclaimed their approval.
Auditor’s Report
Following the Audit Committee’s own disclaimed approval of the Annual Financial Statements and
Consolidations, we note the disclaimed opinion by the AGSA on both the separate and consolidated
annual financial statements. The audited annual financial statements may be read in conjunction with
the AGSA audit report.
We also note with concern the AG’s further disclaimer on the Audit engagement (paragraph 19 of the
Audit Report), and its implications on the Fund.
Conclusion and Appreciation
We have executed our mandate as the Audit Committee and see no visible improvements in the overall
control environment due to lack of implementation of our recommendations. To fully discharge this
mandate, we also escalated significant concerns to the Commissioner, the DG and the AGSA. We will
now seek a platform with the new Minister.
We appreciate all the support provided to us by various internal and external assurance providers,
including the Committee Secretariat.

_______________________________
Lorraine Francois
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
The Compensation Fund
03/09/2019
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1. INTRODUCTION
Human Resource Management (HRM) views people as organisational assets and internal customers
and works to create job satisfaction and employee efficiency and effectiveness.
The Directorate: Human Resource Management communicates with employees and adapts the
organisation’s culture and structure to their needs for example, in negotiating with unions or re-engineering
processes. HR leads the employment life cycle, from attracting and hiring the right employees to
facilitating performance reviews and eventually processing terminations.
During the year under review the following HR goals were set:
• Implement Recruitment and Retention Strategy through maintenance of 9.9% vacancy rate.
• Full compliance and implementation of the Performance Management Policy.
• Strengthening human capacity through the implementation of 100% of training programmes in
the Workplace Skills Plan (WSP).
• Manage the Employee Health and Wellness (EHW) Strategy as well as the Gender, Disability
and Youth of the Compensation Fund.
• Manage the employee relations of the Compensation Fund.
The strategic workforce of the Compensation Fund was planned for by all Managers and was integrated
into each Directorate/Chief Directorate work plan.
Compliance with the Department of Labour Performance Management system was communicated to the
Compensation Fund staff throughout the year.
The Employee Health and Wellness Strategy was approved and implemented. The Gender, Disability
and Youth programmes of the Compensation Fund were implemented, and reports were produced.
The Compensation Fund has developed the HR Strategies and Succession Plan during the reporting
period.

Compensation Fund - Annual Report 2018/19

59

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

1. INTRODUCTION (Continues)
The following achievements are seen as highlights:
• The recruitment plan was developed and communicated.
• Exceeded the cabinet target of appointing women at Management level by appointing 		
51.8% of women at management level against a target of 50%.
• Exceeded the target of appointing youth in the Compensation Fund by appointing 		
29.9% of youth against a target of 2.5%.
• The launch and implementation of the Mentoring and Coaching Programme.
• Achieved 98% of the submission of performance agreements of the 2018/2019 financial year.
• Achieved 99% of the submission of performance assessments for the 2017/2018 financial year.
• Ensured that the Fund complied with HRM policies, processes and procedures.
• The Employee Health and Wellness Programmes as well as the Gender, Disability and Youth
Programmes were achieved.
• HR Advocacy sessions were conducted throughout the year.
The following HR challenges were faced during the 2018/2019 financial year:
• Non-achievement of the vacancy rate target of 9.9% due to the high number of vacancies as a
result of the revised structure. The vacancy rate as at 31 March 2019 was at 23%.
• Non-achievement of the 2% cabinet target for the appointment of People with Disabilities
(PWDs) as the Fund achieved a target of 0.9%.
• Non-achievement of 85% of training interventions in the Fund due to non-availability of service
providers.
• 16 fraud cases were not finalised as at 31 March 2019 due to non-appointment of presiding
officers.
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1. INTRODUCTION (Continues)
Future HR plan/goals
• All drafted HR strategies to be approved during the new financial year.
• Engage high schools, institutions of higher learning and institutions of People with Disabilities
to attract them for the Fund.
• Appointment of Deputy Director: Human Resource Development to fast track all training
interventions in the Fund, including training for core business and finance.
• Enhance the Business Partner Model to fast track recruitment in the Fund and reduce the
vacancy rate to 9.9%.

2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS
Table 35: Personnel cost by programme/ activity/ objective
Programme/activity/ objective

Total
Expenditure
for the entity
(R’000)

Personnel
Expenditure
(R’000)

Personnel
Expenditure
as a %
of total
expenditure

No of
employees

Average
personnel
cost per
employee
(R’000)

Programme 1: Administration

3 869 336

220 671

5.7%

507

435

Programme 2: Compensation For
Occupational Injuries And Diseases
(COID) Services

2 271 573

48 889

2.1%

153

320

Programme 3: Medical Benefits

4 856 527

12 657

0.3%

32

397

26 653

8 405

31.5%

13

647

11 024 089

290 622

2.6%

705

412

Programme 4: Orthotic And
Rehabilitation Services
TOTAL

Table 36: Personnel costs by salary band as at 31 March 2019
Level

Personnel
Expenditure
(R’000)

Top Management (Level
15-16)

% of total personnel
cost
(R’000)

No. of employees

Average personnel
cost per employee
(R’000)

1 497

0,5%

1

1 427

Senior Management (Level 13-14)

28 112

9,7%

27

1 041

Professional skilled (Level
9-12)

102 918

35,4%

147

700

Skilled (Level 6-8)

116 932

40,2%

402

291

39 188

13,5%

112

350

1 976

0,7%

16

123

290 622

100%

705

412

Semi-skilled (Level 4-5)
Unskilled (Level 2-3)
Total

The HR statistics on these tables are representative of the Compensation Fund Head Office officials. The difference between
the figures on this report versus the financial statements is the exclusion of provincial staff members, leave provision, bonus
provision and all other staff who are paid on a split percentage basis. This departure was applied to enhance statistical reporting.
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2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS (Continues)
Table 37: Performance Rewards as at 31 March 2019
Programme/ activity/
objective

Performance
Rewards

Personnel
Expenditure (R’000)

Performance Reward
(R’000)

% of performance
rewards to total
personnel cost
(R’000)

Top Management
(Level 15-16)

0

1 497

0

0%

Senior Management
(Level 13-14)

1

28 112

48

0%

(Level 9-12)

27

102 918

1 060

0.4%

Skilled (Level 6-8)

62

116 932

1 302

0.4%

Semi-skilled (Level
4-5)

21

39 188

308

0.1%

7

1 976

80

0.0%

118

290 622

2 798

1.0%

Professional skilled

Unskilled (Level 2-3)
Total

Table 38 Training cost as at 31 March 2019
Programme/ activity/
objective

Personnel
Expenditure
(R’000)

Top Management (Level
15-16)

Training
Expenditure
(R’000)

Training Expenditure
as a % of Personnel
cost

No. of Employees Average
trained
training cost
per employee

1 497

33

2%

1

33

28 112

577

2%

20

29

Professional skilled (Level
9-12)

102 918

1 534

1%

150

10

Skilled (Level 6-8)

116 932

4 190

4%

729

6

39 188

790

2%

71

11

1 976

473

24%

53

9

290 622

7 598

3%

1 024

7

Senior Management (Level
13-14)

Semi-skilled (Level 4-5)
Unskilled (Level 2-3)
Total

The HR statistics on these tables are representative of the Compensation Fund Head Office officials. The difference between
the figures on this report versus the financial statements is the exclusion of provincial staff members, leave provision, bonus
provision and all other staff who are paid on a split percentage basis. This departure was applied to enhance statistical reporting.

Table 39: Employment and vacancies as at 31 March 2019
Programme/ activity/ objective

2017/2018
No. of
Employees

2018/2019
Number of
approved posts

2018/2019
No. of
Employees

2018/2019 % of
Vacancies Vacancies

Programme 1: Administration

510

631

498

124

20%

Programme 2: Compensation for
Occupational Injuries and Diseases
(COID) Services

162

218

119

65

30%

Programme 3: Medical Benefits

5

22

32

10

45%

Programme 4: Orthotic and
Rehabilitation Services

1

20

13

7

35%

97

0

43

0

0

775

911

705

206

23%

Additional Component (1)
TOTAL
62
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2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS (Continues)
Table 40: Employment and vacancies by salary band as at 31 March 2019
Salary band

Top Management (Level 15-16)
Senior Management (Level 13-14)
Professional skilled (Level 9-12)
Skilled (Level 6-8)
Semi-skilled (Level 4-5)
Unskilled (Level 2-3)
TOTAL

2017/2018
No. of Employees

2018/2019
Number of
approved posts

1

1

19

2018/2019
No. of
Employees

2018/2019
Vacancies

% of
Vacancies

1

0

0%

30

27

3

10%

104

197

*147 (3)

50

25%

*502 (2)

495

402

93

19%

117

154

*112 (1)

42

27%

32

34

16

18

53%

775

911

705

206

23%

* (1) Six employees are permanently appointed, additional to the establishment at salary levels 4-5.
* (2)Thirty-six are permanently appointed, additional to the establishment at salary levels 6-8.
* (3) One employee is permanently appointed, additional to the establishment at salary levels 9-12.

Table 41: Employment Changes as at 31 March 2019
Salary band

Top Management (Level 15-16)
Senior Management (Level 13-14)
Professional skilled (Level 9-12)
Skilled (Level 6-8)
Semi-skilled (Level 4-5)
Unskilled (Level 2-3)
TOTAL

Employment at the
beginning of the period

Appointments

Terminations

Employment at
the end of the
period

1

0

0

1

23

5

1

27

102

50

5

147

*368 (1)

67

33

402

105

9

2

112

27

0

11

16

626

131

52

705

(1)Thirty six officials are permanently appointed additional to the structure without posts at salary levels 6 to 8

Table 42: Reasons staff leaving as at 31 March 2019
Reason
Death

Number

% of total no of staff leaving
1

2%

Resignation

37

71%

Dismissals

3

6%

Retirement

3

6%

Ill health

0

0%

Expiry of contract

8

15%

52

100%

TOTAL

Table 43: Labour relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action as at 31 March 2019
Nature of disciplinary Action

Number

Verbal Warning

0

Written Warning

3

Final Written Warning
Dismissal
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2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS (Continues)
Equity Target and Employment Equity Status
Table 44: Equity Target and Employment Equity Status: Males at 31 March 2019
Levels

MALE
African
Current

Target

Coloured
Current

Indian

Target

Current

White

Target

Current

Target

Top Management
(Level 15-16)

1

-

0

-

0

-

0

-

Senior Management
(Level 13-14)

9

-

0

-

1

-

0

-

Professional skilled
(Level 9-12)

65

-

1

-

0

-

1

-

Skilled (Level 6-8)

134

-

3

-

3

-

5

-

Semi-skilled (Level
4-5)

54

-

1

-

1

-

0

-

Unskilled (Level 2-3)

11

-

TOTAL

274

-

5

5

-

6

-

-

Table 45: Equity Target and Employment Equity Status: Female at 31 March 2019
Levels

FEMALE
African
Current

Target

Coloured
Current

Indian

Target

Current

White

Target

Current

Target

Top Management
(Level 15-16)

0

-

0

-

0

-

0

-

Senior Management
(Level 13-14)

15

-

1

-

1

-

0

-

Professional skilled
(Level 9-12)

77

-

0

-

0

-

3

-

Skilled (Level 6-8)

222

-

16

-

0

-

19

-

Semi-skilled (Level
4-5)

54

-

0

-

0

-

2

-

Unskilled (Level 2-3)

5

-

0

-

0

-

TOTAL

373

-

17

-

1

-

24

-

Table 46: Employment equity: People with disabilities at 31 March 2019
Levels

Disabled Staff
Male
Current

Female
Target

Current

Target

Top Management (Level 15-16)

0

0

0

0

Senior Management (Level 13-14)

1

0

0

0

Professional skilled (Level 9-12)

3

0

0

0

Skilled (Level 6-8)

2

0

0

0

Semi-skilled (Level 4-5)

1

0

0

0

Unskilled (Level 2-3)

0

0

0

0

TOTAL

7

0

0

0

The EE targets of the Compensation Fund are not yet approved. Hence they are not reflected on the above tables.
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1. REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL
Report of the auditor-general to parliament on 			
Compensation Fund
Report on the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements
Disclaimer of opinion
1. I was engaged to audit the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Compensation Fund
(CF) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 82 to 179, which comprise the consolidated and separate
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, the consolidated and separate statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement and statement of comparison
of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the consolidated and
separate financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
2. I do not express an opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements of Compensation
Fund. Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion
section of this auditor’s report, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide
a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated and separate financial statements.
Basis for disclaimer of opinion
Revenue and receivables from non-exchange transactions
3. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for revenue from non-exchange
transactions and receivables from non-exchange transactions for the current and prior year as the
entity had inadequate processes in place to ensure that employers were accurately assessed in terms
of Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act of South Africa, 1993 (Act No. 130 of
1993) (Coida). Furthermore, management did not maintain proper accounting records and adequate
controls over assessment of revenue and debtors. The entity’s records did not permit the application
of adequate alternative audit procedures regarding revenue and receivables from non-exchange
transactions. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were necessary to
the financial statements as follows:
• Revenue from non-exchange transactions stated at R9,337 billion (2018: R7,341 billion) in
the consolidated and separate financial statements
• Receivables from non-exchange transactions stated at R2,301 billion (2018: R1,753 billion)
in the consolidated and separate financial statements.
The limitations indicated above also have an impact on the debt impairment stated at R14,453 billion
(2017: R13,075 million) in the consolidated and separate financial statements as disclosed in note 5.
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Report of the auditor-general to parliament on
Compensation Fund (continues)
Benefits
4. Management did not implement adequate internal controls to maintain records of benefits claimed. I was
therefore unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to substantiate whether management
had correctly accounted for all claims in the current and prior year. The entity’s records did not permit
the application of adequate alternative audit procedures regarding benefits paid. As a consequence,
I was unable to determine whether any adjustments to benefits paid stated at R 5,353 billion (2018:
R4,706 billion) in the consolidated and separate financial statements financial were necessary.
The limitations indicated above also have an impact on the capitalised value of pensions as stated in
note 15 in the financial statements as follows:
• Non-current liability R30,307 billion (2018: R21,080 billion) in the consolidated and 		
separate financial statements.
• Current liability R1,628 billion (2018: R1,144 billion) in the consolidated and separate
financial statements
Irregular expenditure
5. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to confirm the irregular expenditure included
in the notes to the financial statements for both the current and prior year, as sufficient appropriate
evidence was not provided. The entity’s records did not permit the application of adequate alternative
audit procedures in this regard. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment
was necessary to the irregular expenditure as stated in note 38 at R769,138 million (2018: R764,480
million) in the consolidated and separate financial statements.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
6. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to confirm the fruitless and wasteful
expenditure included in the notes to the financial statements for both the current and prior year, as
sufficient appropriate evidence was not provided. The entity’s records did not permit the application of
adequate alternative audit procedures in this regard. Therefore, I was unable to determine whether any
adjustment was necessary to the fruitless and wasteful expenditure as stated in note 37 at R452,299
million (2018: R445,647 million) in the consolidated and separate financial statements.
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Report of the auditor-general to parliament on
Compensation Fund (continues)
Provision for outstanding claims
7. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the provision for outstanding claims for
both the current and the prior year. Management did not implement effective systems of internal control
to maintain proper accounting records and information relating to the movement in the provision for
outstanding claims resulting from payments and the measurement of estimates in accordance with
GRAP 19, Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets. Therefore, I could not confirm, by
any alternative means, whether any adjustments were necessary to the provision for outstanding
claims stated in the financial statements as follows:
• Outstanding claims: Non-current liability of R9,389 billion (2018: R9,344 billion) in the 		
consolidated and separate financial statements as stated in note 18,
• Outstanding claims: Current liability of R1,616 billion (2018: R1,772 billion) in the consolidated
and separate financial statements as stated in note 18.
Payables from exchange transactions
8. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for payables from exchange transactions
for consolidated and separate financial statements, and to confirm the balance by alternative means.
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment was necessary to payables from
exchange transactions as stated in note 14 at R219,411 million and R207,445 million in the consolidated
and separate financial statements respectively. My audit opinion on the financial statements for the
period ended 31 March 2018 was modified accordingly. My opinion on the current year financial
statements was also modified because of the possible effect of this matter on the comparability of the
payables from exchange transactions.
Payables from non-exchange transactions
9. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for payables from non-exchange transactions
for the current and prior year as management did not maintain adequate records of payables from nonexchange transactions. The entity’s records did not permit the application of adequate alternative audit
procedures in this regard. As a consequence, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments
were required to payables from non-exchange transactions as stated in note 13 at R865,747 million
(2018: R1,108 billion) in the consolidated and separate financial statements.
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Report of the auditor-general to parliament on
Compensation Fund (continues)

Unclaimed monies reserve
10. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the unclaimed monies reserve for
the current and prior year. Management did not implement effective systems of internal control to
maintain proper accounting records and information relating to unclaimed monies reserve. I could
not confirm the balance of unclaimed monies reserve by alternative means as the entity’s records did
not permit the application of alternative audit procedures. Consequently, I was unable to determine
whether any adjustments were necessary to unclaimed monies reserve as stated on the statement
of changes in net assets at R 772, 684 million (2018: R555,568 million) in the consolidated and
separate financial statements.
Loans to economic entities
11. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the amount of loans to economic
entities as the entity did not provide adequate records for the loans for the current and prior year. I
could not confirm the balance of loans to economic entities by alternative means. Consequently, I was
unable to determine whether any adjustments were necessary to loans to economic entities stated at
R344,937 million (2018: R348,376 million) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Consolidation of subsidiaries and investment in associates
12. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the consolidation of the group as the
entity did not ensure that the accounting policies of the subsidiary, including the sub-subsidiaries and
associates, were consistent with the accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with GRAP 6 and 7. Furthermore, management did not implement
effective systems of internal control to maintain proper accounting records and information to support
the consolidated amounts of subsidiaries and investment in associates. I could not confirm the
amounts disclosed as consolidated figures by alternative means. Consequently, for these entities I
was unable to determine whether any adjustments were necessary to amounts consolidated in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the auditor-general to parliament on
Compensation Fund (continues)

Investment in financial assets
13. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to validate the data used to perform
the valuations of unlisted investments for the current year and prior year. The entity’s records did
not permit the application of alternative audit procedures in this regard. As a consequence, I was
unable to determine whether any adjustments were required to investment in financial assets as
stated in note 2 relating to the following: investment in subsidiary amounting to R670,558 million
(2018: R720, 408 million), investment in associates amounting to R351,537 (2018: R223, 868
million) in the separate financial statements and investment in unlisted loans amounting to R581,030
(2018: R581,105 million) in the consolidated and separate financial statements and investments in
associates as stated in note 3 at R 754,955 million (2018: R738, 155 million) in the consolidated
financial statements. I could also not confirm, by any alternative means, whether any adjustments
were necessary to the impairment of investments for the current and prior year in note 22 stated in
the financial statements as follows:
• Investments in unlisted loans in the consolidated and separate financial statements 		
of R237,994 million (2018: R124,306 million) and R231,494 million
(2018: R124,306 million), respectively.
• Investments in associates R76, 393 million in the consolidated financial statements
Prior Period errors
14. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the amounts disclosed as prior period
errors as the entity did not provide adequate supporting documents. I could not confirm the amounts
disclosed as prior period errors by any alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine
whether any adjustments were necessary to amounts disclosed as prior period errors in notes 33
and 34 of the consolidated and separate financial statements.
Related Parties
15. The public entity is part of a large group of entities and has extensive related party transactions with
other companies in the group. Contrary to the requirements of GRAP 20, Related party disclosures,
management did not disclose the public entity’s related party relationships with other entities, or the
transactions and balances with these parties in the consolidated financial statements. I have not
included the omitted information in this auditor’s report as it was impracticable to do so.
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Report of the auditor-general to parliament on
Compensation Fund (continues)
Contingencies
16. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the amount disclosed as contingencies
in note 30 for both the current and the prior year, as the entity did not maintain adequate records in
respect of contingencies. The entity’s records did not permit the application of adequate alternative
audit procedures in this regard. As a consequence, I was unable to determine whether any
adjustments were necessary to contingencies stated as follows:
• Securities held/ceded: R25 billion (2018: R22 billion) in the consolidated and separate 		
annual financial statements
• Notices of motions and summons: R19,4 million (2018: R17, 733 million) in the 			
consolidated and separate annual financial statements.
Emphasis of matter
17. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Material losses
18. As disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements, material losses amounting to R2,135 million
(2018: R184,345 million) were incurred as a result of criminal conduct.
Other matter
19. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Withdrawal from the audit engagement
20. Due to the limitation imposed on the scope of the audit by management, I have disclaimed my
opinion on the financial statements. However, for the legislated requirement to perform the audit of
the public entity, I would have withdrawn from the engagement in terms of the ISAs.
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Report of the auditor-general to parliament on
Compensation Fund (continues)
Responsibilities of accounting authority for the financial statements
21. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
and separate financial statements in accordance with Standards of General Recognised Accounting
Practice (SA Standard of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of
South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) and Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act
of South Africa, 1993 (Act No. 130 of 1993) (Coida) and for such internal control as the accounting
authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
22. In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible
for assessing the group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the accounting
authority either intends to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.
Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial
statements
23. My responsibility is to conduct an audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements in
accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and to issue an auditor’s report. However,
because of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of this auditor’s report,
I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion
on these financial statements.
24. I am independent of the group in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code) , parts
1 and 3 of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International code of ethics
for professional accountants (including international independence standards) and the ethical
requirements that are relevant to my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements in
South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the IESBA codes.
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Report of the auditor-general to parliament on
Compensation Fund (continues)
Report on the audit of the annual performance report
Introduction and scope
25. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the
general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings on the
reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected programmes
presented in the annual performance report. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to
gather evidence to express assurance.
26. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the approved
performance planning documents of the public entity. I have not evaluated the completeness and
appropriateness of the performance indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures
also did not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to planned performance strategies and
information in respect of future periods that may be included as part of the reported performance
information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.
27. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance
with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined
in the general notice, for the following selected programmes presented in the annual performance
report of the public entity for the year ended 31 March 2019:
Programmes

Pages in the annual performance report

Programme 2: Coid Services

28 -30

Programme 3: Medical Benefits

31-32

Programme 4: Orthotic and Rehabilitation Services

33-34

28. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was properly
presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved performance planning
documents. I performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators and related targets
were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported performance information
to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.
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29. The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the selected programmes are as
follows:
Programme 2: Coid Services
30. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievements of the
three indicators relating to programme 2. This was due to limitations placed on the scope of my
work. I was unable to confirm the reported achievements by alternative means. Consequently, I was
unable to determine whether any adjustments were required to the reported achievements in the
annual performance report of the indicators listed below:
Indicator description

Reported achievement

Percentage of approved benefits paid within five working days

98%

Percentage of active registered employers assessed annually by 31 March 2019(
excluding exempted employers)

55%

Percentage of claims adjudicated within 40 working days of receipt

94%

Programme 3: Medical benefits
31. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievements of the 2
indicators relating to programme 3. This was due to limitations placed on the scope of my work. I
was unable to confirm the reported achievements by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable
to determine whether any adjustments were required to the reported achievements in the annual
performance report of the indicators listed below:
Indicator description

Reported achievement

Percentage of medical invoices finalised within 60 working days of receipt

93%

Percentage of pre-authorisations responded to within 10 working days on
previously finalised cases

93%
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Programme 4: Orthotic and Rehabilitation Services
Indicator 4.1 - Percentage of compliant requests for assistive devices responded to within 15
working days of receipt.
32. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement of 93% of
compliant requests for assistive devices responded to within 15 working days of receipt. This was
due to the unavailability of the documents on site to confirm completeness. I was unable to confirm
the reported achievement by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether
any adjustments were required to the achievement of 93% as reported in the annual performance
report.
Other matter
33. I draw attention to the matter below.
Achievement of planned targets
34. Refer to the annual performance report on pages’ 19 to 35; 25 to 34 for information on the achievement
of planned targets for the year and explanations provided for the under-/overachievement of a number
of targets. This information should be considered in the context of the material findings expressed
on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in paragraphs 30; 31 and
32 of this report.
Report on the audit of compliance with legislation
Introduction and scope
35. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to
report material findings on the compliance of the public entity with specific matters in key legislation.
I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.
36. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislations are as follows:
Annual Financial statements
37. The consolidated and separate financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in
accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework and supported by full and proper
records as required by section 55(1)(a) and (b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements identified by
the auditors in the submitted financial statements were not adequately corrected and the supporting
records could not be provided subsequently, which resulted in the financial statements receiving a
disclaimer audit opinion.
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Expenditure management
38. Effective steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure, as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii)
of the PFMA. As reported in the basis for the disclaimer of opinion, the full extent of the irregular
expenditure as disclosed in note 38 of the separate financial statements could not be quantified. The
irregular expenditure as disclosed in the financial statements was caused by non-compliance with
various National Treasury procurement requirements.
39. Effective steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by section
51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA. As reported in the basis for the disclaimer of opinion, the full extent of the
fruitless and wasteful expenditure as disclosed in note 37 of the separate financial statements could
not be quantified. The fruitless and wasteful expenditure as disclosed in the financial statements was
mainly due to interest on court order payments.
Revenue management
40. Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to collect all money due, as required by section 51(1)
(b)(i) of the PFMA.
Consequence Management
41. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that disciplinary steps were taken against
officials who had incurred irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure as required by section
51(1)(e)(iii) of the PFMA. This was due to proper and complete records that were not maintained as
evidence to support the investigations into irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure.
42. Investigations were not conducted into all allegations of financial misconduct committed by officials,
as required by treasury regulation 33.1.1.
Procument and Contract Management
43. Some of the goods and services with a transaction value below R500 000 were procured without
obtaining the required price quotations, as required by treasury regulation 16A6.1.
44. Some of the goods and services of a transaction value above R500 000 were procured without
inviting competitive bids, as required by treasury regulations 16A6.1 and 16A6.4.
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Other information
45. The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report. The other information does not include the consolidated
and separate financial statements, the auditor’s report and those selected programmes presented in
the annual performance report that have been specifically reported in this auditor’s report.
46. As a result of the disclaimer of opinion expressed on the financial statements, I do not conclude
on material misstatements of the other information relating to the financial statements. If, based
on the work I have performed relating to the audit of performance information and compliance with
legislation, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required
to report that fact.
47. I did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. When I do receive
and read this information, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I am required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the other information
be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, I may have to retract this auditor’s report and
re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected this will not be necessary.
Internal control deficiencies
48. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements,
reported performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective
was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported below are limited to the
significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for the disclaimer of opinion, the
findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation included
in this report.
49. Management did not hold officials accountable for the implementation and monitoring of the action
plan to address audit internal control deficiencies from prior years. This resulted in the recurrence
of numerous findings reported in prior years which led to poor audit outcomes. Furthermore, the
entity’s audit action plan is ineffective as the implemented actions adequately address internal control
deficiencies and enable adequate correction of prior year material misstatements.
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Internal control deficiencies (continues)
50. Matters noted during the prior year were not addressed on account of a lack of an understanding
of the requirements of the accounting framework (GRAP) and the requirements of the Framework
for Managing Programme Performance Information (FMPPI) . We furthermore noted that there was
a no response from management to address internal control deficiencies reported during the prior
year’s such as controls with regard to: intercepted payments; changing of banking details; and the
detection and prevention of duplicate payments.
51. The fund did not have a proper system of record management that provided for the maintenance
of information to support revenue management, expenditure management as well as financial and
performance reporting. This included information relating to supporting documentation for prior
year misstatements, investments, consolidations, revenue, benefits, irregular expenditure, fruitless
and wasteful expenditure, unclaimed monies, receivables, payables, related parties, contingent
liabilities and performance information.
Other reports
52. I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, or could have,
an impact on the matters reported in the public entity’s financial statements, reported performance
information, compliance with applicable legislation and other related matters. These reports did not
form part of my opinion on the financial statements or my findings on the reported performance
information or compliance with legislation.
Investigations
53. Public investment corporation (PIC) is investing funds on behalf of Compensation Fund. The
president of the republic established a commission of inquiry into allegations of impropriety
regarding the investments at PIC. I currently unable to determine the impact of the allegation on
Compensation Fund’s financial statements as the commission of inquiry is in progress.
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Investigations (continues)
54. The special investigation unit investigated an allegation of financial misconduct at the request of the
minister. This was a further investigation based on the outcome by an independent consulting firm
relating to the allegation of financial misconduct involving previous key officials. The SIU has completed
the investigation and await sign off from the presidency before issuing the final report.
55. There was an investigation into suspected fraud and corruption which included suspicious fraudulent
claims as well as the Umehluko system by an external service provider and a first phase of the investigation
report dated 29 March 2018 was issued. As part of implementation of the recommendations, Fraud,
corruption, money laundering and racketeering enquiry was registered with the Directorate for Priority
Crime Investigation (HAWKS) for further investigation.

Pretoria
31 August 2019
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General Information
Country of incorporation and domicile

South Africa

Nature of business and principal activities

To provide compensation under the
Compensation for Occupational Injuries and
Diseases Act 130 of 1993 for disablement
caused by occupational injuries or diseases
sustained or contracted by workers, or death
resulting from such injuries and diseases, and
provide for matters connected therewith.

Business address

Delta Heights Building 167 Thabo Sehume
Street Pretoria 0001

Bankers

ABSA
ABSA Towers, 15 Troy Street, Johannesburg ,
2001

Auditors

Auditor General of South Africa
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Index
The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual financial statements presented to the
parliament:
													Page
Statement of Financial Position								

82 - 83

Statement of Financial Performance									 84
Statement of Changes in Net Assets								

85 - 86

Cash Flow Statement										

87 - 88

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts					

89 - 91

Accounting Policies										

92 - 127

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements							

128 - 179

The annual financial statements set out on pages 82 to 179, which have been prepared on the going
concern basis, were approved by the Director-General on 31 May 2019 and were signed on his behalf
by:

_____________________________
Mr V Mafata
Compensation Commissioner
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2019
Group
2019
Note(s)

The Fund
2018
Restated*
R ‘000

R ‘000

2019

2018
Restated*
R ‘000

R ‘000

Assets
Current Assets
Inventories

4

Loans receivable

1 383

2 013

778

2 013

278

-

-

-

Investments in financial assets

2

8 516 031

8 928 594

8 516 031

8 928 594

Receivables from exchange
transactions

6

165 903

184 228

121 399

131 130

Receivables from non-exchange
transactions

5

2 301 417

1 753 230

2 301 417

1 753 230

Prepayments

11

95 519

37 261

89 021

37 261

Cash and cash equivalents

7

685 890

927 356

648 241

861 433

11 766 421

11 832 682

11 676 887

11 713 661

8

10 022

7 650

10 022

7 650

Property, plant and equipment

9

482 597

471 553

216 752

221 918

Intangible assets

10

50 757

77 235

50 307

76 742

Investments in associates

3

754 955

738 155

-

-

344 937

348 376

-

-

Investments in financial assets

2

57 471 492

54 270 521

58 388 855

55 200 172

Deferred tax

41

41 486

-

-

-

59 156 246

55 913 490

58 665 936

55 506 482

70 922 667

67 746 172

70 342 823

67 220 143

Non-Current Assets
Investment property

Loans receivable

Total Assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities

-

3 150

-

-

Finance lease obligation

12

1 784

1 875

1 784

1 875

Payables from exchange transactions

14

194 220

219 411

76 437

207 445

Payables from non-exchange
transactions

13

865 747

1 108 711

865 747

1 108 711

Capitalised value of pensions

15

1 628 839

1 144 327

1 628 839

1 144 327

Outstanding claims

18

1 616 036

1 772 000

1 616 036

1 772 000

Accruals

16

150 588

138 198

148 157

138 198

4 457 214

4 387 672

4 337 000

4 372 556
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2019
Group
2019
Note(s)

The Fund
2018
Restated*
R ‘000

R ‘000

2019

2018
Restated*
R ‘000

R ‘000

Non-Current Liabilities

Other financial liabilities

105 758

55 174

-

-

Finance lease obligation

12

278

2 028

278

2 028

Capitalised value of pensions

15

30 307 406

21 080 620

30 307 406

21 080 620

Deferred tax

41

-

12 343

-

-

Outstanding claims

18

9 389 964

9 344 000

9 389 964

9 344 000

39 803 406

30 494 165

39 697 648

30 426 648

Total Liabilities

44 260 620

34 881 837

44 034 648

34 799 204

Net Assets

26 662 047

32 864 335

26 308 175

32 420 939

772 684

555 568

772 684

555 568

2 161

(629)

-

-

129 291

129 291

129 291

129 291

25 296 555

31 770 522

25 406 200

31 736 080

26 200 691

32 454 752

26 308 175

32 420 939

461 356

409 583

-

-

26 662 047

32 864 335

26 308 175

32 420 939

Net Assets Attributable to Owners of
Controlling Entity

Unclaimed monies reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve
Revaluation reserve
Accumulated surplus
Non-controlling interest
Net Assets
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Statement of Financial Performance for the period ended 31 March 2019
Group
2019
Note(s)

R ‘000

The Fund
2018
Restated*
R ‘000

2019

2018
Restated*
R ‘000

R ‘000

Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions

19

4 750 157

4 412 337

4 662 588

4 359 836

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions

19

9 336 733

7 341 341

9 336 733

7 341 341

14 086 890

11 753 678

13 999 321

11 701 177

21

(857 081)

(727 366)

(812 950)

(727 366)

9&10

(69 540)

(48 728)

(61 767)

(48 728)

Impairment of investments

22

(314 387)

(124 306)

(231 494)

(124 306)

Finance costs

23

(2 542 600)

(3 196 248)

(2 533 293)

(3 196 248)

Total revenue
Expenditure
Employee costs
Depreciation and amortisation

Operating lease rentals

(113 290)

(114 682)

(112 715)

(114 682)

5&6

(1 377 411)

(5 379 815)

(1 377 411)

(5 379 815)

Benefits

20

(5 353 093)

(4 705 528)

(5 353 093)

(4 705 528)

General expenses

25

(659 482)

(490 212)

(541 366)

(429 355)

(11 286 884)

(14 786 885)

(11 024 089)

(14 726 028)

2 800 006

(3 033 207)

2 975 232

(3 024 851)

Impairment losses

24

Total expenditure
Operating surplus (deficit)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of assets

(297)

85

(297)

85

Fair value adjustments

27

(3 587 889)

3 024 392

(3 585 815)

2 845 733

Actuarial (losses)/gains

20

(5 719 000)

4 983 000

(5 719 000)

4 983 000

Share of deficits from associates

3

(76 138)

(97 799)

-

-

(6 583 318)

4 876 471

(6 329 880)

4 803 967

(Deficit) surplus before taxation
Taxation
(Deficit)/surplus for the year

40

43 708

(6 119)

-

-

(6 539 610)

4 870 352

(6 329 880)

4 803 967

(6 473 967)

4 901 451

(6 329 880)

4 803 967

(65 643)

(31 099)

-

-

(6 539 610)

4 870 352

(6 329 880)

4 803 967

Attributable to:
Owners of the controlling entity
Non-controlling interest
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended 31 March 2019
Unclaimed
Monies

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve

Revaluation
reserve

Total
reserves

Accumulated
surplus

Total
attributable
to owners of
the group /
the fund

Noncontrolling
interest

Total net
assets

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Group
Opening balance
as previously
reported

97 557

-

102 441

199 998

26 814 454

27 014 452

405 446

27 419 898

-

143

-

143

54 617

54 617

(42 727)

12 033

97 557

143

102 441

200 141

26 869 071

27 069 212

362 719

27 431 931

Investor
contribution

-

-

-

-

-

-

77 963

77 963

Currency
translation
reserve reserves

-

(772)

-

(772)

-

(772)

-

(772)

Revaluation of
land and buildings

-

-

26 850

26 850

-

26 850

-

26 850

Transfer to
unclaimed monies

458 011

-

458 011

Adjustments
Prior year
adjustments
Balance at 01
April 2017 as
restated*

458 011

-

-

458 011

-

Surplus for the
year

-

-

-

-

4 901 451

Restated*
Balance at 01
April 2018

4 901 451 (31 099)

4 870 352

555 568

(629)

129 291

684 230

31 770 522

32 454 752

409 583

32 864 335

Investor
contribution

-

-

-

-

-

-

117 416

117 416

Currency
translation
reserve reserves

-

2 790

-

2 790

-

2 790

-

2 790

217 116

-

-

217 116

-

217 116

-

217 116

Surplus for the
year

-

-

-

-

(6 473 967)

(6 473 967)

(65 643) (6 539 610)

Balance at 31
March 2019

772 684

2 161

129 291

904 136

25 296 555

26 200 691

461 356

Transfer to
unclaimed monies

Note(s)

Compensation Fund - Annual Report 2018/19

26 662 047

17

85

PART E: FINANCIAL INFORMATION

2. ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Compensation Fund Group
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended 31 March 2019
Unclaimed
Monies

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve

Revaluation
reserve

Total
reserves

Accumulated
surplus

Total
attributable
to owners of
the group /
the fund

Noncontrolling
interest

Total net
assets

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

The Fund
Balance at
1 April 2017
as previously
reported

97 557

-

102 441

199 998

26 815 051

27 015 049

-

27 015 049

-

-

-

-

117 062

117 062

-

117 062

Balance at 01
April 2017*

97 557

-

102 441

199 998

26 932 113

27 132 111

-

27 132 111

Surplus for the
year ended 31
March 2018

-

-

-

-

4 803 967

4 803 967

-

4 803 967

Revaluation
surplus

-

26 850

26 850

-

26 850

-

26 850

Adjustments Prior
year adjustments

Transfer to
unclaimed monies

458 011

-

-

458 011

-

458 011

-

458 011

Restated*
Balance at 01
April 2018

555 568

-

129 291

684 859

31 736 080

32 420 939

-

32 420 939

Deficit for the
year ended 31
March 2019

-

-

-

-

(6 329 880)

(6 329 880)

-

(6 329 880)

Transfer to
unclaimed monies

217 116

-

-

217 116

-

217 116

-

217 116

Balance at 31
March 2019

772 684

-

129 291

901 975

25 406 200

26 308 175

-

26 308 175

Note(s)
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
Group
2019
Note(s)

The Fund
2018
Restated*
R ‘000

R ‘000

2019

2018
Restated*
R ‘000

R ‘000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Receipts from operations
Interest income
Other income
Tax (benefit)/expense

7 335 498

7 200 538

7 293 271

7 205 344

77 443

146 847

77 443

144 842

9 505

35 346

4 904

61 780

(10 121)

8 288

-

-

7 412 325

7 391 019

7 375 618

7 411 966

(1 645 335)

(1 781 637)

(1 589 374)

(1 725 782)

Interest paid

(30 600)

(11 248)

(21 293)

(11 248)

Benefits paid

(3 940 221)

(3 676 429)

(3 940 221)

(3 676 429)

(5 616 156)

(5 469 314)

(5 550 888)

(5 413 459)

26

1 796 169

1 921 705

1 824 730

1 998 507

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

9

(54 725)

(177 159)

(30 742)

(78 249)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant
and equipment

9

125

85

125

85

Purchase of investment property

8

(2 022)

-

(2 022)

-

Purchase of intangible assets

10

(12)

(9 248)

(12)

(9 205)

Proceeds from sale of intangible assets

10

43

-

-

-

Loans advanced/(repaid)

52 497

2 359

-

-

Purchase of investments

Payments
Payments to suppliers and employees

Net cash flows from operating
activities
Cash flows from investing activities

(25 518 248)

(22 754 764)

(25 442 544)

(22 926 311)

Maturity and sale of investments

19 523 460

16 908 358

19 523 460

16 908 358

Interest received on investment

3 390 394

3 327 462

3 390 394

3 327 462

525 293

417 444

525 293

417 444

(2 083 195)

(2 285 463)

(2 036 048)

(2 360 416)

Dividends received
Net cash flows from investing
activities
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
Group
2019
Note(s)

R ‘000

The Fund
2018
Restated*
R ‘000

2019

2018
Restated*
R ‘000

R ‘000

Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in borrowings

47 434

24 844

-

-

Finance lease payments

(1 874)

(707)

(1 874)

(707)

Net cash flows from financing
activities

45 560

24 137

(1 874)

(707)

(241 466)

(339 621)

(213 192)

(362 616)

927 356

1 266 977

861 433

1 224 049

685 890

927 356

648 241

861 433

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year

88

7

Compensation Fund - Annual Report 2018/19

PART E: FINANCIAL INFORMATION

2. ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Compensation Fund Group
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts for the year ended 31 March 2019
Budget on Accrual Basis
Approved
budget

Adjustments

Final budget

Actual
amounts
on
comparable
basis

Variance
between
final budget
and actual

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Reference

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
75 385

-

75 385

83 525

8 140

Investment income

4 689 534

3 500

4 693 034

4 579 063

(113 971)

Total revenue from
exchange transactions

4 764 919

3 500

4 768 419

4 662 588

(105 831)

Other exchange
transactions

2

Revenue from non- exchange transactions
Revenue
Non-exchange
transactions

11 845 018

(1 679 108)

10 165 910

9 336 733

(829 177)

Total revenue

16 609 937

(1 675 608)

14 934 329

13 999 321

(935 008)

Employee costs

(846 498)

(130 127)

(976 625)

(812 950)

163 675

4

Depreciation and
amortisation

(112 000)

-

(112 000)

(61 767)

50 233

5

Impairment of
investments

-

-

-

(231 494)

(231 494)

6

Finance costs

-

-

-

(2 533 293)

(2 533 293)

7

(153 445)

-

(153 445)

(112 715)

40 730

8

-

-

-

(1 377 411)

(1 377 411)

9

(8 909 403)

4 667 467

(4 241 936)

(5 353 093)

(1 111 157)

11
12

3

Expenditure

Operating lease rentals
Impairement losses
Benefits
General expenses

(1 013 919)

(40 000)

(1 053 919)

(541 366)

512 553

Total expenditure

(11 035 265)

4 497 340

(6 537 925)

(11 024 089)

(4 486 164)

Operating surplus

5 574 672

2 821 732

8 396 404

2 975 232

(5 421 172)

(Loss)/gain on disposal of
assets

-

-

-

(297)

(297)

Fair value adjustments

-

-

-

(3 585 815)

(3 585 815)

13

Actuarial losses

-

-

-

(5 719 000)

(5 719 000)

10

5 574 672

2 821 732

8 396 404

(6 329 880)

(14 726 284)

Deficit for the year
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts for the year ended 31 March 2019
Budget on Accrual Basis
Budget explanations:
1. Note on basis of comparison
The annual budget figures have been prepared in accordance with the GRAP standards and are
consistent with the accounting policies adopted by the Fund for the preperation of these financial
statements. Explanatory notes are provied below giving motivations for over or under spending on line
items where it is found to be material.
The annual budget figures included in the financial statements are for the Fund and do not include
information relating to the subsidiaries or associates.
These figures are approved by the Minister of Labour on 3 November 2017 and adjustments to the
budjet approved on 6 December 2018. In general a varience of 5% or more is considered material, other
circumstances are taken into account in determining whether a variance is material and could therefore
influence the decisions of the users of the financial statements.
2. Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue collected was less than budgeted by 10.8% as a result of lower than expected cash balances,
this was due to effective cash flow management.
3. Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Actual revenue was less than budgeted by 9% due to less contributions by employers, this is in line with
unfavourable market conditions prevailing during this financial year.
4. Employee costs
Actual expenditure is less than the budget by 16.7%. The variance is mainly due to vacancies not being
filled at the expected rate.
5. Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation is below budget by 45%. This is largely due to the delay in the completion
of the Delta Heights lease improvements, which in turn delayed the commencement of the amortisation
date.
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts for the year ended 31 March 2019
Budget on Accrual Basis
Budget explanations (continued):
6. Impairment of investments
Impairment of investments relates to the unlisted loan and is not budgeted for, the aim of investing is to
get positive return. We will assess the provisionn for impairment in the next financial year.
7. Finance costs
Finance costs were not budgeted for due to their nature being fruitless and wasteful expenditure. The
bulk of the amount in this financial year, represents unwinding of discount for claims provision and
capitalised value of pension. These will be budgeted for in the next financial year.
8. Operating lease rentals
Amount spent was less than budgeted by 26.6%, the Delta Height building was not fully occupied during
the financial year as a result of leasehold improvement that took longer to complete than expected.
9. Impairment losses
The expense is not budgeted for as management must strive for 100% recovery of the Fund’s assets.
10. Actuarial gains/losses
This is largely influenced by changes in the assumptions used by actuaries when calculating the benefit
liability.
11. Benefits paid
The expense is 26% above budget. The budget did not adequately consider mid year actuarial valuation
and claims paid as the budget was set R4.2M during the mid term adjustment.
12. General expenses
The expense is 49% below budget, this is largely as a result of the delay in implementation of ICT
projects.
13. Fair value adjustments
Fair value adjustments are purely determined by market forces and are not influenced by management
actions, hence they are not budgeted for.
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
Accounting Policies
1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board according to
Section 55(1)(b)(c) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).
In the absence of an issued and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions,
events or conditions were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 as read
with Directive 5.
1.1 Basis of Presentation
These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in
accordance with the historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, except for the measurement
of certain financial instruments at fair value, and incorporate the principal accounting policies unless
specified otherwise.
In the absence of an issued and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions,
events or conditions were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 as read
with Directive 5.
Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or
permitted by a Standard of GRAP.
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Annual financial statements are set
out below. These accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the preparation of the prior year
annual financial statements, unless specified otherwise.
1.2 Comparative figures
The Fund’s aim with the preparation of financial statements is to perfect the processes around the
compilation of financial statements with the objective of ensuring the annual financial statements
produced at year end meet the required quality standards. The focus is thus on the current period
figures. The comparitive figures are of one period (which represent a full year) are disclosed.
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
Accounting Policies
1.2 Comparative figures (Continues)
The Fund discloses comparative information in respect of the previous period for all amounts reported in
the financial statements, both on the face of the financial statements and in the notes, unless standards
require otherwise. When the presentation or classification of items in the financial statements is amended,
prior period comparative amounts are reclassified to conform to changes in the current period.
The nature and reason for the reclassification is disclosed. Where prior period errors have been identified
in the current period, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior period
comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the
current period, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior period
comparatives are restated accordingly.
1.3 Presentation currency
These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency
of the Fund. All amount presented in the financial statements are rounded off to the nearest thousand.
1.4 Going concern assumption
These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the Fund will
continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.
1.5 Standards issued but not yet effective
As at the financial reporting date several standards of GRAP have been issued by the Accounting
Standards Board but are not yet effective. These standards will be effective on a date to be announced
by the minister through a directive. None of the standards have been early adopted by the Fund. Below
is a summary of the standards that are not yet effective and the assessment on the Fund’s financial
statements when they become effective.
GRAP34 Separate Financial Statements
The standard is one of two standards that will supercede GRAP6 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements. GRAP35 Consolidated Financial Statements will now deal with consolidated financial
statements. GRAP34 re-defines separate financial statements. Essentially, the impact of GRAP34 is
to allow equity accounting in the separate financial statements, which was not the case with GRAP6
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and GRAP7 Investments in Associates. Currently the
Fund accounts for investments in associates at fair value in its separate financial statements. The fair
value adjustments are then reversed and equity accounting implemented at consolidation level. On
initial application of GRAP34, the Fund will equity account for its associates in the separate financial
statements. Since equity accounting is required at consolidation level, there will be no further adjustments
required. This will reduce the time and effort being expended by the Fund on the year end financial
reporting process while also simplifying the audit process. The standard is effective for the financial
years commencing on 1 April 2020, the Fund has not early adopted the standard.
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Accounting Policies
GRAP35 Consolidated Financial Statements
This standard was issued in order to separate the requirements of separate financial statements from
those of consolidated financial statements as noted above. The standard requires controlled entities to
be consolidated. The Fund currently consolidates its interests in controlled entities. As a result, the initial
application of this standard is not expected to have an impact on the Fund’s financial statements.
The standard is effective for the financial years commencing on 1 April 2020, the Fund has not early
adopted the standard.
GRAP36 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
This standard supercedes GRAP7 Investments in Associates. This standard was issued consistent with
the objective in GRAP34 Separate Financial Statements. The objective of these two standards is to align
the accounting for investments in associates and joint ventures with other financial reporting frameworks
such as International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs) and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs), which allow equity accounting in the separate financial statements. GRAP36 therefore
allows equity accounting in the separate financial statements. When the standard becomes effective, the
Fund will cease to apply GRAP104 to its interests in associates in the separate financial statements and
apply equity accounting. This will reduce financial reporting pressure as equity accounting will also be
applicable at consolidation level, hence no further adjustments will be required.The standard is effective
for the financial years commencing on 1 April 2020, the Fund has not early adopted the standar
GRAP37 Joint Arrangements
The standard supercedes GRAP8 Interests in Joint Ventures. The standard defines joint arrangements
and how these should be classified between joint ventures and joint operations. Consistent with GRAP34,
GRAP37 allows interests in joint ventures to be equity accounted for in the separate financial statements.
Joint operations are proportionately consolidated. The Fund currently proportionately consolidates its
interests in joint operations. As a result, the initial application of this standard is not expected to have an
impact on the Fund’s financial statements.The standard is effective for the financial years commencing
on 1 April 2020, the Fund has not early adopted the standard.
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Accounting Policies
GRAP38 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
The standard’s objective is for the Fund to disclose information that will help users understand its
exposure to risks arising from having interests in other entities as well as the impact on its financial
position, performance and cash flows. Currently GRAP standards do not have a standard regulating
these disclosures. When the standard becomes effective, the Fund will have to increase the disclosures
in its financial statements relating to investments in associates and controlled entities.
The standard is effective for the financial years commencing on 1 April 2020, the Fund has not early
adopted the standard.
GRAP110 Living and Non-Living Resources
The standard defines living and non-living resources. Living resources are plants and animals while nonliving resources are water and non-regenerative resources such as minerals, oil and gas. The standard
prescribes the recognition, measurement and presentation of these resources. The Fund does not
engage in operations that deal with living and non-living resources. However, at group level, one of the
Fund’s associates, Daybreak Farms is involved in poultry production. The associate has living resources
in the form of hatching eggs, breeder and broiler chickens. Broiler parent chickens are currently being
measured at cost less accumulated impairment as they are kept for several years. This is in line with
paragraph 48 of GRAP110. Other biological assets and agricultural produce are measured at fair value
less costs to sell as required by IAS41 Agriculture, which is consistent with the requirements of GRAP27
Agriculture. Consequently, the initial application of GRAP110 is not expected to have an impact on the
Fund’s financial statements as these requirements have already been applied.
The effective date of the standard is yet to be announced.
1.6 Significant judgements and source of estimation
In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of
available information and the application of judgements is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual
results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the annual financial
statements. Significant judgements include:
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Accounting Policies
1.6.1 Outstanding claims
Liabilities for unpaid claims are calculated based on the long term trend of annual claim payments. The
long term trend is achieved by grouping claims paid in each of the previous ten financial years according
to the year of the accident or diagnosis of the disease and the number of years until the payment is
made. The fund makes an allowance for short term factors and future claims inflations to project the
likely incedence of future claim payments. Furthermore, a ‘tail factor’ is applied to the results to reflect
the fact that the claim data contains claim payments in respect of accidents that occurred ten or more
years ago. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions are included in note 17 - Outstanding
claims.
Claims incurred comprise the total estimated cost of claims that have occurred in the year and for which
the Fund is responsible, whether or not reported by the end of the year. Claims and loss adjustment
expenses are charged to surplus or deficit as incurred, based on the estimated liability for compensation.
The Fund discounts its liability for unpaid claims using the effective interest rate to arrive at present value
of estimated future cash payments. Liabilities for unpaid claims are calculated based on an estimated
average cost per claim for each underwriting year. The incurred but not reported claims (“IBNR”) are
based on estimated unreported claims as calculated by the actuaries.The average cost per claim is
based on the actual claims paid and awards made, and estimated outstanding costs (based on the latest
and most reliable information available), and the number of claims registered.
1.6.2 Capitalised value of pensions
Annually the Fund through its actuaries determine the technical liability reflecting the funds that should
be kept aside for all the existing pensioners in order to ensure that there will be adequate reserves
invested at PIC. This will ensure that all pensioners including their spouses and children will be paid for
their entire natural lives
The assumptions used to determine the natural life is based on the factors that will be catered for in
note 15.
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1.6 Significant judgements and source of estimation (continued)
1.6.3 Liability adequacy test in respect of claims benefits
Contracts under which the Fund accepts significant insurance risk from another party (the claimant), by
agreeing to compensate the claimant for a specified uncertain future event (the insurable event) which
affects the claimant adversely are classified as insurance contracts. The Fund accepts insurance risk as
it is mandated by legislation to compensate victims of work related accidents for injuries suffered.
1.6.4 Allowance for doubtful debts
An impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when there is objective evidence that a debtor is
impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the
recoverable amount.
It is the policy of the Fund to impair debtors that are considered to be individually impaired and all
debtors over 180 days unless:


The debtor is on installment plan and has not breached the terms.

 The debtor is blocked or is an estate debtor in which case these are impaired
100% despite being aged less than 180 days.
1.6.5

Accrued revenue: assessments not raised

Where employer assessments have not been finalised and the Return of Earnings (ROEs) remains
open, the Fund makes an estimate of assessments revenue due from the employers.The estimate is
based on the most recent assessments recognised in the previous two years with the third year being
used as a base.
The applicable minimum assessment is also applied where ROEs have remained open during the two
year estimation years
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1.6.6 Accrual for leave, service and performance bonus
The cost of all short term employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee
renders related services. Employee entitlements are recognised when they accrue to employees. An
accrual is recognised for the estimated liability as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
reporting date. Accruals relating to employee benefits include annual leave, capped leave, service and
performance bonus.
1.6.7 Impairment of Financial Assets Held at Amortised Cost
Financial assets held at amortised cost include receivables from exchange transactions, receivables
from non- exchange transactions and other financial assets held at amortised
cost. On the financial assets an impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when there is objective
evidence that it is impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate,
computed at initial recognition. Additional information is disclosed in note 5, note 6 and Note 22.
1.6.8 Impairment Testing
A cash generating or non-cash generating asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable service amount.
These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. The Fund reviews and tests the
carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are
largely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities.
If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future
cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in use of
tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time.
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1.7 Investment property
Investment property is property (land or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation or both, rather than for:
 use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
 administrative purposes, or
 sale in the ordinary course of operations.
Investment property is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic benefits or
service potential that are associated with the investment property will flow to the group, and the cost or
fair value of the investment property can be measured reliably.
Investment property is initially recognised at cost and transaction costs are included in the initial
measurement. The cost of investment property is the purchase price and other costs attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are excluded from the cost of the asset. Where
investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value at the date
of acquisition.
Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured at fair value, the fair value of
investment property reflects market conditions at the reporting date and determined annually by an
independent valuer.
Investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its disposal.
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investment property is measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
surplus or deficit in the period of retirement or disposal.
Compensation from third parties for investment property that was impaired, lost or given up is recognised
in surplus or deficit when it becomes virtually certain that the compensation will be received.
Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or
service a property. If a replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property,
the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised..
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The Fund separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain investment property in the notes to
the financial statements (see note 8).
A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in surplus or deficit for the period in which
it arises
1.8 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative
purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
 it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will
flow to the group; and
 the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost and subsequently carried at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses (except land and buildings).
Buildings are carried at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.Land is carried
at revalued amount being fair value at the date of revaluation and is not depreciated.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable
to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of
acquisition.
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or
assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured
at fair value. If the acquired item’s fair value was not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying
amount of the asset(s) given up.
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1.8 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Items
such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the
definition of property, plant and equipment.
Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.
When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date
of the revaluation is eliminated against gross carrying amount of the asset and net amount restated to
the revalued amount.
Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation
surplus. The increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised in surplus or deficit.
Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus or
deficit in the current period. The decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any
credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.
The revaluation surplus in net assets related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is
transferred directly to accumulated surplus when the asset is derecognised.
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1.8 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item

Depreciation method

Average useful life

Land

Not depreciated

Indefinite

Buildings

Straight line

12 - 50 years

Furniture and fixtures

Straight line

6 - 15 years

Motor vehicles

Straight line

5 - 15 years

IT equipment

Straight line

3 - 10 years

Leasehold improvements

Straight line

Over the lease term

Finance lease for office equipment

Straight line

3 years

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item is depreciated separately.
The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits or
service potential are expected to be consumed by the group. The depreciation method applied to an
asset is reviewed at each reporting date and, if there has been a significant change in the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset, the
method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.
The group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the group expectations
about the residual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date.
If any such indication exists, the group revises the expected useful life and/or residual value accordingly.
The change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the
carrying amount of another asset.
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there
are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.
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1.8 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included
in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
Assets which the group holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary
course of activities, are transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available-forsale. Proceeds from sales of these assets are recognised as revenue. All cash flows on these assets are
included in cash flows from operating activities in the cash flow statement.
The group separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment in the
notes to the financial statements (see note 9).
The group discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development in the
notes to the financial statements (see note 9).
1.9 Intangible assets
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance, an asset is
identifiable if it either:
 is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, 		
transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related
contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of whether the entity intends to do so; or
 arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether
those rights are transferable or separable from the Fund or from other rights and obligations.
A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the
parties to it as if it were in the form of a contract.
An intangible asset is recognised when:
 it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are 		
attributable to the asset will flow to the Fund; and
 the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
The Fund assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using
reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of
economic conditions that will exist over the useful life of the asset.
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1.9 Intangible assets (continued)
Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of
acquisition is measured at its fair value as at that date.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors,
there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows
or service potential. Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other
intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting
date.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual
values as follows:
Item							Useful life
Software licences					3 years
Computer software					1 -10 years
Operating licence					
Indefinite
The Fund discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the
notes to the financial statements (see note 10).
1.10 Financial assets and Liabilities
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or a residual interest of another entity.
The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset
or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an allowance account)
for impairment or uncollectability.
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1.10 Financial assets and Liabilities (continued)
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options), but shall not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue
from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.
There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments
can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the
cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity
shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument or group of
financial instruments.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.
A financial asset is either cash, a residual interest of another entity, a contractual right to receive cash or
another financial asset from another entity, exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another
entity under conditions that are potentially favourable to the Fund.
A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset
to another entity or exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially
unfavourable to the Fund.
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1.10 Financial assets and Liabilities (continued)
A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.
A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
its liabilities. A residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:
 Equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
 A formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to
the transaction as forming part of an entity’s net assets, either before the contribution 		
occurs or at the time of the contribution; or
 A formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing
financial interest in the net assets of an entittyTransaction costs are incremental costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial
liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not
acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument.
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal
of a financial asset or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if
the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument.
Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial
liabilities that have fixed or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that the entity designates
at fair value at initial recognition, or are held for trading. Financial instruments at cost are investments
in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market, and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured.
Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:
 Instruments that are designated at fair value.
 Instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if: (a) on initial 		
recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
(b) non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments
that are designated a fair value at initial recognition; and (c) financial instruments that do not
meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial instruments at cost.
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1.10 Financial assets and Liabilities (continued)
Instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if: (a) on initial recognition it is part
of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; (b) non-derivative financial assets or financial
liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated a fair value at initial recognition; and
(c) financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or
financial instruments at cost.

1.10.1. Classification of Financial assets and liabilities
The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of
the statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:
 Listed shares and bonds
 Bills,certificate of deposits and promissory notes
 Bills, certificate of deposits and promissory notes
 Investment in subsidiary
 Investment in associates
 Investment in unlisted loans
 Fixed deposits
1.10.2. Recognition
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
1.10.3. Measurement
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value (transaction price) plus, in the case of financial
assets or financial liability subsequently measured at amortised cost, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial liability. Transaction costs are
excluded from financial instrument which are subsequently measured at fair value at initial recognition,
these transaction costs are expensed in the statement of financial performance.
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1.10 Financial assets and Liabilities (continued)
1.10.4. Fair value measurement principles
The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by
reference to quoted market bid prices at reporting date. For instruments where there are no active
markets the fair value of the instrument is determined using valuation techniques, including use of
recent arm’s length market transactions, reference to the current market value of another instrument
that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow techniques or any other valuation technique making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.
Certain financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, are valued using pricing models
that consider, among other factors, contractual and market prices, correlation, time value of money, credit
risk, yield curve, volatility factors and/or prepayment rates of the underlying position. The use of different
pricing models and assumptions could produce materially different estimates of fair values. Inputs are
based on market data at the statement of financial position date where other pricing models are used.
The fair value of derivatives that are not exchange-traded is estimated as the amount that the Fund
would receive or pay to terminate the contract at the statement of financial position date, taking into
account current market conditions (volatility, appropriate yield curve) and the current creditworthiness of
the counterparties.
Unlisted investment are measured at fair value determined by external valuator. The external valuator
uses valuation methods which is aligned with Generally Recognised Accounting Practise (GRAP) and
the International Private Equity and Venture Capital (IEPVC) valuation guidelines. For the unlisted equity
investments the price of recent investment approach method, the discounted cash flow techniques
(DCF) and price earnings multiple (PE Multiple) is used to determine fair value after adjusting for any
subsequent events where necessary.
The fair value of floating rate and overnight deposits with credit institutions are their carrying value. The
carrying value is the cost of the deposit and accrued interest. The fair value of fixed interest bearing
deposits is estimated using discounted cash flow techniques. Expected cash flows are discounted at
current market rates for similar instruments at the statement of financial position date. If the fair value can
not be measured reliably, these financial instruments are measured at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration paid for the acqusition of the investment or the amount received on issuing the financial
liability. All transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are also included in the cost of the
investment.
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1.10 Financial assets and Liabilities (continued)
1.10.5. Gains and losses on subsequent measurement
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “Financial assets at fair value through
surplus or deficit” category are presented in the statement of financial performance within “Fair value
adjustment” gains or losses in the period in which they arise.
1.10.6. Expenses
All expenses, including management fees, custodian fees and other transaction costs, are recognised in
the statement of financial performance on an accrual basis.
1.10.7. Dividend income
Dividend income on equity instruments is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the
ex-divided date (when the Fund’s right to receive payment is established). In some cases, the Fund
may receive or choose to receive dividends in the form of additional shares rather than cash. In such
cases the Fund recognises the dividend income for the amount of the cash dividend alternative with
the corresponding debit treated as an additional investment. Dividend income is recognised as part of
investment revenue.
1.10.8. Impairment of financial assets
The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there are any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
Objective evidence of impairment includes:
 Amounts not recovered within 180 days of recognition of the financial asset and the debtor
is not installment plan;
 Information received about the debtor indicating their inability to settle the financial asset; or
 Legal action has been instituted to recover the amount receivable.
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1.10 Financial assets and Liabilities (continued)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in
surplus or deficit. When a receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account for
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised in surplus or deficit.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases, and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
surplus or deficit.
1.10.9. Derecognition
1.10.9.1. Financial Assets
The Fund derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
The Fund derecognises a financial asset only when:
 The contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
 The entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset; or
 The entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, has transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has
the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to
exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose additional restrictions on the
transfer. In this case, the Fund:
		
–
derecognises the asset; and
		
–
recognises separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.
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1.10.9.2. Financial liabilities
The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial
position when it is extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled, expires or waived.
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.
Dividends or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial
liability is recognised as revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.
Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised
as revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.
A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not
offset the transferred asset and the associated liability.
1.10.9.3 Administration contributions
Certain employers are exempt from being assessed in terms of s84 of COIDA. These exempt employers
do not pay contributions based on employee earnings. However, when their employees get injured at
work, the Fund handles the claim process on behalf of the employer. The exempt employer then pays
the adjudicated amount to the employee.
The Fund is rewarded for its efforts based on a fixed rate per claim handled. Exempt employer
contributions are charged based on cases handled during the calendar year (January to December). In
instances where the exempt employer disputes the number of claims handled or the rate applied, this is
investigated and may result in a credit to the employer in the period of dispute if the Fund concludes the
employer has a valid claim.
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1.11 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership.
When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each
element separately.
1.11.1. Finance lease - lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts
equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest
rate implicit in the lease.
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate on the remaining balance of the liability. Any contingent rent is expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.
1.11.2. Operating leases - lessor
Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
1.11.3. Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are
recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.
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1.12 Inventories
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange
transaction, then their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net replacement cost.
1.13 Unclaimed monies
Unclaimed monies are monies that are due to beneficiaries or received from employers, that remain
unclaimed and for which the Fund has been unable to locate the rightful owner through the efforts made.
Unpaid benefits that are outstanding for more than 12 months after efforts are made to locate the righful
owner and correct details are tranferred to the unclaimed monies reserve.
Unclaimed monies are monies that are due to beneficiaries or received from employers, that remain
unclaimed and for which the Fund has been unable to locate the rightful owner through the efforts made.
Unpaid benefits that are outstanding for more than 12 months after efforts are made to locate the righful
owner and correct details are tranferred to the unclaimed monies reserve.
Amounts received in the bank account are posted and cleared in the suspense account, where the
amount are not identified and cleared within 3 months, they are transferred to the unclaimed monies
reserve.
Unclaimed monies are published in the Government Gazette where the rightful owners are invited to
claim and provide the required documentation.
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1.13 Unclaimed monies (continued)
Unclaimed monies are monies that are due to beneficiaries or received from employers, that remain
unclaimed and for which the Fund has been unable to locate the rightful owner through the efforts made.
Unpaid benefits that are outstanding for more than 12 months after efforts are made to locate the righful
owner and correct details are tranferred to the unclaimed monies reserve.
Amounts received in the bank account are posted and cleared in the suspense account, where the
amount are not identified and cleared within 3 months, they are transferred to the unclaimed monies
reserve.
Unclaimed monies are published in the Government Gazette where the rightful owners are invited to
claim and provide the required documentation.
1.14 Impairment of cash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial
return means that positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the
systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through
depreciation (amortisation).
Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after
deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets used with the objective of generating
a commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.
Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance
costs and income tax expense.
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1.14 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)
Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its
useful life.
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length
transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use
Useful life is either:
 the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the group; or
 the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the group.
Judgements made by management in applying the criteria to designate assets as cash-generating
assets or non-cash-generating assets, are as follows:
1.15 Unclaimed monies reserve
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of a group after
deducting all of its liabilities.
1.16 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits is recognised in the period in which the service is rendered.
Provision for leave pay
Provision for employee entitlement to annual leave represents the present obligation the Fund has to
pay as a result of employees’ services provided up to the reporting date. The provision is calculated at
undiscounted amounts based on salary rates effective at the reporting date.
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Provision for performance bonuses
The provision for performance bonuses represents the obligation to reward performance based on
the performance incentive arrangements in place for services rendered up to the reporting date. The
provision is the best estimate of performance bonuses payable in accordance with the rules of the
arrangements at the reporting date.
Post-retirement employee benefits
The Fund contributes to a pension fund on behalf of its employees and is not liable for any actuarial loss
sustained by the pension fund. Accordingly, no provision has been made for any such losses and the
contributions paid are expensed as remuneration.
1.17 Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
 the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential
will be required to settle the obligation; and
 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date.
Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by
another party, the reimbursement is recognised when, and only when:
 It is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation.
 The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset.
 The amount recognised for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision.
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1.17 Provisions and Contingencies (continued)
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
Provisions are reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the obligation.
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the
passage of time. This increase is recognised as an interest expense.
A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is
recognised and measured as a provision.
A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:
 Has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
		

- the activity/operating unit or part of an activity/operating unit concerned;

		

- the principal locations affected;

		

- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be 		

		

compensated for services being terminated;

		

- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and

		

- when the plan will be implemented; and

 has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by
starting to implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.
A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are
those that are both:
 necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
 not associated with the ongoing activities of the group
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in note 29 and note 30.
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1.18 Commitments
Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will
normally result in the outflow of cash.
Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.
Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a
note to the financial statements, if both the following criteria are met:
 Contracts should be non-cancelable or only cancelable at significant cost (for example,
contracts for computer or building maintenance services); and
 Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the
entity – therefore salary commitments relating to employment contracts or social security
benefit commitments are excluded.
1.19 Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when
those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from
owners.
Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrued to the economic entity directly in
return for services rendered/goods sold, the value of which approximates the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting
period when those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions
from owners.
An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities
extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or
use of assets) to the other party in exchange.
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1.19 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of trade and volume
discounts. When the inflow of cash or cash equivalents is deferred and the fair value of the consideration
is less than the nominal amount of cash received or receivable, the arrangement effectively constitutes
a financing transaction.
1.19.1. Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts
and volume rebates.
Rental income
Rental income from operating leases (net of any incentives given to the lesees) is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
Rendering of service
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue
associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction
at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following
conditions are satisfied:
 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction
will flow to the group;
 the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
 the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be
measured reliably.
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1.19 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)
When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue
is recognised on a straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some
other method better represents the stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant
than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed.
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.
Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting
date.
Interest and dividends
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest and dividends or similar
distributions is recognised when:
 It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction
will flow to the entity, and
 The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.
Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.
Dividends or similar distributions are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the entity’s right to receive
payment has been established.
1.20 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange
transaction, an entity either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately
equal value in exchange, or gives value to another entity without directly receiving approximately equal
value in exchange.
Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions,
other than taxes.
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1.20 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as
revenue, except to the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when
those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from
owners.
As the Fund satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources
from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability
recognised, and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.
1.20.1 Measurement
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets
recognised by the Fund.
Employer contributions
Contributions are collected under the Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act (Act
no. 130 of 1993) (COIDA). All employers must register with the Compensation Fund and pay an annual
assessment fee. The annual assessment fee is calculated on total workers’ earnings and an assessment
tariff based on the risks associated with the type of work being done
Provisional payments are made in advance based previous years’ return of earnings submitted by the
employers as required COIDA. Adjustments to provisional payments are made at the begining of the
year and recognised in revenue.
Interest and penalties
Interest and penalties become due and payable to the Fund when employer fails to submit return of
earnings or does not pay the assessments due on time are recognised as required by the COIDA.
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1.21 Finance costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing
of funds.
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
1.22 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had
reasonable care been exercised.
All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement
of financial performance in the period that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in
accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as
revenue in the statement of financial performance.
1.23 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised
expenditure, incurred in contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable
legislation, including (a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of
the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.
National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4)
of the PFMA requires the following (effective from 1 April 2008) and the National Treasury Instruction 1
of 2018/2019 (on the Irregular Expenditure Framework):
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was
condoned before year end and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded
appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an instance, no further action is also required
with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which
condonement is being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No
further action is required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.
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1.23 Irregular expenditure (continued)
Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the
following financial year, the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated
with the amount condoned.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was
not condoned by the National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the
irregular expenditure register. If liability for the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt
account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to
recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or
accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant
note to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If
the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related
thereto must remain against the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note
to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register.
1.24 Budget information
The Fund is subject to budgetary limits in the form of budget authorisation (or equivalent), which is given
effect through authorising legislation.
General purpose financial reporting by Fund shall provide information on whether resources were
obtained and used in accordance with the legally adopted budget.
The approved budget is prepared on a accrual basis and presented by economic classification linked to
performance outcome objectives.
The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2018/04/01 to 2019/03/31.
The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a
comparison with the budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts.
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1.25 Related parties
A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or
exercise significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common
control, or joint control.
Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.
Joint control is the agreed sharing of control over an activity by a binding arrangement, and exists
only when the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control (the venturers).
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity
and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity,
but is not control over those policies.
Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the Fund, including those charged with the governance of the Fund in accordance with legislation, in
instances where they are required to perform such functions.
Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that management in their dealings with the Fund.
1.26 Events after reporting date
Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the
reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events
can be identified:
 those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events
after the reporting date); and
 those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events
after the reporting date).
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1.26 Events after reporting date (continued)
The Fund will adjust the amounts recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after
the reporting date once the event has been identified.
The Fund will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that
such estimate cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure
could influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
1.27 Capitalised value of pensions
Pensions are paid to disabled claimants and widows and children of deceased workers from work related
accidents or occupational diseases. The capitalised value of pensions (“CVP”) is the present value of
future pension payments. The liability is based on assumptions as to future pension increases, mortality,
demographics, management expenses and investment income which are reviewed by management on
an annual basis for reasonableness.
The present value also provides for probable costs payable to the spouse and/or children on subsequent
death of the pensioner. In addition to this basic liability value, contingency reserves are held to cover
the possible impact of adverse variations in the liability. The liability is recalculated at each period end,
using the assumptions above. Valuation of the CVP are projected over the course of the period and
reassessed on an annual basis. Adjustments to the CVP are included in surplus or deficit for the period.
1.28 Interests in other entities
The Fund invests in various entities and instruments in accordance with its investment mandate with
PIC. Some of these investments give the Fund control over the invested while others give it significant
influence. Where the Fund has more than 50% of the voting instruments in the invested, the invested
becomes a controlled entity unless it is clear that such ownership does not convey control. In this case
the invested becomes a controlled entity. In the case where the Fund has between 20% and 50%
ownership of the voting instruments in the invested, the Fund is presumed to have significant influence
over the invested and hence the invested becomes an associate of the Fund, unless it is clear that such
ownership does not give the Fund significant influence.
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1.28 Interests in other entities (continued)
Other circumstances surrounding investments are taken into account to determine whether control
or significant influence exists. These may include material transactions with investees, interchange
of managerial personnel, provision of technical support to investees, application of the law such as
where the investee is placed under the administration of the Fund and legal arrangements amongst
the shareholders. In the Fund’s separate financial statements, investments in controlled entities and
associates are classified as financial assets and measured at fair value in accordance with GRAP104
Financial Instruments. Refer to note 2 and 3 for a list of the Fund’s investments in controlled entities and
associates.
1.29 Prior period error
Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current period financial statements.
Where necessary figures included in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to
ensure that the format in which the information is presented is consistent with the format of the current
period’s financial statements.
1.30 Investments in associates
The Fund annual financial statements
An investment in an associate is carried .
 Representation on the board of directors or equivalent governing of the investee;
 Participation in policy-making processes, including participation in decisions about dividends
or similar distributions;
 Material transactions between the investor and investee;
 Interchange of managerial personnel; or
 Provision of essential technical information.
Investments in asociates are derecognised when the Fund loses significant influence. The Fund loses
significant influence over the investee when it loses the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decision of the investee.
Investment in asociates are assessed for impairment whenever there are indications that the recoverability
of the carrying amount of the associate maybe in doubt. The resulting impairment loss is allocated first to
goodwill. Goodwill is not tested separately but as an integral part of the carrying amount of the associate
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1.31 Tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the
deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the
time of the transaction, affects neither accounting surplus nor taxable profit (tax loss).
A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable surplus will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A
deferred tax asset is not recognised when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting surplus nor taxable profit (tax loss).
A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused STC credits
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable surplus will be available against which the unused tax
losses and unused STC credits can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Group

The Fund

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

Listed shares

15 892 847

14 282 749

15 788 115

14 268 124

Bonds

42 049 488

39 820 509

42 049 488

39 820 509

260 919

569 946

260 919

569 946

Investment in subsidiary (a)

-

-

670 558

720 408

Investments in associates (b)

-

-

351 537

223 868

2. Investment in financial assets
Categories of investment

Bills,certificate of deposit and
promissory notes

Investment in unlisted loans
Fixed deposits

581 030

581 105

581 030

581 105

7 203 239

7 944 806

7 203 239

7 944 806

65 987 523

63 199 115

66 904 886

64 128 766

(a) During the current reporting period, the Fund interest in Razorite Healthcare and Rehabiliation Fund I decrease from
57,60% to 52,46%. Razorite is a Fund investing in healthcare and rehabilitation industry in South Africa and controlled by the
Compensation Fund.
(b) The above investment is classified as associate on account of its board representation and material transactions (refer to
note 3).
Reconciliation of investments
Opening balance

63 226 565

53 995 148

64 128 766

54 821 990

-

(173 802)

(14 626)

(173 802)

4 012 254

3 715 730

4 012 254

3 715 730

Coupon Interest

(3 337 557)

(3 248 080)

(3 337 557)

(3 248 080)

Fair value adjustments

(3 617 889)

2 880 814

(3 586 165)

2 846 085

(237 994)

(124 306)

(231 494)

(124 306)

(19 522 460)

(16 908 358)

(19 522 460)

(16 908 358)

25 601 138

23 360 843

25 456 168

22 927 238

(136 534)

(298 874)

-

272 269

65 987 523

63 199 115

66 904 886

64 128 766

8 516 031

8 928 594

8 516 031

8 928 594

57 471 492

54 270 521

58 388 855

55 200 172

65 987 523

63 199 115

66 904 886

64 128 766

Restatement of prior year errors
Investment income

Impairment of loans at amortised cost
Sale and maturities
Purchases
Investment in associates
Closing balance
Current and non-current split
Current
Non-Current
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Investment in financial assets (continued)
Investment Categories Per Portfolio
Fair Value: Compensation Portfolio 2019
Loans at
amortised cost

Fair value
through
surplus or
deficit

Loans and
receivables

Total

Capital Market

-

26 971 578

-

26 971 578

Equity - Listed Shares

-

9 713 533

-

9 713 533

Investment in Subsidiary

-

670 558

-

670 558

Investment in Associates

-

351 537

-

351 537

Investment unlisted loan

581 030

-

-

581 030

Promissory Note

-

39 324

-

39 324

Certificate of Deposit

-

50 286

-

50 286

Fixed Deposit

-

-

2 769 879

2 769 879

581 030

37 796 816

2 769 879

41 147 725

Fair Value: Pension Portfolio 2019
Loans at
amortised cost

Fair value
through
surplus or
deficit

Loans and
receivables

Total

Capital Market

-

15 077 910

-

15 077 910

Equity - Listed Shares

-

6 074 582

-

6 074 582

Bills

-

73 847

-

73 847

Promissory Notes

-

72 323

-

72 323

Certificate of deposit

-

25 139

-

25 139

Fixed deposit

-

-

4 433 360

4 433 360

-

21 323 801

4 433 360

25 757 161

581 030

59 120 617

7 203 239

66 904 886

Total Fund investments
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Investment in financial assets (continued)
Fair Value: Group 2019
Loans at
amortised cost

Fair value
through
surplus or
deficit

Loans and
receivables

Total

Capital Market

-

42 049 488

-

42 049 488

Equity - Listed Shares

-

15 892 847

-

15 892 847

581 030

-

-

581 030

Unlisted loans
Bills

-

73 847

-

73 847

Promissory Notes

-

111 647

-

111 647

Certificate of deposit

-

75 425

-

75 425

-

-

7 203 239

7 203 239

581 030

58 203 254

7 203 239

65 987 523

Fixed deposit
Total Group investments
Fair Value: Compensation Portfolio 2018
Loans at
amortised cost

Fair value
through
surplus or
deficit

Loans and
receivables

Total

Capital Market

-

26 046 573

-

26 046 573

Equity - Listed Shares

-

9 139 628

-

9 139 628

Investment in Subsidiary

-

720 408

-

720 408

Investment in Associates

-

223 868

-

223 868

Investment unlisted loan

581 105

-

-

581 105

Bills

-

69 453

-

69 453

Promissory Notes

-

48 326

-

48 326

Fixed Deposit

-

-

4 423 660

4 423 660

Certificate of deposit

-

101 696

-

101 696

581 105

36 349 952

4 423 660

41 354 717
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2. Investment in financial assets
(continued)
Fair Value: Pension Portfolio 2018
Loans at
amortised cost

Fair value
through
surplus or
deficit

Loans and
receivables

Total

Capital Market

-

13 773 936

-

13 773 936

Equity - Listed Share

-

5 128 496

-

5 128 496

Bills

-

73 908

-

73 908

Promissory notes

-

71 545

-

71 545

Fixed deposit

-

-

3 521 146

3 521 146

Certificate of deposit

-

205 018

-

205 018

-

19 252 903

3 521 146

22 774 049

581 105

55 602 855

7 944 806

64 128 766

Total investments
Fair Value: Group 2018

Loans at
amortised cost

Fair value
through
surplus or
deficit

Loans and
receivables

Total

Capital Market

-

39 820 509

-

39 820 509

Equity - Listed Share

-

14 282 749

-

14 282 749

Unlisted loans

581 105

-

-

581 105

Bills

-

143 361

-

143 361

Promissory Notes

-

119 871

-

119 871

Fixed deposit

-

-

7 944 806

7 944 806

Certificate of deposit

-

306 714

-

306 714

581 105

54 673 204

7 944 806

63 199 115

Total Group investments
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2. Investment in financial assets (continued)
Maturity schedules listed below are for the Fund and do not include information relating to the subsidiary.
Maturity Schedule Compensation Portfolio 2019
Money
Market

Capital
Market

Listed
Equity

SRI Isibaya

Total

0 - 3 months

1 133 133

51 752

-

-

1 184 885

3 - 12 months

1 726 356

816 964

-

-

2 543 320

1 - 3 years

-

1 558 276

-

-

1 558 276

3 - 7 years

-

4 902 448

-

-

4 902 448

7 - 12 years

-

6 176 645

-

1 603 125

7 779 770

12+ years

-

13 465 493

9 713 533

-

23 179 026

2 859 489

26 971 578

9 713 533

1 603 125

41 147 725

Money
Market

Capital
Market

Maturity Schedule Pensions Portfolio 2019

0 - 3 months

1 933 279

3 - 12 months

Listed
Equity

SRI Isibaya

Total

-

-

-

1 933 279

2 671 390

183 157

-

-

2 854 547

1 - 3 years

-

1 237 297

-

-

1 237 297

3 - 7 years

-

2 624 572

-

-

2 624 572

7 - 12 years

-

4 106 099

-

-

4 106 099

12+ years

-

6 926 785

6 074 582

-

13 001 367

4 604 669

15 077 910

6 074 582

-

25 757 161

7 464 158

42 049 488

15 788 115

1 603 125

66 904 886

Total investments
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2. Investment in financial assets (continued)
Maturity Schedule Compensation Portfolio 2018
Money
Market

Capital
Market

Listed
Equity

SRI Isibaya

Total

0 - 3 months

1 593 189

50 000

-

-

1 643 189

3 - 12 months

3 049 946

332 343

-

-

3 382 289

1 - 3 years

-

753 276

-

-

753 276

3 - 7 years

-

3 689 174

-

1 525 381

5 214 555

7 - 12 years

-

6 362 912

9 139 628

-

15 502 540

12+ years
Total investments

-

14 858 868

-

-

14 858 868

4 643 135

26 046 573

9 139 628

1 525 381

41 354 717

Money
Market

Capital
Market

Maturity Schedule Pensions Portfolio 2018
Listed
Equity

SRI Isibaya

Total

0 - 3 months

1 189 987

31 498

-

-

1 221 485

3 - 12 months

2 681 630

-

-

-

2 681 630

1 - 3 years

-

390 252

-

-

390 252

3 - 7 years

-

3 496 623

-

-

3 496 623

7 - 12 years

-

3 216 563

5 128 496

-

8 345 059

12+ years

-

6 639 000

-

-

6 639 000

3 871 617

13 773 936

5 128 496

-

22 774 049

8 514 752

39 820 509 14 268 124

1 525 381

64 128 766

Total investments
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2. Investment in financial assets (continued)
Fund fair values of financial assets by hierachy level
Fund assets measured at fair value 2019

Level 1
R’000

Level 2
R’000

Level 3
R’000

Total
R’000

Bonds

21 641 894

20 407 594

-

42 049 488

Listed equities

15 788 115

-

-

15 788 115

Unlisted equities

-

-

1 022 095

1 022 095

Bills

-

73 847

-

73 847

Promissory notes

-

111 647

-

111 647

Negotiable certificate of deposit

-

75 425

-

75 425

37 430 009

20 668 513

1 022 095

59 120 617

Fund assets measured at fair value 2018

Level 1
R’000

Level 2
R’000

Level 3
R’000

Total
R’000

Bonds

28 955 022

10 865 487

-

39 820 509

Listed equities

14 268 124

-

-

14 268 124

Unlisted equities

-

-

944 276

944 276

Bills

-

143 361

-

143 361

Promissory notes

-

119 871

-

119 871

Negotiable certificate of deposit

134

-

306 714

-

306 714

43 223 146

11 435 433

944 276

55 602 855
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2. Investment in financial assets (continued)
Fund fair values of financial assets by hierachy level
Reconciliation of Fund fair value
hierachy level 3
Opening balance

Level 1
R’000

Level 2
R’000

Level 3
R’000

944 276

637 414

Purchases

159 912

Sales

(47 786)
(34 307)
1 022 095

Fair value adjustment

Total
R’000

944 276

637 414

427 658

159 912

427 658

-

(47 786)

-

(120 796)

(34 307)

(120 796)

944 276

1 022 095

944 276

The Fund adopted GRAP 104 for financial instruments that are measured in the statement of financial position at fair value,
this requires disclosure of fair value measurement by level of the following heirarchy:

 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);
 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2);

 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs
(level 3).
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2. Investment in financial assets (continued)
Group fair values of financial assets by hierachy level
Group assets measured at fair value 2019

Level 1
R’000

Level 2
R’000

Bonds

21 641 894

Listed equities

Total
R’000

20 407 594

42 049 488

15 892 847

-

15 892 847

Bills

-

73 847

73 847

Promissory notes

-

111 647

111 647

Negotiable certificate of deposit

Group assets measured at fair value 2018

-

75 425

75 425

37 534 741

20 668 513

58 203 254

Level 1
R’000

Level 2
R’000

Total
R’000

Bonds

28 955 022

10 865 487

39 820 509

Listed equities

14 282 749

-

14 282 749

Bills

-

143 361

143 361

Promissory notes

-

119 871

119 871

Negotiable certificate of deposit

-

306 714

306 714

43 237 771

11 435 433

54 673 204

Reconciliation of Group fair value hierachy level 3
Opening balance

944 276

637 414

944 276

637 414

Purchases

159 912

427 658

159 912

427 658

Sales

(47 786)

-

(47 786)

-

Fair value adjustment

(34 307)

(120 796)

(34 307)

(120 796)

1 022 095

944 276

1 022 095

944 276

The Group adopted GRAP 104 for financial instruments that are measured in the statement of financial position at fair value,
this requires disclosure of fair value measurement by level of the following heirarchy:

 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);
 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2);

 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3. Investment in associates
Carrying
amount 2019
Opening balance

Carrying
amount 2018

738 155

Prior years adjustments

Carrying
amount 2019

Carrying
amount 2018

228 170

-

-

-

275 065

-

-

Share of deficit

(76 138)

(97 799)

-

-

Acquisition of investments in associates

166 541

333 490

-

-

2 790

(771)

-

-

(76 393)

-

-

-

754 955

738 155

-

-

Share of foreign translation currency
reserve
Impairment losses

The following information relates to the group’s interest in associates, all the investees are incorporated in South Africa.
The group accounts for its interest as an investment in an associate on account of its board representation and material
transactions.
Name of associate

% held 2019

% held 2018

Nature of business

Year end

Afric Oil

28,87 %

28,87 %

Distribution of
petroleum products

Febuary

Daybreak Farms

33,00 %

33,00 %

Dairy farming

March

Fountain Civil
Engineering

10,00 %

10,00 %

Civil engineering

February

Gurb Investments

10,00 %

10,00 %

Investment company

March

LA Crushers

43,54 %

43,54 %

Earth moving

February

Modderfontein Private
Hospital

36,00 %

36,00 %

Private hospital

February

Musa Capital

15,00 %

15,00 %

Investment company

February

Saldosat Investments

36,00 %

36,00 %

Property letting

February

SA SME Fund

7,43 %

7,16 %

SME funding

February

Zamalwandle
Transport

10,00 %

10,00 %

Transport logistic

February

Busamend

19,88 %

19,88 %

Healthcare

February

Razorite Fund II

40,00 %

-%

Healthcare

March

Kwadukuza Private
Hospital

39,00 %

39,00 %

Healthcare

March

Eden Gardens

30,00 %

30,00 %

Healthcare

March

Ngwenyama
Consortium

50,00 %

50,00 %

Construction

March

Optical & Dental

50,00 %

51,00 %

Healthcare

March

Healthmed

49,00 %

49,00 %

Healthcare

March

Logistic
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3. Investment in associates (continued)
Financial
information
associate
2019
Afric Oil

Total assets

Total liabilities

Revenue

Surplus/
(deficit)

Unrecognised
losses

Cummulative
unrecognised
losses

387 584

483 337

2 591 814

(127 154)

-

-

1 848 877

593 232

2 671 911

284 537

-

-

436 579

464 338

291 451

(63 993)

-

-

Gurb
Investments

135 009

118 465

-

(14 422)

-

-

LA Crushers

216 881

364 621

229 760

(29 262)

(12 741)

(29 752)

Modderfontein
Private

526 421

804 535

89 856

(84 063)

(30 263)

(98 010)

1 259 297

1 855 889

701 701

(252 264)

(39 989)

(103 428)

Saldosat

500 399

413 320

50 621

(10 692)

-

-

SA SME Fund

498 919

9 744

11 959

(23 583)

-

-

Zamalwandle
Transport

241 011

267 391

175 614

(4 343)

(1 206)

(1 258)

155 059

264 465

1 388 437

(303 808)

-

-

Daybreak
Farms
Fountain Civil
Engineering

Hospital
Musa Capital

Logistics
Busamed
Healthmed

22 123

46 933

17 538

36 290

(6 151)

(6 151)

Eden Gardens

352 695

455 353

6 201

(83 298)

(17 793)

(17 793)

Kwadukuza
Private

259 543

317 486

47 908

(36 339)

(1 665)

(1 665)

5 514

11 928

2 205

(12 685)

-

-

17 522

19 036

-

(2 820)

-

-

324 454

345

291

(17 225)

-

-

7 187 887

6 490 418

8 277 267

(745 124)

(109 808)

(258 057)

Hospital
Optical &
Dental
Ngwenyama
Consortium
Razorite Fund
II
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3. Investment in associates (continued)
Financial
information
associate
2018
Afric Oil

Total assets

Total liabilities

Revenue

Surplus/
(deficit)

Unrecognised
losses

Cummulative
unrecognised
losses

446 523

424 791

3 682 593

(108 454)

-

-

1 603 831

632 723

2 607 755

364 720

-

(51 045)

390 644

394 410

657 780

(85 316)

-

-

Gurb
Investments

136 347

105 381

32 652

24 480

-

-

LA Crushers

220 860

340 368

281 808

(44 751)

(13 756)

(17 011)

Modderfontein
Private

515 317

703 505

67 487

(105 770)

(38 077)

(67 748)

1 631 827

1 976 028

678 273

(267 486)

(37 535)

(63 440)

Saldosat

504 767

406 996

97 984

144

-

-

SA SME Fund

125 620

10 763

6 592

(24 803)

-

-

Zamalwandle
Transport

230 459

252 496

136 560

(1 586)

(52)

(52)

1 777 518

769 446

33 879

(38 026)

-

-

Daybreak
Farms
Fountain Civil
Engineering

Hospital
Musa Capital

Logistics
Busamed
Healthmed

47 907

51 720

-

(6 496)

-

-

Eden Gardens

354 111

351 626

-

(43 658)

-

-

Kwadukuza
Private

174 925

173 328

2 254

(27 002)

-

-

16 425

18 250

(697)

-

-

-

8 177 081

6 611 831

8 284 920

(364 004)

(89 420)

(199 296)

Hospital
Ngwenyama
Consortium
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4. Inventories
Consumable stores

1 383

2 013

778

2 013

15 823 002

12 696 481

15 823 002

12 696 481

5. Receivables from non-exchange
transactions
Trade receivables
Other receivables

3 598

2 992

3 598

2 992

Recoverable medical expenses

19 652

15 882

19 652

15 882

Duplicate payments to service providers

47 407

47 390

47 407

47 390

Accrued assessment revenue

94 842

1 301 447

94 842

1 301 447

182 116

182 131

182 116

182 131

71 119

65 787

71 119

65 787

(14 453 428)

(13 075 821)

(14 453 428)

(13 075 821)

Third party claims
Disallowances
Provision for doubtful debts
Unallocated payments
Advance to medical service provider

60 351

64 183

60 351

64 183

452 758

452 758

452 758

452 758

2 301 417

1 753 230

2 301 417

1 753 230

Receivables are carried at amortised cost and the carrying amount approximates the fair value. Debtors (assessed employers) are
granted 30 days from the invoice date to settle outstanding debts.
Receivables from non-exchange transactions past due but not impaired
Receivables which are 30 days and 180 days past due are not considered to be impaired (except estate and blocked debtors). Other
receivables from non-exchange transactions which are less than 180 days past due are not considered to be impaired. At 31 March
2019, R798 799 (2018: R274 825) were past due but not impaired.
30 days past due

424 973

33 248

424 973

33 248

60 days past due

55 564

27 612

55 564

27 612

180 days past due

318 262

213 965

318 262

213 965

798 799

274 825

798 799

274 825

Receivables from non-exchange transactions impaired
As at 31 March 2019, receivables were assessed for impairment and the allowance for impairment has been provided for. As of 31
March 2019, amount of the provision was R14 453 428 (2018: R13 075 821).
The ageing of these receivables is as follows:
Between 180 to 365 days

1 127 945

3 414 785

1 127 945

3 414 785

More than 365 days

9 364 122

6 959 536

9 364 122

6 959 536

Significant debtors

2 550 250

1 842 863

2 550 250

1 842 863

Blocked employers

1 080 590

552 228

1 080 590

552 228

330 521

306 409

330 521

306 409

14 453 428

13 075 821

14 453 428

13 075 821

Estate employers
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Group
2019
R ‘000

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

5. Receivables from non-exchange transactions (continued)
Impairment reconciliation: non-exchange transactions
Opening balance
Impairment loss for the year

13 075 821

7 707 891

13 075 821

7 707 891

1 378 100

5 377 483

1 378 100

5 377 483

(493)

(9 553)

(493)

(9 553)

14 453 428

13 075 821

14 453 428

13 075 821

Amounts written off as irrecoverable
Closing balance

Ageing of significant receivables from non-exchange transactions (Unallocated payments amounting to R60 063 (2018:
R63 850) and provision for doubtful debts amounting to (R14 453 428) (2018: (R13 075 821)) are not included in the ageing
below).
2019

Contribution
by employers

30 days
R'000

60 days
R'000

90 days
R'000

180 days
R'000

365 days
R'000

>365 days
R'000

Total

1 364 027

443 733

48 232

320 077

1 873 183

11 773 750

15 823 002

-

-

-

-

-

452 758

452 758

3 525

1 640

8 599

1 375

1 120

3 393

19 652

Duplicate
payment
to service
Providers

12 861

-

-

-

-

34 546

47 407

Provision for
assessment
not raised

94 842

-

-

-

-

-

94 842

Medical
advance
Recoverable
medical
expenses

Third party
Disallowance
Other
receivables

-

-

-

-

-

182 116

182 116

5 751

-

-

-

72

65 296

71 119

410

74

17

817

154

2 126

3 598

1 481 416

445 447

56 848

322 269

1 874 529

12 513 985

16 694 494
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Group
2019
R ‘000

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

5. Receivables from non-exchange transactions (continued)
2018

Contribution
by employers

30 days
R'000

60 days
R'000

90 days
R'000

180 days
R'000

365 days
R'000

>365 days
R'000

Total

101 403

33 248

27 237

213 887

4 165 902

8 154 804

12 696 481

-

-

-

-

-

452 758

452 758

74

-

-

-

-

15 808

15 882

12 861

-

-

-

-

34 529

47 390

1 301 447

-

-

-

-

-

1 301 447

-

-

-

-

-

182 131

182 131

Disallowance

432

-

-

-

-

65 355

65 787

Other
receivables

653

-

375

201

-

1 763

2 992

1 416 870

33 248

27 612

214 088

4 165 902

8 907 148

14 764 868

Medical
advance
Recoverable
medical
expenses
Duplicate
payment
to service
Providers
Provision for
assessment
not raised
Third party

6. Receivables from exchange transactions
Trade receivables

44 504

53 098

-

-

Other receivables

9 414

8 576

9 414

8 576

-

85

-

85

Investment income receivables

105 588

117 373

105 588

117 373

Provision for impairment

(12 163)

(12 852)

(12 163)

(12 852)

243

604

243

604

Operating lease receivables

Rent Receivable
Accrued interest
Contribution Exempted Employer

142

27

2 330

27

2 330

18 290

15 014

18 290

15 014

165 903

184 228

121 399

131 130
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Group
2019
R ‘000

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

6. Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)
Receivables are carried at amortised cost and the carrying amount approximates the fair value .Debtors are granted credit
terms of 30 days from the date of invoice to settle outstanding debts.
Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
Receivables which are 30 days and 180 days past due are not considered to be impaired (no provision is raised). At 31 March
2019 receivable of R100 (2018: R1) past due but not impaired.
The ageing listed below is for the Fund and do not include information relating to the subsidiary.
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
30 days past due

100

-

60 days past due

-

-1

100

1

Receivables from exchange transactions and other receivables impaired

		

As of 31 March 2019, receivables were assessed for impairment and the allowance for impairment has been provided for. As
of 31 March 2019 amount of the provision of was R12 163 (2018: R12 852).
The ageing listed below is for the Fund and do not include information relating to the subsidiary.
Significant Receivables from exchange transaction - 2019
30 days
R’000
Other receivables
Investment Income
Receivables
Contribution
Exempted
Employers
Rent Receivables
Accrued Interest
Totals
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60 days
R’000

365 days
R’000

>365 days
R’000

Total

9 052

-

-

362

9 414

105 588

-

-

-

105 588

6 717

-

1 244

10 328

18 290

100

100

-

43

243

4

-

-

23

27

121 461

100

1 244

10 756

133 562
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Group
2019
R ‘000
6.

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

365 days
R’000

>365 days
R’000

Total

Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)

Significant Receivables from exchange transaction - 2019
30 days
R’000
Other receivables
Investment Income
Receivables

60 days
R’000
8 214

-

-

362

8 576

117 373

-

-

-

117 373

2 708

1

2 632

9 673

15 014

Contribution
Exempted
Employers
Rent Receivables

561

-

-

43

604

Accrued Interest

2 307

-

-

23

2 330

Operating lease
receivables

85

-

-

-

85

131 248

1

2 632

10 101

143 982

1 244

2 632

10 919

10 220

12 163

12 852

12 852

10 520

(689)

2 332

12 163

12 852

Totals

The ageing of these receivables (for the Fund and does not include subsidiary) is as follows:
More than180
and 365 days
outstanding
More than 365 days

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of receivables from exchange transactions
Opening balance
Provision for
impairment

7.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand
Bank balances
Short-term deposits

144

3

3

3

3

647 397

831 571

647 397

831 571

38 490

95 782

841

29 859

685 890

927 356

648 241

861 433
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8. Investment property
Group and The
Fund

2019
Cost /
Valuation

Investment property

2018

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

10 022

Cost /
Valuation

Carrying
value

-

10 022

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

7 650

Carrying
value

-

7 650

Reconciliation of investment property - 2019
Opening
balance
Investment property

Additions

7 650

Fair value
adjustments

2 022

350

Total
10 022

8. Investment property (continued)
Reconciliation of investment property - 2018
Opening
balance
Investment property

Fair value
adjustments

Total

8 000

(350)

7 650

418

323

418

Repairs and maintenance
Repairs and maintenance for Bhisho

323

A register containing the information required by GRAP16 Investment Property is available for inspection at the registered
office of the Fund.
Additions relates to student accommodation in Polokwane acquired throught a 5% interest in an Unincorporated Joint Venture
with Kleentech Co-Ownership.
The investment property comprises an office building situated on ERF 252, Bhisho House, in Eastern Cape. The building is
currently being leased to the Department of Public Works. The property is valued by a qualified valuer an an annual basis.
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9. Property, plant and equipment
Group

2019
Cost /
Valuation

Land

2018

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Cost /
Valuation

Carrying
value

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying
value

49 000

-

49 000

49 000

-

49 000

373 606

(12 806)

360 800

312 226

(10 827)

301 399

42 600

(30 455)

12 145

81 155

(29 686)

51 469

2 646

(1 521)

1 125

2 825

(1 567)

1 258

IT equipment

25 366

(12 591)

12 775

15 268

(10 476)

4 792

Leasehold
improvements

76 559

(31 680)

44 879

46 921

(5 141)

41 780

5 445

(3 572)

1 873

5 832

(2 113)

3 719

-

-

-

18 136

-

18 136

575 222

(92 625)

482 597

531 363

(59 810)

471 553

Buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

Finance leased office
equipment
Leasehold
improvements
under construction
Total
The Fund

2019
Cost /
Valuation

Land

2018

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Cost /
Valuation

Carrying
value

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying
value

49 000

-

49 000

49 000

-

49 000

107 761

(12 806)

94 955

107 528

(10 827)

96 701

42 600

(30 455)

12 145

39 173

(29 686)

9 487

2 646

(1 521)

1 125

2 825

(1 567)

1 258

IT equipment

25 366

(12 591)

12 775

12 313

(10 476)

1 837

Leasehold
improvements

76 559

(31 680)

44 879

46 921

(5 141)

41 780

5 445

(3 572)

1 873

5 832

(2 113)

3 719

-

-

-

18 136

-

18 136

309 377

(92 625)

216 752

281 728

(59 810)

221 918

Buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

Finance leased office
equipment
Leasehold
improvement
under construction
Total
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9. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2019
The reconciliation below is for the Fund and does not include information relating to the subsidiary.
Opening
balance

Additions

Disposals/
Adjustments

Transfers

Depreciation

Total

Land

49 000

-

-

-

-

49 000

Buildings

96 701

233

-

-

(1 979)

94 955

Furniture and fixtures

9 487

5 526

(312)

-

(2 556)

12 145

Motor vehicles

1 258

-

(113)

-

(20)

1 125

IT equipment

1 837

13 715

(110)

-

(2 667)

12 775

Leasehold
improvements

41 780

4 469

-

25 168

(26 538)

44 879

3 719

-

33

-

(1 879)

1 873

18 136

7 032

-

(25 168)

-

-

221 918

30 975

(502)

-

(35 639)

216 752

Revaluations

Depreciation

Finance leased office
equipment
Leasehold
improvements under
construction

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2018
Opening
balance

Additions

Total

Land

36 000

-

13 000

-

49 000

Buildings

86 451

-

13 850

(3 600)

96 701

Furniture and fixtures

2 318

8 407

-

(1 238)

9 487

Motor vehicles

1 344

-

-

(86)

1 258

IT equipment

2 334

489

-

(986)

1 837

-

46 921

-

(5 141)

41 780

1 290

4 296

-

(1 867)

3 719

-

18 136

-

-

18 136

129 737

78 249

26 850

(12 918)

221 918

Leasehold
improvements
Finance leased office
equipment
Leasehold
improvements under
construction
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Group
2019
R ‘000

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

9. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Repairs and maintenance for PPE
Repairs and maintenance costs incurred during the year to service property, plant and equipment are listed in the
table below:
Land and buildings

1 544

12 919

639

12 919

IT Equipment

86

1

86

1

Motor vehicles

314

616

314

616

Furiniture and fixtures

714

485

714

485

2 658

14 021

1 753

14 021

Finance leased equipment are financed through a 3 year finance lease, refer to note 12 regarding the lease liability attaching
to these machines.
Property, plant and equipment were disposed of for a total consideration amounting to R125 (2018 :R85).
Assets under construction relate to Leasehold improvements being effected to the Delta Heights building, the premises to
which the Fund relocated to in December 2017. The Fund moved in on completion of phase 1 of the leasehold improvements,
which related to floors 11 to 20 of Delta Heights. Floors 1 to 10, making up phase 2, was still under construction at 31 March
2018.
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10. Intangible assets
Group

2019
Cost /
Valuation

Software licence

Total

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying
value

(57 924)

41 918

99 842

(36 054)

63 788

450

-

450

493

-

493

26 495

(18 106)

8 389

30 879

(17 925)

12 954

126 787

(76 030)

50 757

131 214

(53 979)

77 235

The Fund

2019
Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Software licence

99 842

(57 924)

Software
development

26 495
126 337

Total

Cost /
Valuation

Carrying
value

99 842

Operating licence
Software
development

2018

2018
Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

41 918

99 842

(36 054)

63 788

(18 106)

8 389

30 879

(17 925)

12 954

(76 030)

50 307

130 721

(53 979)

76 742

Carrying
value

Group
2019
R ‘000

Carrying
value

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

Amortisation

Total

The reconciliation below is for the Fund and does not include subsidiary.
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2019
Opening balance

Additions

Adjustments

Software licence

63 788

-

-

(21 870)

41 918

Software
development

12 954

12

(319)

(4 258)

8 389

76 742

12

(319)

(26 128)

50 307

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2018
Opening balance
Software Licences
Software
development
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Additions

Amortisation

Total

97 068

-

(33 280)

63 788

6 280

9 205

(2 531)

12 954

103 348

9 205

(35 811)

76 742
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Group

The Fund

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

Opening balance

Additions

Amortisation

Total

11. Prepayments
Other expenses
Advertising

7 702

1 194

1 204

1 194

87 817

36 067

87 817

36 067

95 519

37 261

89 021

37 261

Other expenses consist of electricity, postage and employee leave. Advertising is a prepayment made to GCIS for media
related expenses.
12. Finance lease obligation
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to third year inclusive

1 910

2 197

1 910

2 197

282

2 159

282

2 159

2 192

4 356

2 192

4 356

less: future finance charges

(130)

(453)

(130)

(453)

Present value of minimum lease payments

2 062

3 903

2 062

3 903

1 784

1 875

1 784

1 875

278

2 028

278

2 028

2 062

3 903

2 062

3 903

278

2 028

278

2 028

1 784

1 875

1 784

1 875

2 062

3 903

2 062

3 903

Present value of minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to third year inclusive

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
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2019
R ‘000

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

12. Finance lease obligation (continued)
The lease liability relates to photocopying machines that are leased from Konica Minolta over an initial 3 year lease term.
On expiry of the initial lease term the Fund has the option to extend the lease for another 2 years subject to a monthly
rental equal to 25% of the initial rental. Due to the rapid changes in technology, the Fund does not exercise the extension
option. Rather, the machine is collected by the lessor on expiry of 3 years and a new lease entered into.
13. Payables from non-exchange transactions
Debtors with credit balances

804 117

999 766

804 117

999 766

61 630

108 945

61 630

108 945

865 747

1 108 711

865 747

1 108 711

64 175

27 526

41 591

15 560

1 237

1 429

1 237

1 429

Operating lease payables

12 468

19 440

12 468

19 440

Unsettled Investments

97 982

10 421

2 783

10 421

18 358

160 595

18 358

160 595

194 220

219 411

76 437

207 445

Compensation, medical and pension
payables

14. Payables from exchange transactions
Trade payables
Debtors with credit balances

Unallocated receipts
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2019
R ‘000

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

22 224 947

21 757 000

22 224 947

21 757 000

Actuarial losses/(gains)

8 822 000

(1 370 000)

8 822 000

(1 370 000)

Interest cost

1 734 000

2 269 000

1 734 000

2 269 000

315 000

653 000

315 000

653 000

Payments to pensioners

(1 159 702)

(1 084 053)

(1 159 702)

(1 084 053)

Closing balance

31 936 245

22 224 947

31 936 245

22 224 947

Non-current liabilities

30 307 406

21 080 620

30 307 406

21 080 620

1 628 839

1 144 327

1 628 839

1 144 327

31 936 245

22 224 947

31 936 245

22 224 947

15. Capitalised value of pensions
Reconciliation of the capitalised value of pensions
Opening balance

Admission of new pensioners

Current liabilities

The noticeable increase in the pension liability was largely driven by increase in the data reserve and increase pension
benefits rates.
Key assumptions used
The key variables, assumptions and estimates that significantly affect the timing, uncertainty and measurement of the
liability were as follows at the reporting date:
Discount rate

6,50 %

7,00 %

6,50 %

7,00 %

Inflation

5,50 %

6,00 %

5,50 %

6,00 %

10,00 %

10,00 %

10,00 %

10,00 %

Expense margin
Mortality exposure

7,50 %

7,50 %

7,50 %

7,50 %

Capitalised pensions margin

15,00 %

15,00 %

15,00 %

15,00 %

Average expense per medical claim

R 44,55

R 42,62

R 44,55

R 42,62

R 768,70

R 735,46

R 768,70

R 768,70

Average expense for all other claims:
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2019
R ‘000

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

15. Capitalised value of pensions (continued)
Reconciliation of the capitalised value of pensions
Compensation benefits methodology
TTD

			

The claims data is inflated to 31 March 2019 and projected to ultimate using the claims run-off pattern and the chain ladder
method. The projected outstanding claims were inflated and discounted to 31 March 2019 to determine the claim reserve as
at 31 March 2019.
Medical
The claims data is inflated to 31 March 2019 and projected to ultimate using the claims run-off pattern and the BornhuetterFerguson method. The projected outstanding claims were inflated and discounted to 31 March 2019 to determine the claim
reserve as at 31 March 2019.
PD, Death and Capitalised Pensions
The South African workforce and expected cost per employee were used in an adjusted Bornhuetter-Ferguson method to
obtain the ultimate claims in respect of each origin period. A development pattern was applied to the ultimate claims by origin
period to determine the total amount of claims outstanding.
A ruling was recently passed whereby new pensioners and employers with permanent disabilities would be awarded on a
revised benefit scale. For Capitalised Pensions and PD, the reserve was further increased by 16% and 3% respectively to
allow for increases due to the change in how benefit amounts are determined.
16. Accruals
Accumulated Leave

46 185

40 554

46 185

40 554

Service and Performance Bonus

29 942

30 873

29 942

30 873

Accrued Expenses

74 461

66 771

72 030

66 771

150 588

138 198

148 157

138 198

129 291

102 441

129 291

102 441

-

26 850

-

26 850

129 291

129 291

129 291

129 291

17. Revaluation reserve
Opening balance
Change during the year
Closing balance

The revaluation surplus relates to land and building, being Compensation House propery at Portion 90 of the Farm Prinshof
349-JR, situated at the corner of Soutpansberg Road and Hamilton Street in Pretoria. The property is revalued every 3
years by a competent valuer with recent experience in the location and this type of property. The property was valued by
capitalising market rentals achievable for this property using current market yields. The valuer, Mr Peter Parfitt, is a registered
professional valuer in terms of the Property Valuer’s Professional Act 47 of 20
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2019
R ‘000

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

18. Outstanding claims
Reconciliation of the provision for outstanding claims

Opening balance

11 116 000

12 372 000

11 116 000

12 372 000

Actuarial gains

(3 103 000)

(3 613 000)

(3 103 000)

(3 613 000)

778 000

916 000

778 000

916 000

3 987 000

3 102 000

3 987 000

3 102 000

(1 772 000)

(1 661 000)

(1 772 000)

(1 661 000)

11 006 000

11 116 000

11 006 000

11 116 000

Non-current liabilities

9 389 964

9 344 000

9 389 964

9 344 000

Current liabilities

1 616 036

1 772 000

1 616 036

1 772 000

11 006 000

11 116 000

11 006 000

11 116 000

Unwinding of discount
Increase in provision
Claims paid

Key assumptions							
The key variables, assumptions and estimates that significantly affect the timing, uncertainty and measurement of the liability
were as follows at the reporting date:
Discount rate

6,50 %

7,00 %

6,50 %

7,00 %

Inflation

5,00 %

6,00 %

5,00 %

6,00 %

Expense margin

10,00 %

10,00 %

10,00 %

10,00 %

Disability exposure (TTD & PD)

15,00 %

15,00 %

15,00 %

15,00 %

Medical expense exposure

15,00 %

15,00 %

15,00 %

15,00 %

Pensions methodology
The pensioner and constant attendance allowance provision is determined by calculating the present value of all expected
future associated obligations, namely:






Pension payments;
Constant attendance allowance payments
Expenses associated with paying the provisions; and,
Investment returns.

The present value includes margins.
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2019
R ‘000

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

19. Revenue
Revenue from exchance transactions is made up of the following:
(a) Other revenue from exchange transactions
Interest on bank accounts

75 140

138 213

75 140

135 222

Interest from shareholders loan

49 336

41 312

-

-

Administration fees

6 866

3 027

6 866

3 027

Rental income

3 924

1 143

1 038

1 038

33 633

7 879

-

-

2 195

231

481

17

171 094

191 805

83 525

139 304

4 059 334

3 798 220

4 059 334

3 798 220

519 249

420 307

519 249

420 307

480

2 005

480

2 005

4 579 063

4 220 532

4 579 063

4 220 532

4 750 157

4 412 337

4 662 588

4 359 836

34 495

33 139

34 495

33 139

8 539 915

6 972 843

8 539 915

6 972 843

Hospital revenue
Miscellaneous income

(b) Investment income
Interest received from investments
Dividends received
Other income

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions is made up of the following:
Other Income
Employer contributions
Interest and penalties

762 323

335 359

762 323

335 359

9 336 733

7 341 341

9 336 733

7 341 341

4

3 223

4

3 223

8 790

-

8 790

-

20. Benefits
Compensation Claims
Funeral Expenses
Constant Attendance Allowance
Comp benefit: Temporary

-

848

-

848

Comp benefit: Permanent

228 969

4 588

228 969

4 588

Comp benefit: Pension

315 000

682 945

315 000

682 945

4 826 151

4 033 143

4 826 151

4 033 143

(25 821)

(18 342)

(25 821)

(18 342)

Medical benefits
Recovery Med X-cases
Recovery Third Party
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-

(877)

-

(877)

5 353 093

4 705 528

5 353 093

4 705 528
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2019
R ‘000

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

Actuarial (gains)/losses
Capitalised value of pension
Outstanding claims

8 822 000

(1 370 000)

8 822 000

(1 370 000)

(3 103 000)

(3 613 000)

(3 103 000)

(3 613 000)

-

-

-

-

5 719 000

(4 983 000)

5 719 000

(4 983 000)

20. Benefits (continued)
Actuarial gains/(losses) relates to the changes in assumptions, experience deviations as compared to the valuation basis
and data change impact.
21. Employee costs
Basic
Performance Bonus

620 609

513 988

576 478

513 988

5 970

13 965

5 970

13 965

Leave pay

11 223

3 061

11 223

3 061

Allowances

49 207

43 590

49 207

43 590

Overtime benefits

9 355

12 312

9 355

12 312

Thirteenth cheque

43 505

36 668

43 505

36 668

187

167

187

167

Pension contributions

72 317

63 190

72 317

63 190

Medical aid contributions

44 708

40 425

44 708

40 425

857 081

727 366

812 950

727 366

Bargaining council contributions

22. Impairment of investments
Investments in associates
Investments in unlisted loans

76 393

-

-

-

237 994

124 306

231 494

124 306

314 387

124 306

231 494

124 306

Impairment losses related to investement in unlisted loans accounted for at amortised cost (refer to note 2) and impairment
of investments in associates (refer to note 3).
23. Finance costs
Unwinding of discount

2 512 000

3 185 000

2 512 000

3 185 000

Interest on shareholders loan

9 307

-

-

-

Interest on overdue accounts

21 293

11 248

21 293

11 248

2 542 600

3 196 248

2 533 293

3 196 248

Unwinding of discount is the interest charged on capitilised value of pension and the provision for outstanding claims in
order to build up the discounted liability to its future value.
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2019
R ‘000

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

24. Operating lease rental
Premises
Office building
Equipment
Contractual amounts

70 380

72 970

69 805

72 970

42 910

41 712

42 910

41 712

113 290

114 682

112 715

114 682

25. General expenses							
Auditors remuneration
Consulting and professional fees
Printing and stationery
Subsidies for accident prevention

9 918

9 490

9 708

9 490

112 002

86 166

68 081

51 225

7 345

4 633

6 781

4 633

-

11 428

-

11 428

2 981

14 438

2 076

14 438

197 430

122 043

197 430

122 043

Subsistence and travel

44 946

36 866

44 946

36 866

Training

35 105

25 449

35 105

25 449

Assessors' fees

1 225

1 714

1 225

1 714

Other expenses

173 416

111 638

100 900

85 722

60 326

59 933

60 326

59 933

Repairs and maintenance
ICT expenses

Investment management fees
Compensation board
Venue expenses
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1 101

691

1 101

691

13 687

5 723

13 687

5 723

659 482

490 212

541 366

429 355
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2019
R ‘000

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

26. Cash generated from operations
(Deficit)/surplus for the period

(6 539 610)

4 870 352

(6 329 880)

4 803 967

69 540

48 728

61 767

48 728

7 057

(19 525)

7 057

(19 525)

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Lease rentals on operating lease
(Losses)/gains on disposal of assets

297

(85)

297

(85)

Rental income

(3 924)

(1 143)

(1 038)

(1 038)

Share of losses from associate

76 138

97 799

-

-

3 587 889

(3 024 393)

3 585 815

(2 845 733)

129

289

129

289

(4 106 847)

(3 832 903)

(4 057 511)

(3 788 600)

(519 248)

(420 307)

(519 248)

(420 307)

9 222

1 227

9 222

(10 213)

Fair value adjustments
Invesment management fees and
transaction costs
Interest income
Dividend income
General expenses
Other income
Impairment losses
Interest income on bank accounts

(233)

(613)

(233)

(613)

1 377 411

5 379 815

1 377 411

5 379 815

-

-

-

-

(6 866)

(3 027)

(6 866)

(3 027)

Increase in the capitalised value of pensions

9 745 082

467 947

9 745 082

467 947

(Decrease) in the Provision for

Administration contributions s88

(110 000)

(1 236 000)

(110 000)

(1 236 000)

outstanding claims Impairement of
investments

314 387

124 306

231 494

124 306

Tax (benefit)/expense

(43 708)

6 119

-

-

630

(226)

1 235

(226)

Changes in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease in exchange receivables
Increase in non exchange receivables
Increase in prepayments

15 904

35 116

4 423

59 758

(2 043 229)

(149 295)

(2 043 229)

(136 609)

(58 258)

(33 407)

(51 760)

(33 407)

Decrease in exchange payables

112 020

4 564

488

11 836

(Decrease) in non exchange payables

(89 891)

(440 299)

(89 891)

(441 146)

Increase in accrued expenses
Deferred tax

158

12 398

38 378

9 966

38 390

(10 121)

8 288

-

-

1 796 169

1 921 705

1 824 730

1 998 507
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2019
R ‘000

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

27. Fair value adjustments
Investment property

350

(350)

350

(350)

(3 588 239)

3 024 742

(3 586 165)

2 846 083

(3 587 889)

3 024 392

(3 585 815)

2 845 733

-

8 729

-

8 729

3 091

2 144

Goods

-

160

Minor assets

-

4 231

Contracts: 0-1

97 242

56 854

Contracts: 2-5

210 551

44 650

310 884

108 039

50 647

19 932

310 884

108 039

50 647

19 932

361 531

127 971

Financial assets

 at fair value
28. Commitments
Information relating to commitments are for the Fund and does not include subidiary
Authorised capital expenditure
Already contracted for but not provided for



Property, plant and equipment

Total capital commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for

Authorised operational expenditure
Already contracted for but not provided for







Services

Not yet contracted for and authorised by members



Goods and services

Total operational commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for
Not yet contracted for and authorised by members

This committed expenditure relates to property and will be financed by available bank facilities, retained surpluses, existing
cash resources, funds internally generated, etc.
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2019
R ‘000

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

Operating leases - as lessee (expense)
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

56 172

112 630

21 116

129 026

77 288

241 656

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated
for an average term of seven years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years. No contingent rent is payable.
29. Contingent Assets
During the 2018 financial year, a forensic investigation was concluded on a case of Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure for
an amount of R403 million included therein. The investigation found two former officials responsible. A recovery process was
initiated through the state attorney to recover this amount from the two former officials.
There is a probable asset that arose as a result of the actions of the aforementioned officials, whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of an uncertain future event (confirmation from the state attorney on whether
the aforementioned officials are financially sound and will be able to pay the R403 million).
30. Contingent Liabilities
Licences in terms of section 30 of the act to carry out the business of the fund in certain industries have been granted by
the Minister of Labour to two Mutual Associations. These mutual associations must deposit securities with the fund to cover
its liabilities. Furthermore,certain local authorities have been granted exemption from paying annual assessments and are
liable to pay compensation benefits to employees who get injured while on duty. In terms of section 31 of the COIDA,these
exempted employers are required to deposit securities/cede securities to the Fund which are equivalent to the capitalized
value of pension of their employees.
If a mutual association or an exempted employer fails to meet its liabilities in full in terms of the Act,the Accounting Authorities
may apply such securities to pay the liabilities and the balances of any liabilities not paid from such securities will have to be
paid from Reserves from the fund which creates a contingent liability to the fund. The extent of securities held/ceded to the
fund amounts R25 267 918 (2018: R22 361 681)
Furthermore the Fund has received approximately 136 (2018:322) notices of court motions and summons with a potential
financial impact of R19 419 (2018: R17 733).
31. Related parties
Relationships
Board, audit and risk committee members

Refer to members’ report note 32

Senior Management

Refer to note 32

Audit and risk committees

Refer to note 32

Supported Employment Enterprises

Associate company under common control

Department of Labour (DoL)

The Fund is under control of DoL

Close family member of key management

Name

Investments in subsidiary and associates

Refer to note 2 & 3

Rand Mutual Association

Cross sharing of board members

Federal Employers' Mutual Assurance Company

Cross sharing of board members
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R ‘000

The Fund
2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

31. Related parties (continued)
Related party transactions
Costs incurred through related parties
Department of Labour - employee costs

805 958

725 186

Department of Labour - goods and services

227 571

204 066

79

8 323

74 161

76 402

9 612

9 561

24 650

23 578

Supported Employment Enterprises
Services acquired from related parties
Rand Mutual Association
Administration contributions
Rand Mutual Association
Federal Employers'
Company

Mutual

Assurance

32. Executive Emoluments
Executive emoluments information is for the Fund and does not include subsidiary. In 2018 financial year, the Fund had
full staff complement Chief Directorate level therefore the Directors were not longer reporting to the Commissioner and the
related emolument are not presented below.
Executive
2019					
Emoluments

Other benefits

Pension paid
or receivable

Total

Compensation Commissioner

859

462

176

1 497

Chief Operating Officer

974

250

200

1 424

Chief Director: Corporate Services

981

206

185

1 372

Chief Director: COID Services

698

348

143

1 189

Chief Director: Financial Management

867

191

167

1 225

Chief Director: Medical Service

749

222

153

1 124

5 128

1 679

1 024

7 831
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The Fund

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

2019
R ‘000

2018
R ‘000

Emoluments

Other benefits

Pension paid
or receivable

Total

32. Executive Emoluments (continued)

2018

Compensation Commissioner

870

455

164

1 489

Chief Financial Officer

919

211

188

1 318

Chief Director: Corporate Services

587

121

115

823

Chief Director: COID Services

501

217

91

809

66

247

13

326

2 943

1 251

571

4 765

-

-

Mr FA Xaba

196

137

Mr Cowley

68

35

-

29

Mr S Tsiane

78

45

Ms J Bodibe

85

62

Mr S Motloung

-

44

Ms E Kula

2

32

Mr S Sobuwa

9

9

Mr A Letshele

55

41

5

-

53

-

Ms MS Van Niekerk

11

-

Mr J Wilimiec

59

-

7

-

628

434

Chief Operating Officer

Board members fees
Emoluments

Mr S Samela

Mr ES Manganyi
Mr SC Sibitane

Mr L Moni
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32. Executive Emoluments (continued)
Audit committee member fees
Ms R Kalidas

-

35

Mr D Hlatshwayo

-

51

Mr L Mangquku

-

38

Mr N Mhlongo

-

36

Mr CF Terhoeven

173

47

Mr FA Xaba

196

75

Mr P Dala

141

29

Ms LZ Francois

274

2

784

313

382

129

-

17

Risk Committee
Mr L Mangquku
Mr N Mhlongo
Mr D Hlatshwayo

-

2

382

148

33. Prior period errors
Analysis of adjustments resulting from correction of prior period errors Statement of financial position
Statement of financial position
Investments – current assets
In the prior year, two call accounts held by PIC on behalf of the fund and from which investments transactions are paid from
and received into were classified as part of the investments balance. These cash balances are withdrawable by the Fund
on demand, hence meet the definition of cash balances. As a result, these balances amounting to R645 246 have been
reclassified from investments to cash and cash equivalents.
Receivables from exchange transactions
In the prior year a bank account was established to cater for transactions emanating from the Bisho property such as repairs
and maintenance. This account was erroneously classified with receivables from exchange transactions instead of cash and
cash equivalents. As a result, this account balance amounting to R34 732 has been reclassified from exchange receivables
to cash and cash equivalents.
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33. Prior period errors (continued)
Receivables from exchange transaction (continued)
An amount was also advanced to the property manager of Bisho for the purpose of effecting repairs to the property. At year
end R694 remained unused. This unused portion was erroneously classified with PPE instead of receivables from exchange.
It has thus been reclassified out of PPE into exchange receivables. The net reclassification on exchange receivables of R34
038 is net of the R34 732 and R694.
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
An overpayment occurred during the prior year to the Department of Justice. The amount was refunded in the current year.
However in the prior year this amount had not been raised as a debtor, hence the prior year balance was restated to accrue
for this receivable amounting to R399.
Cash and cash equivalents
The cash balances have been restated to account for the reclassifications noted above totalling, being the R645 246 and
R34 732.
Investments - non-current
During the prior year the Fund classified some investments as investments in associates and controlled entities in its separate
financial statements. It was later realised that GRAP7 does not allow equity accounting in the separate financial statements.
As a result, these investments amounting to R834 010 have been reclassified into non-current investments
Investment property
The Bisho property was fair valued downwards during the prior year. However, the fair value adjustment of R350 could not
be journalised in time for the financial statements, hence the carrying amount of the property has been restated downward
with this amount.
Property, plant and equipment
In the prior year land and buildings forming part of PPE were revalued. The revaluation adjustment relating to buildings was
calculated as R13 850. However, the adjustment was journalised as R21 242, resulting in an overstatement of the revaluation
reserve and PPE of R7 392. PPE has thus been restated to correct for this error.
Furthermore, an intangible asset under development amounting to R9 205 was classified as PPE. An amount of R1 260
relating to cash advanced to the Bisho property manager for the purpose of effecting repairs was also classified as PPE
instead of the unused balanced being classified as exchange receivables and the used portion being epensed as repairs and
maintenance. The total of R10 465 (R9 205 plus R1 260) has thus been reclassified out of PPE to correct for these errors.
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33. Prior period errors (continued)
Intangible assets
As noted under PPE above, an amount of R9 205 relating to intangible assets under development was classified with PPE
in error. The reclassification adjustment is to correct for this error.
Investments in associates
In the prior year the Fund created a line item investments in associates on its statement of financial position. This line item
amounting to R216 448 has been reclassified back into non-current investments as all equity investments should be shown
at fair value in the separate financial statements.
Investments in controlled entities
In the prior year the Fund created a line item investments in controlled entities on its statement of financial position. This line
item amounting to R693 628 has been reclassified back into non-current investments as all equity investments should be
shown at fair value in the separate financial statements.
Finance lease liability - current
The current finance lease liability was not updated to reallocate some operating lease charges of R94 to the appropriate
expense accounts, which caused the liability to close in debit. Further, at year end an amount of R1 875 need to have been
reclassified from the non-current portion to the current portion as these were now payable within 12 months. The total
reclassification of R1 969 was done to correct expenses which were understated by R94 and non-current lease liability which
was overstated by R1 875.
Payables from exchange transactions
In the prior year employer balances in credit were classified as exchange payables. It was later concluded that since the
underlying transactions giving rise to these balances are non-exchange in nature (the payment of contributions by employers),
it is more appropriate to classify these balances as non-exchange, hence employers with credit balances of R999 766 were
reclassified to non-exchange payables.
Non-exchange payables
Non-exchange payables were restated for the reclassification of employer balances in credit of R999 766 as noted above.
Accrued expenses
Several payments relating to services received in the prior year were made in the current year and had not been accrued for
at the end of the prior year. These included perfromance bonus, IT costs, bursaries and others. The restatement of R3 706
is to correct for this cut-off error.
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33. Prior period errors (continued)
Outstanding claims - current
The outcome of the actuarial valuations could not be journalised in time for the financial statements. The prior year balance
was therefore restated by R206 867 to take into account the updated liability balances per the actuarial report.
Capitalised value of pensions - current
The outcome of the actuarial valuations could not be journalised in time for the financial statements. The prior year balance
was therefore restated by R1 129 000 to take into account the updated liability balances per the actuarial report.
Finance lease liability - non-current
At the end of the prior year R1 875 of the lease liability need to have been transferred to the current portion as these were
now due within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. The reclassification was effected to take into account this
disclosure requirement.
Outstanding claims - non-current
The outcome of the actuarial valuations could not be journalised in time for the financial statements. The prior year balance
was therefore restated by R1 229 251 to take into account the updated liability balances per the actuarial report.
Capitalized value of pensions - non-current
The outcome of the actuarial valuations could not be journalised in time for the financial statements. The prior year balance
was therefore restated by R348 026 to take into account the updated liability balances per the actuarial report.
Revaluation reserve
As noted above under PPE, the revaluation adjustment for buildings was overstated by R7 392, hence the restatement of
the reserve to correct for this error.
Opening accumulated surplus
During the year the Fund performed equity accounting for investments in associates. It was subsequently noted that unlike
other accounting frameworks such as IPSASs and IFRSs, GRAP does not permit equity accounting in the separate financial
statements. Consequently, the impact of equity accounting had to be reversed for all the prior years. The restatement of R96
160 relates to all the share of surpluses and deficits of the associates as well as impairment losses that had been recognised
for the prior years up to the 31st of March 2017.
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33. Prior period errors (continued)
Statement of financial performance
Interest received - debt instruments
The Fund recognises interest income on debt instruments based on reports submitted by PIC. It has been PICs practice not
to include interest for the last month of the financial year (March) in their reports. This would be included in the first month
of the following year (April) such that the interest income for April would be double the normal month. As a result the Fund
incurred a cut-off finding due to the March interest being recorded only in the following year. The adjustment of R7 563 was
made to correct this error.
Interest received - bank accounts
The bank reflects interest earned in a given month on the first day of the following month. The Fund had a practice of only
recording the interest in the month it is reflected on the bank statement. Although the bank reflects the interest on the first
day, it is clear the amount was earned in the previous month. Consequently, the Fund incurred a cut-off finding due to interest
not being recorded in the correct period. The entry of R451 was passed to correct tis error.
Penalties and interest charged
In the past year, a customer account was determined irrecoverable and was consequently written off. The write- off was
however treated as a reduction of revenue instead of being debited to expenses. Consequently the write- off amounting to
R9 554 was reclassified from penalties and interest charged revenue to impairment of receivables expense.
Benefits paid expense
The outcome of the actuarial valuations could not be journalised in time for the financial statements. The prior year expense
was therefore restated by R1 418 683 to take into account the updated expense amounts per the actuarial report.
Actuarial gains/(losses)
The outcome of the actuarial valuations could not be journalised in time for the financial statements. The prior year gain was
therefore restated by R1 302 974 to take into account the updated actuarial gains per the actuarial report.
Impairment of receivables
As noted above under penalties and interest charged, a debt write-off was treated as revenue reduction instead of being
expensed when it was incurred. The reclassification of R9 554 was done to correct this error.

Compensation Fund - Annual Report 2018/19

167

PART E: FINANCIAL INFORMATION

2. ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Compensation Fund Group
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
33. Prior period errors (continued)
Employee costs
As noted under accrued expenses, some performance bonuses were not accrued for at the end of the prior year. The entry
of R666 was done to correct this cut-off error.
Finance costs
The outcome of the actuarial valuations could not be journalised in time for the financial statements. The prior year interest
cost arising from the unwinding of the discount rate on outstanding claims and capitalised value of pensions was therefore
understated. The interest cost was therefore restated by R3 184 952 to take into account the updated interest cost per the
actuarial report.
General expenses
Several amounts were expensed to this account in error in the prior year instead of being capitalised. The most notable was
the R18 240 paid to the controlled entity Razorite as calls made by the investee for amounts payable to the Razorite Fund
manager. This amount represents capital contributions by the Compensation Fund and should not have been expensed. The
adjustment of R22 233 was passed to correct these errors.
Operating lease rentals
The Fund records invoices in the finance lease liability and then make reclassifications to the operating lease expense at
month end. At the end of the prior year this process was not completed on time. This, as noted in the current finance lease
liability above, caused the current finance lease liability to close the year in debit. The adjustment of R143 was done to
reallocate invoices of R94 from the current finance lease liability and record expenses of R49 that had not been accrued for.
Repairs and maintenance
Repairs and maintenance costs were incurred for the Bisho property. At the end of the prior year the expense had not been
recognised and the amount advanced to the property manager to fund these costs was included under PPE. The expense
incurred for the prior year was R313, hence the expense has been restated to correct this error.
Fair value adjustments
The Fund bases its fair value adjustments on the reports provided by PIC. At year end, valuations are performed for all
unlisted investments. These valuations become the basis for the year-end fair value adjustments for unlisted investments.
The outcome of these valuations could not be incorporated into the financial statements in time for sign-off, hence were
excluded. The adjustment of R36 016 was done to correct this error.
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33. Prior period errors (continued)
Share of surplus of associates
In the prior year the Fund performed equity accounting for investments in associates in the separate financial statements.
It later emerged that unlike other financial reporting frameworks such as IPSASs and IFRSs, GRAP does not allow equity
accounting in the separate financial statements. Consequently, the share of surplus of associates amounting to R39 851 was
therefore derecognised.
Impairment of investments
Several of the loans to associates were written down as the investees entered into debt restructuring. This included mainly
Daybreak Farms and LA Crushers. The impairment losses could not be journalised in time for the financial statements, hence
the restatement of R124 306.
Goodwill written off
The goodwill had arisen on the accounting for investments in associates. It was however later concluded that equity accounting
in the separate financial statements was not appropriate, hence the goodwill write-off amounting to R2 467 was reversed.
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34. Prior-year adjustments
Presented below are those items contained in the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance and
cash flow statement that have been affected by prior-year adjustments:
Statement of financial position
2019
Previously
reported

Investments - Current
Receivables from exchange
Receivables from non-exchange
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments - Non-current
Investment property

Correction of
error

Reclassification

Restated

9 573 838

-

(645 244)

8 928 594

189 430

8 983

(67 284)

131 129

1 701 229

18 529

33 139

1 752 897

39 311

1

(2 051)

37 261

181 278

(952)

681 440

861 766

54 351 536

155 008

693 628

55 200 172

8 000

(350)

-

7 650

239 775

(17 857)

-

221 918

67 537

9 205

-

76 742

Investments in associates

216 448

(216 448)

-

-

Investment in subsidiary

693 628

-

(693 628)

-

94

(94)

(1 875)

(1 875)

(1 188 138)

(19 074)

999 766

(207 445)

(108 945)

-

(999 766)

(1 108 711)

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Lease liability - Current
Payables from exchange transactions
Payables from non-exchange
Accrued expenses
Outstanding claims liability - Current
Capitalised value of pensions - Current
Lease liability - Non-current
Outstanding claims liability - Non-current
Capitalised value of pensions - Non- current
Revaluation reserve
Opening accumulated surplus

170

(124 179)

(14 019)

-

(138 198)

(3 644 384)

(206 867)

2 079 251

(1 772 000)

(15 327)

(1 129 000)

-

(1 144 327)

(3 903)

-

1 875

(2 028)

(8 494 000)

1 229 251

(2 079 251)

(9 344 000)

(20 732 594)

(348 026)

-

(21 080 620)

(136 683)

7 392

-

(129 291)

(26 815 051)

(117 062)

-

(26 932 113)

-

(641 380)

-

-
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34. Prior-year adjustments (continued)
Statement of financial performance
2019
Previously
reported

Correction of
error

Reclassification

Restated

Revenue from exchange transactions

4 385 023

7 951

(33 138)

4 359 836

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

7 298 648

9 555

33 138

7 341 341

(2 444 480)

1 418 978

(3 680 026)

(4 705 528)

-

1 302 974

3 680 026

4 983 000

(5 378 766)

(1 049)

-

(5 379 815)

(726 700)

(666)

-

(727 366)

(11 012)

(3 185 236)

-

(3 196 248)

(432 349)

20 259

(17 265)

(429 355)

Operating lease rentals

(94 826)

(19 856)

-

(114 682)

Repairs and maintenance

(20 682)

3 417

17 265

-

2 881 750

(36 017)

-

2 845 733

39 851

(39 851)

-

-

-

(124 306)

-

(124 306)

(2 467)

2 467

-

-

-

(641 380)

Benefits paid
Actuarial gains/(losses)
Impairment of receivables
Employee costs
Finance costs
General expenses

Fair value adjustments
Share of surplus of associates
Impairment of investments
Goodwill written off

-

35. Risk management
Financial risk management
In terms of Section 18(2) of the Compensation of Occupation Disease Act (act no 130 of 1993 (‘COIDA”),the Public Investment
Corporation (‘PIC”) is appointed as the Fund’s Investment Manager. The Fund transfers surplus cash to the PIC to invest in
term of the investment strategy and the investment policy of the Fund. All investments and deposits are registered by the PIC
in the Fund’s portfolio account.
The Fund is exposed to financial risk through it’s financial assets and liabilities. The main components of financial risk are:
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that cash resources are not available to pay claims when due. Due to the nature of the Fund’s
Operational requirements,it is exposed to daily call on its available cash resources arising mostly from short term claims. The
Fund ensures that adequate levels of cash are immediately available in its bank and call accounts to cover all the operational
expenses.Through its investment activities,liquidity risk is the risk of being unable to close out open financial instrument
positions quickly enough and in sufficient quantities at near market prices to avoid adverse financial impacts as a result of
insufficient volume in the market.
The Fund’s liquidity risk is managed by investing in liquid assets such as money market instruments as well as investing a
large portion of assets in listed equities and bonds that trade in efficient and liquid markets. The strategic asset allocation
stipulates that a minimum of 3% to maximum of 10% of the total holdings must comprise of money market instruments.
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35. Risk management (continued)
The Fund
Credit risk
The PIC Risk department is responsible for undertaking a risk assessment and evaluation of the creditworthiness of a
counterparty in accordance with the credit risk policy and client investment mandates. This also includes ongoing monitoring
of the credit quality and limit compliance. Factors that influence PIC’s credit decisions include: credit ratings from rating
agencies, assessment of the general operating environment, the relative competitive market position of a counterparty or
issuer, counterparty’s reputation, deal tenor, the level and volatility of earnings, corporate governance, risk management
policies, liquidity and capital management.
Credit risk limits incorporate measures that account for both current and potential exposures and are set and monitored
by broad risk type, product type and maturity. PIC manages credit risk by utilising internal models, as well as ratings from
external credit rating agencies. These limits are approved by the relevant committees, in accordance with the Board-approved
Delegation of Authority. Risk reports are submitted to the Portfolio Management Committee, Investment Committee, Audit
and Risk Committee and the Board.
Credit Risk
Rating

Compensation
2019
R’000

Compensation
2018
R’000

AAA/Aaa

22 820 241

-

77

12 778 890

-

-

AA+/Aa1

3 978 938

23 105 839

13

3 981 480

12 403 966

69

878 820

1 500 194

3

1 284 826

1 493 628

8

82 411

4 284 901

-

41 055

3 028 539

17

119 446

-

1

558 791

-

-

AA/Aa2
AA-/Aa3
A+/A1
BBB

% 2019

Pensions
2019
R’000

Pensions
2018
R’000

-

-

-

-

-

-

1 919 955

2 064 217

6

1 037 536

1 105 075

6

31 255

-

-

-

-

-

29 831 066

30 955 151

100

19 682 578

18 031 208

100

B
Unrated

National long-term rating deifinition

National scale rating symbol

Highest grade quality

AAA

Very high credit quality

AA+,AA,AA-

High credit quality

A+,A,A-

Adequate protection factors

BBB+,BBB,BBB-

Capacity for timely repayment

BB+,BB,BB-

Possessing risk obligation that will not be met when due

B+,B,B-

Defaulted

D

172
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35. Risk management (continued)
Market risk
The following tables present the risk profile for the internally managed CCF portfolios. The sensitivity analysis is based on the
portfolio holdings as at 31 March 2019 and involves a full revaluation of the portfolio constituents at the relative price points.
The sensitivity analysis methodology on equities and listed properties has been improved. Previously, in this exercise
absolute changes on portfolio were considered to reflect the impact on the portfolio if such changes were to be realised. This
implies that the equities in portfolio move in tandem with one another and are perfectly correlated to the portfolio benchmark.
For 31 March 2019 we employed beta sensitivities to capture the expected equity returns given a certain impact on the
benchmark. The sensitivity analysis excludes cash. The results of this analysis are shown in the tables below.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the market value or the income from financial instruments will fluctuate due to interest rate
movements. Changes in interest rates are managed on behalf of the fund by the PIC. Price risk that arises from changes in
the price of the listed equity instruments and is managed through diversification of the investment instruments.
Sensitivity for Bonds
Spread in basis points
Compensation:
Profit and loss
R’000

Compensation:
Market Value
R’000

Pension: Profit
and loss
R’000

Pension: Market
Value
R’000

-200

5 203 260

31 673 033

2 900 366

17 978 277

-150

3 745 640

30 215 412

2 088 474

17 166 384

-100

2 399 756

28 869 528

1 338 455

16 416 365

-50

1 154 485

27 624 257

644 119

15 722 029

-

26 469 772

-

15 077 910

50

(1 072 399)

25 397 374

(598 735)

14 479 176

100

(2 070 426)

24 399 347

(1 156 369)

13 921 542

150

(3 000 937)

23 468 836

(1 676 705)

13 401 206

200

(3 870 031)

22 599 741

(2 163 123)

12 914 787

0
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35. Risk management (continued)
Sensitivity for Money Market
Spread in basis points
Compensation:
Profit and loss
R’000

Compensation:
Market Value
R’000

Pension: Profit
and loss
R’000

Pension: Market
Value
R’000

-200

22 757

3 384 052

33 059

4 637 727

-150

17 025

3 378 319

24 732

4 629 400

-100

11 321

3 372 616

16 446

4 621 115

-50

5 647

3 366 941

8 203

4 612 871

0

-

3 361 294

-

4 604 668

50

(5 619)

3 355 676

(8 162)

4 596 506

100

(11 209)

350 085

(16 284)

4 588 385

150

(16 772)

3 344 522

(24 365)

4 580 303

200

(22 308)

3 338 986

(32 407)

4 572 261

Sensitivities for Equity
Price change (%),
Compensation:
Profit and loss
R’000

Compensation:
Market Value
R’000

Pension: Profit
and loss
R’000

Pension: Market
Value
R’000

-20 %

(2 020 620)

7 748 262

(1 265 241)

4 843 852

-15 %

(1 515 465)

8 239 580

(948 931)

5 151 403

-10 %

(1 010 310)

8 730 897

(632 620)

5 459 130

(505 155)

9 222 215

(316 310)

5 766 856

-

9 713 533

-

6 074 582

-5 %
-%
5%

505 155

10 204 851

316 310

6 382 308

10 %

1 010 310

10 696 168

632 620

6 690 034

15 %

1 515 465

11 187 486

948 931

6 997 761

20 %

2 020 620

11 678 804

1 265 241

7 305 487
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35. Risk management (continued)
Equity price risk
The group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the group and classified on the
consolidated statement of financial position either as available-for-sale or at fair value through surplus or deficit. The group
is not exposed to commodity price risk. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the group
diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the group. The group’s
investments in equity of other entities that are publicly traded and are included in the all SWIX equity index.
The sensitivity analysis is employed to measure the impact of price movements in the investment portfolio and is based on
the portfolio holdings as at 31 March 2019,and it involves a full revaluation of the portfolio constituents at the relative price
points. The sensitivity analysis methodology on equities and listed properties has been improved. Previously, in the exercise
absolute changes on portfolio were considered to reflect the impact on the portfolio if such changes were to be realised.
This implies that the equities in the portfolio move in tandem with one another and are perfectly correlated to the portfolio
benchmark. At 31 March 2019, beta sensitivity were employed to capture the expected equity returns given a certain impact
on the benchmark. The sensitivity analysis excludes cash and makes a distinction between listed property and listed equity.
The Fund
Price change (%)
Compensation
Profit/(Loss)
-1%

Compensation
Market value

Pension
Profit/(Loss)

Pension
Market value

(101 031)

9 615 269

(63 262)

6 013 037

0%

-

9 713 533

-

6 074 582

1%

101 031

9 811 797

63 262

6 136 127

Concentration risk
Concentration risk is the risk of losses arising due to poor diversification within funds. This relates to both credit and market
risk as excessive concentrations in a particular or correlated asset class, sector, issuer, term structure or financial instrument
type can result in undesirable risk exposures. The PIC manages this risk in accordance with investment mandates and
approved policies, which dictate the level of concentration.
Asset classes
Minimum
Range

SAA

Maximum Range

Bonds (nominal and inflation linked)

55 %

59,5 %

62 %

Equities

20 %

23 %

27 %

5%

10 %

10 %

2,5 %

2,5 %

5%

3%

5%

10 %

SRI
Unlised properties
Cash & money market

100 %
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
36. Going concern			
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business
37. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Opening balance
Expenditure incurred during the year

445 647

436 114

6 652

9 533

452 299

445 647

6 652

9 533

445 647

436 114

452 299

445 647

Analysis of expenditure under investigation
Current year cases
Prior years cases

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relates to the Fund and does not include subsidiary.			
The fund had a total of 116 cases in the Financial misconduct register that were accumulated over the past few years,
classified as fruitless and wasteful expenditure at the beginning of the financial year.
16 additional cases of fruitless and wasteful expenditure were identified and recorded in the financial misconduct register
during the current period.This resulted in a total of 132 cases of fruitless and wasteful recorded in the financial misconduct
register.
During the current financial year 1 prior period cases were written off by the Accounting Authority. A total of 130 are still under
investigation as at the end of the financial year.
38. Irregular expenditure
Opening balance

764 480

762 423

Expenditure incurred during the current year

10 551

2 850

Expenditure incurred during the prior year

10 624

-

Less: Amounts De-recognised

176

(16 517)

(793)

769 138

764 480
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
38. Irregular expenditure (continued)
Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification
Current year
Prior years

10 551

2 850

758 587

761 630

769 138

764 480

Details of irregular expenditure – current year
Variation of order for ad-hoc work performed by actuaries

26

Payment made without a valid contract

859

Contract variation on lease agreement

9 666
10 551

Irregular expenditure relates to the Fund and does not include subsidiary.
The Fund had a total of 148 cases recorded in the Financial Misconduct register as at the beginning of the financial year. In
the current year, 11 cases were identified and recorded as irregular expenditure.
The Fund had 151 open cases at the end of the year.1 Cases was derecognised as at the end of the financial year.
158 cases are still inder investigation at year end
39. Material losses
Material losses relates to the Fund and does not include subsidiary.
Total number of cases

Number of cases

Rand Value
R”000

Opening balance at 1 April 2018

79

33 401

Registered allegations

35

7 837

114

41 238

Decrease in estimate
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39. Material losses (continued)
Total number of finalised cases (a)
Closing balance at 31 March 2019

(42)

(2 135)

72

34 176

(38)

(2 135)

(a) Breakdown of the finalised cases
Cases finalised - prior year
Cases finalised - current year

(4)

-

(42)

(2 135)

The analysis below serves to illustrate how the actual, potential & referrals to law enforcement have been broken down. The
analysis does not necessarily reconcile to the information above

Recovered

2

1 529

Actual Loss

10

2 135

Potential loss

1

-

Referred to law enforcement

3

-

-

25

29

-

Recommended write-off
Cases with no loss
Comparative figures for the prior year
Opening balance at 1 April 2017

86

39 343

Registered allegations

51

405 305

137

444 648

Increase/(Decrease) in estimates

Cases finalised internally (b)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2018

(226 902)

(58)

(184 345)

79

33 401

(b) Breakdown of the above finalised
cases
Cases finalised - prior year

(47)

(8 339)

Cases finalised - current year

(11)

(176 006)

(58)

(184 345)
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39. Material losses (continued)
Analysis serve as an iilustration of how the actual, potential & referral to law enforcement have been broken down (the
analysis amounts should not be reconciled to the information above)
Recovered

2

1 163

Actual Loss

13

184 345

Potential loss

10

14 381

Referred to law enforcement

22

410 946

-

-

34

-

-

-

Recommended write-off
Cases with no loss
40. Taxation
Major components of the tax (income) expense
Current
Current tax

(43 708)

6 119

41. Deferred tax
The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liability relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law allows net
settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the statement of financial position as follows:
Deferred tax liability

-

(16 667)

-

-

Deferred tax asset

41 486

4 324

-

-

Total net deferred tax asset
(liability)

41 486

(12 343)

-

-
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